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Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) was established
in 2009 and listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 15 December 2010 (Stock Code: 01282.HK). The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the business of financial services, property investment and
development, automation, securities investment, trading of
commodities, yacht club and training.

The Group holds licences to provide comprehensive financial services,
including securities and futures trading, corporate finance, asset
management, wealth management, money lending, and precious
metal trading in Hong Kong and the PRC. After years of operations
and experience, the Group has become one of the most trusted
partners in wealth management and financial planning in Hong
Kong.

The Group’s property investment and development segment has
been under rapid development and expansion in recent years. It is
engaged with a number of property projects in Hong Kong and
various major cities in the PRC, covering projects including residential
buildings, commercial apartments, commercial office buildings,
technology parks, shopping malls and hotels. It will continue to
explore quality property projects in the Greater Bay Area to increase
its land reserves for future development.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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The Group is one of the leaders in the distribution of automation
equipment in the PRC. It maintains a close relationship and
collaboration with key business partners in the PRC. It is committed
to seizing the opportunities brought by the smart manufacturing
transformation under “Made in China 2025" and the opportunities
for 5G market development.

The Company is a constituent of the MSCI China Small Cap Index
and a number of Hang Seng Family of Indexes, including Hang Seng
Composite Index, Hang Seng Composite SmallCap Index, Hang Seng
Composite MidCap & SmallCap Index, Hang Seng Composite
Industry Index — Financials, Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong
Index, Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong SmallCap Index, Hang
Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong MidCap & SmallCap Index, Hang
Seng SCHK Mainland China Companies Index, Hang Seng SCHK
ex-AH Companies Index. It is also one of the eligible stocks in the
Shenzhen-Hong Hong Stock Connect. The inclusion of the Company
in these indexes reflects the market recognition of its efforts over the
past few years.

Adhering to its philosophy of “sustainable development and giving
back to the community”, the Group is committed to providing all-
rounded quality products and services to maximise return for its
shareholders, and at the same time contributing to the well-being of
the society as a whole. Looking ahead, the Group will rise to the
challenges of the formidable business environment and look for local
and overseas partners to promote the overall development of the
Group.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Ye Weiqing — Co-Chairman

(resigned on 2 June 2020)
Mr. Lau Wan Po — Vice Chairman
Mr. Li Minbin
Mr. Huang Wei

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Zhang Chi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Chun Bong — Chairman
Mr. Zhang Chi

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman

Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew — Chairman
Mr. Yao Jianhui

Mr. Wong Chun Bong

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman

Ms. Ye Weiqing (resigned on 2 June 2020)
Mr. Lau Wan Po

Mr. Li Minbin

Mr. Huang Wei
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STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman

Ms. Ye Weiqing (resigned on 2 June 2020)
Mr. Lau Wan Po

Mr. Li Minbin

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Ho Ka Yiu, Simon

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Yao Jianhui
Mr. Ho Ka Yiu, Simon

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

LEGAL ADVISER
Baker & McKenzie
Sidley Austin

AUDITOR
BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

18/F., Wing On Centre,

111 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D,

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100,

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

LISTING VENUE/STOCK CODE
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited/01282

BOARD LOT
4,000 shares

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://Amwww.hk1282.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BERE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=t—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
==t —T-NF - N\F E—+F ZERF
LUEHOTIGT  HKS'million HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BHEAT BEET BEBT BEET BEET

OPERATING RESULTS EEXA

Revenue (Note 1) s (P& 1) 7,826.2 10,887.8 1,483.2 2,825.3 995.6
Gross profit (Note 1) EIGED) 386.7 1,953.7 511.5 8713 4734
EBITDA (Note 1&2) EBITDA (FiiFE 1 )2 2) (519.8) 1,930.4 922.0 1,099.0 840.2
EBIT (Note 1&3) EBIT(FI&E1K3) (617.9) 1,851.5 901.2 1,059.2 829.7
(Loss)/profit from EiE(BB),/afl

operations (Note 1) (PHFET) (633.9) 1,830.8 890.5 1,053.4 818.6
(Loss)/profit attributable A BI%EA ARE(S

to owners of the (E518),/ % F

Company (217.3) 684.3 670.8 869.2 466.6
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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2020

As of 31 December
R+=HA=+-—H

2019

S B ==
HK$'million HK$'million
BEBT AEBT

2018 2017 2016
—T-N\F ZZT—+tF —ZIZT—RF
HK$'million HKS$'million HK$'million

BEAT BEAT BEAT

FINANCIAL POSITION BIEMRR

Total assets BEME 33,124.2 29,439.1 10,781.2 10,961.0 7,005.7
Net assets BESFE 10,862.1 10,761.3 6,964.8 7,769.4 5,149.4
Net current assets mBEETE 7,789.3 4,235.6 1,456.4 3,602.3 2,338.7
KEY STATISTICS FEH
Gross profit margin (Note 1) EFI= (KfzE1) 5% 18% 35% 31% 48%
Operating (loss)/profit =B (F18),/mH =

margin (Note 1) (BFzED) (8%) 17% 60% 37% 82%
Net (lossy/profit margin )% (&518) /& F & (7%) 9% 46% 32% 66%
Return on equity i 7K [] ¥ & (5%) 9% 10% 12% 13%
Interest coverage (Note 4)  F| S BE L& (fT3E4) (0.8) 37 1.1 533 1,009.4
(Loss)/earnings per share &A% (&518), /&

(HK cents) (&)

— Basic — &R 0.71) 2.55 2.60 3.90 2.15

— Diluted — (0.71) 2.55 2.60 3.90 2.15
Dividend per share (HK cent)  SFRXALE (B1l) - - 0.20 0.51 0.32
Current ratio e & 1.6 13 1.4 2.4 2.7
Notes: B

1.

The revenue, gross profit, EBITDA, EBIT, (loss)/profit from operations, gross profit
margin and operating (loss)/profit margin in 2020 and 2019 represent the
operating results from continuing operations.

EBITDA is calculated at (loss)/profit before income tax subtracted by finance costs
— net and adding back depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of intangible assets.

EBIT is calculated at (loss)/profit before income tax subtracted by finance costs —
net.

Interest coverage is calculated at (loss)/profit before income tax from continuing

operations subtracted by finance costs — net and divided by finance cost of the
Group.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Revenue Revenue
W #= W #=
(APPROX. HK$7,826.2 MILLION) (APPROX. HK$10,887.8 MILLION)
(497,826 2 HEHT) (4910,887.8 HEBIT)
6.129.0 (78.3%) 5,160.4 (47.4%)

5,063.1 (46.5%)

Year 2019
20194

Year 2020
20204

803.4 (10.3%)

175.4 (1.6%)
488.9 (4.5%)

246.8 (3.2%)

647.0 (8.2%)
() :;%pgrgzelﬂ)v;rit;int [ ) gggwirr:?ogfties @ Financial Services Automation and others O nxERARER @ HRES @ SRRY BB REM
Revenue Gross Profit
Wz EF
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B&8ET) (B&ET)
1,953.7
10,887.8
7.826.2
871.3
2,825.3 473.4 511.5
386.7
1,483.2
995.6
(Year) (Year)
(%10) (1)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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EBITDA (Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
EBITDA AATEE AELM (BE), B
(HKS million) (HK$ million)
(A8#T) (BEET)
1,930.4 869.2
670.8 6843
1,099.0
999.0 466.6
840.2 ’
I I (519.8) (217.3)
(Year) I (Year)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 (%f3) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 (%3)
Total Assets Net Assets
BEEHE BEEFE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BEAT) (BEET)
33.124.2 10,761.3 10,862.1
29,439.1
7.769.4
6,964.8
5,149 .4
10,961.0 10,781.2
7,005.7
(Year) (Year)
(1) (%19)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

R

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year").

Owing to the tough business operating environment during the Year,
the Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$7,826.2 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 28.1% in revenue from
approximately HK$10,887.8 million as recorded in the previous
financial year. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the
significant decrease in scale of the property sales made handover to
the customers in the Year as compared with those in 2019.

The Company recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$217.3 million (2019: profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$684.3 million). The turnaround from profit to loss attributable to
the owners of the Company was primarily due to the significant
decrease in gross profit generated from property sales and fair value
loss on investment properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC of
approximately HK$607.2 million.

BEWAFALRR :
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ZE-NFRERD -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
e

MARKET OVERVIEW

During the Year, the global business activities were hard hit by the
Covid-19 pandemic resulting in a recession in majority of nations and
in others a depression, and Hong Kong is no exception. 2020 has
been a tough year for Hong Kong's economy. The Hong Kong
Government faced difficult trade-off between curbing the spread of
the Covid-19 and keeping its economy afloat. Notwithstanding the
stimulus package to support businesses and individuals such as wage
subsidies and tax and loan payment deferrals released by the Hong
Kong Government and the self-discipline of the citizens such as strict
compliance with compulsory mask wearing, the gross domestic
product (“GDP") decreased by 6.1% in real terms from 2019.

Despite the serious disruptions caused by the Covid-19 to many
sectors of the economy, the global financial markets were well
supported by the unprecedented policy support from governments
around the world. Hong Kong, as one of the international financial
centres for global markets, continued to serve its role as a connection
between China and the world. In 2020, the return of China concept
stocks to Hong Kong stock market led to an increase in the turnover
of the stock market. The average daily turnaround value of Stock
Connect Northbound and Southbound reached record half-yearly
highs on the first half of 2020. The investment and property markets
enjoyed a favourable environment under the Linked Exchange Rate
System as the interest rate were decreasing in 2020.

Faced with the rampant pandemic, the Chinese government promptly
adopted a series of prevention and control measures, which brought
the pandemic under effective control within the first quarter of 2020.
China’s economy showed strong resilience, making China the only
major economy in the world to achieve positive economic growth.

An orderly economic recovery has simultaneously stimulated the
demand for purchase of housing properties in the PRC. The growth
rate of real estate investment plummeted to 16.3% in February 2020
due to the impact of the pandemic. Property sales scale and
development investments in the real estate industry across China fell
sharply. With better pandemic prevention and control, the market
has gradually stabilised and recovered since March 2020. The
property market achieves a positive growth of 7% in 2020.
According to the data from the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s
investment in real estate development rose approximately 7% year-
on-year to RMB14,144.3 billion in 2020, and the investment in
residential real estate was RMB10,444.6 billion in aggregate, up
7.6% from a year earlier.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Looking ahead, the Group remains positive on the recovery of Hong
Kong's economy as China’s economy has mostly reactivated. China is
both Hong Kong's largest destination of goods exports and supply
place of goods imports. As trade and cross-border communications
gradually normalise, the internal circulation of production,
distribution and consumption will likely to be a major boost to Hong
Kong's economy.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the business of financial services,
property investment and development, automation, securities
investment, trading of commodities, yacht club and training. In
January 2021, the Company won “the best financial company”
award at the 5th “Golden Hong Kong Stocks Awards”, affirming its
wide recognition in Hong Kong.

Over the past years, the Group has been adhering to its philosophy
of “sustainable development and giving back to the community”
with its commitment to provide all-rounded quality products and
services to maximise return for its shareholders and contribute to the
well-being of the society. In 2021, the Group will rise to the
challenges of the formidable business environment and look for local
and overseas partners to promote the overall development of the
Group.

FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the financial services segment
netted approximately HK$246.8 million in revenue (2019:
approximately HK$175.4 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 40.7% and approximately 3.2% of the
Group's total revenue (2019: 1.6%). The operating profit amounted
to approximately HK$145.4 million (2019: approximately HK$73.5
million), representing a year-on-year increase of 97.8%.

R
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
e

Securities Brokerage Services

Hong Kong has been a popular fund-raising market for global
business. Despite the influence brought by the Covid-19, the IPO
market remained vigorous in the second half of 2020. In the third
quarter of 2020, the IPO of bio-pharmaceutical stocks, property
management stocks, technology stocks and China concept stocks set
off a boom in the Hong Kong stock market. In 2020, Hong Kong was
the second largest initial public offerings (“IPO") market globally.
Notwithstanding that the number of newly listed companies was
154, a decrease of approximately 15.9% from 183 in 2019, the IPO
equity funds raised was approximately HK$397,528.9 million, an
increase of approximately 26.5% from approximately HK$314,241.1
million in 2019 and the total turnover was approximately
HK$32,110,148 million, an increase of approximately 49.8% from
HK$21,440,049 million in 2019. Benefiting from the increase in the
annual turnover, the Group recorded a satisfactory increase in
revenue from securities brokerage services.

In order to facilitate the development of securities brokerage services,
the Group consistently advertised through marketing channels and
released research and analysis reports. It provided investors with up-
to-date financial information via live streaming and a series of social
media platforms. With the launch of a new version of eTrading
mobile application with more popular functions, clients tended to
conduct more trades online as a result of better investment
experience. A stronger brand recognition and brand evaluation from
clients led to an enhancement of the Group’s corporate image.

Corporate Finance Services

During the Year, the corporate finance team continued to provide
sponsoring, underwriting and placement services to clients for their
fund-raising activities in equity and debt capital market. Provision of
financial advisory services and other corporate advisory services were
also given to clients for their corporate finance activities including
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions.

The corporate finance team faced challenges due to the Covid-19
pandemic. Meetings with clients and performance of due diligence
exercises in the PRC were affected by the travel restrictions and
compulsory quarantine as imposed by the PRC and Hong Kong
Governments. Nevertheless, to cope with these challenges and to
fulfil clients’ expectation on services, the corporate finance team
conducted meetings with clients via video conferencing. In 2020, the
Group acted as sponsor, joint bookrunners and joint lead managers
for various applications of IPO and offered assistance to the issuance
of private and public debts.
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Asset Management Services

The asset management team offered its asset management and
securities advisory services to high-net-worth individuals,
corporations, institutional, funds and/or family trusts by the way of
fund management or discretionary account management in domestic
and international markets. As at 31 December 2020, it had
respectively acted as an investment manager for three exempted
limited liability Segregated Portfolio Companies incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with six segregated portfolios. At the same time, it
provided investment management services for one discretionary
account. The assets under management (“AUM") (including private
funds and the discretionary account) amounted to approximately
HK$930.0 million.

Wealth Management Services

As one of the leading wealth management hubs, Hong Kong has
been providing comprehensive financial services to onshore and
offshore clients. The number of high-net-worth individuals in Hong
Kong has been increasing in recent years. In terms of cities with most
billionaires, Hong Kong ranks the second.

With its geographical advantages and long-term experience in serving
the PRC market, Hong Kong is expected to maintain its leading
position in Greater China wealth management. With the expectation
that the number of millionaires in the PRC will reach 6.9 million by
2024 and the increasing demand for professional advisory services in
the Great Bay Area, further development of Hong Kong wealth
management industry is expected.

In 2020, the wealth management team regularly held seminars,
enhanced cooperation with other business units within the Group
and increase sales channels.

Money-lending Services

The Group holds a money lender’s licence and is a member of
TransUnion Limited. The loans granted to clients covers long-term
secured loans such as share mortgage and property mortgage and
short-term unsecured term loans. In 2020, the Group continued to
optimize its money lending business structure by the adoption of a
conservative approach and tightened loan approval procedures. With
reference to the prevailing market condition, the Group adjusted the
interest rate and loan-to-value ratio on a regular basis to strengthen
its risk and capital management. Despite the challenges encountered
during the Year, the Group’s money lending business recorded a
significant increase in the size of the loan portfolio.
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Precious Metal Trading Services

The Group hold a AT membership of the Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society to engage with the businesses of 99 Gold, HKD
Kilo Gold, London Gold/Silver and Loco Silver. In 2020, it continued
to provide clients with quality online trading services of gold and
silver as well as comprehensive precious metal trading business for
goods and physical gold and silver and render services of investment
management and investment advisory for them to capture
investment opportunities.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the property
investment and development segment was approximately HK$803.4
million (2019: approximately HK$5,063.1 million), accounting for
approximately 10.3% (2019: approximately 46.5%) of the Group’s
total revenue. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the
decrease in property sales as those property projects made handover
to customers in 2020 were relatively smaller than those in 2019.
Therefore, the gross profit of 2020 decreased by approximately
HK$1,662.7 million compared to that of 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the operating loss of the
property investment and development segment was approximately
HK$388.0 million, compared to the operating profit of approximately
HK$1,717.6 million recorded in the previous year. The turnaround
from the operating profit to operating loss was primarily due to the
significant decrease in gross profit and fair value loss on investment
properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC of approximately
HK$607.2 million, while partially net off by the gain on disposal of
subsidiaries of approximately HK$519.6 million.

The Group's property investment and development segment is mainly
rooted in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. At
present, it has implemented a total of 16 property investment and
development projects in 9 cities, namely Shenzhen, Ganzhou,
Changchun, Shenyang, Weinan, Changsha, Shantou, Yunfu and
Nanning. The development projects include commercial complexes,
upscale residences, hotels, commercial apartments, villas and garden
houses.

In 2020, the Group actively overcame difficulties and responded to

market changes, quantified the impact of the pandemic on its normal
operation, and modified the current business strategies.
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From the perspective of strategic development, the Group, on one
hand, continuously stepped up its presence in the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and other key cities with great
support, strong economic strength and continuous demographic
dividend during the “pandemic-related window period”. On the
other hand, it looked for opportunities to improve land reserves, paid
attention to strategic M&A opportunities, and accelerated the
integration of resources in the real estate industry.

The prevention and control systems and measures developed for
marketing management include live-streaming showings, an online
sales office, an online house buying festival and other marketing
solutions. To some extent, these moves are a remedy as potential
buyers are reluctant to see houses offline, which has effectively
promoted the sales recovery.

The Group performed well in multiple project nodes of property
investment and development sectors in 2020.

In May 2020, Block No. 3 of Weinan Project was put up for sale;
Block No. 2 and Block No. 5 in August; Block No. 6 in September;
and Block No. 1 and Block No. 7 in November 2020. The Group saw
the completion rates of its annual targets in subscription, contract
signing and payment collection exceed 100%, and recorded the
highest sales in Weinan'’s property market during the pandemic.

In May 2020, the Shenyang Baoxin Mansion Project won the bidding
of a 11,000-square-metre land parcel (Jiuzhong Land Parcel) at a
price of RMB599 million. With the commencement of construction in
August 2020, the project is planned to consist of two 33-storey
high-rise residences and one 3-storey commercial complex. The
project is expected to be put up for sale in May 2021, with a saleable
area of more than 35,000 square metres.

In May 2020, Block No. 13 and Block No. 21 of the phase 3 of
Nanning Premium Residential Project were officially launched for sale.
Thanks to the full preparation in the early stage and the advantages
of houses of the project, the Group attracted many customers in the
early stage and achieved high sales in a short time after listing.

In May 2020, the phase 1 of the Yunfu Yuelan Shan Project was
launched for sale for the first time. The Group submitted relevant
documents for approval after project completion in December 2020.

In June 2020, the groundbreaking ceremony of the foundation pit
supporting project of Baoxin Building was successfully held, marking
the official commencement of Baoxin Building construction.
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In October 2020, the offline subscription for Block No. 7 of the
Shanton Chaoyang Project and parking spaces of the phase 2 started.

AUTOMATION BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the
automation segment was approximately HK$545.4 million (2019:
approximately HK$634.2 million), accounting for approximately 7.0%
(2019: approximately 5.8%) of the Group’s total revenue. The
decrease in revenue was mainly due to the delay in customers’
procurement plan and decrease in sales order caused by the effect of
the outbreak of the Covid-19.

The Group has been engaging in the automation business since
2012. It is one of the leading distributors and service providers of
surface mount technology (SMT) equipment in the PRC. In 2020, the
SMT equipment industry went through a slowdown due to the global
economic uncertainties caused by the Sino-US trade war and
Covid-19. Despite the challenging economic situation, China’s
manufacturing industry has benefited from a strong recovery and
increased demand for 5G, semiconductors, smart connected devices
and electric vehicles. The Group expects that the automation business
will benefit from the increase in the industry’s demand for smart
manufacturing equipment in 2021.

There was a perceptible momentum from the PRC companies to
localise their production during the trade war. The localisation of
production gained support from the PRC Government and its policies
that advocated for supply chain localisation. As a result, market
demand for SMT equipment increased. The automation business
team took this opportunity to appeal more customers and build a
diverse customer base.

The deployment of 5G infrastructure and the advent of 5G
smartphones in the PRC contributed to the increase in demand for
SMT equipment. In the second quarter of 2020, following the
resumption of procurement plan of SMT machines from customers,
the sales orders gradually recovered.

Some customers were more inclined to lease used machines instead
of acquiring new SMT equipment. This created an opportunity to
develop its finance lease business. Since the lease market has largely
been shared by multiple major companies, the Group was committed
to allocate more resources to enlarge its market share by way of
provision of more differentiate products and services, offering free
trial of SMT equipment and exploring new markets such as new
energy automobile industry.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENT

The Group has been investing in listed shares in Hong Kong, the PRC
and foreign countries and adjusting its investment strategy to ensure
that it is sufficiently prudent to cope with the uncertainties in the
financial market. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
securities investment business generated a loss of approximately
HK$22.0 million (2019: approximately HK$260.8 million). The
operating loss of the segment amounted to approximately HK$62.2
million (2019: approximately HK$309.8 million).

OTHER INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Company held 32% equity interest in
Yunnan International Holding Group Limited, an associate principally
engaged in the business of clean energy, health, investment
management, new energy and financial services. Through the
cooperation with the shareholders of the associate, the Company
vigorously participated in the strategic construction brought by The
Belt and Road Initiative.

TRADING OF COMMODITIES BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the trading of
commodities segment was approximately HK$6,129.0 million (2019:
approximately HK$5,160.4 million), accounting for approximately
78.3% (2019: approximately 47.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

YACHT CLUB AND TRAINING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the yacht club
and training segments were approximately HK$18.9 million (2019:
approximately HK$106.0 million), accounting for approximately 0.2%
(2019: approximately: 1.0%) of the Group’s total revenue. The
decrease in revenue was mainly due to a cliff fall in visiting guests
caused by the outbreak of the pandemic. In relation to the declining
performance of the yacht club and training business, the impairment
loss on intangible assets of approximately HK$419.8 million was
incurred and ultimately resulted in an operating loss of approximately
HK$446.4 million for the year. Such impairment loss on intangible
assets had no impacts on the Group's cash flow and the Group still
maintained sufficient funds and sound overall financial strength
regardless of outbreak of the pandemic.
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PROSPECT

In the last two years, the Group’s financial services segment
transformed into a specialised financial services segment with
investment and financing capabilities and achieved a substantial
increase in the overall profitability. In 2021, the financial services
segment will seek to further improve its performance.

The securities brokerage team will expand its margin financing
business by allocating more resources on the provision of IPO margin
financing to clients. It will build up connection network with more
securities firms and banks for potential collaboration. Promotional
packages such as commission-free and competitive margin financing
interest will be offered to clients. The number of new account and
the amount of client money are expected to increase.

The securities brokerage team has been compiling research reports
and securities investment recommendations on macroeconomic and
market hotspots. It will expand its scope of research to cover
traditional industries such as real estate, new energy, biotechnology
and biomedicine. Furthermore, the existing eTrading mobile
application will be further optimised to improve and increase its
functions.

The corporate finance team will continue to consolidate its client
base of small and medium corporates. Due to the investors’
enthusiasm for technology, consumption, biotechnology and
property management, it, through its pre-IPO advisory services and
referrals, will take opportunities to obtain sponsorship and
underwriting projects in these hot industries. More advisory and
consultancy services agreement are expected to be signed with
corporate and individual clients to provide them with consultancy
services, market research and advisory services on corporate
governance.

Despite the travel restrictions imposed by authorities, members of the
corporate finance team will attend to meetings with clients and
potential clients in the PRC. Seminars in large scale are expected to
be held to promote the Group’s corporate finance services.
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To adapt to the changes in the capital markets, the asset
management team will actively design and launch unique fund
product category to cover stocks, bonds, currencies, hierarchy,
private equity etc., thereby creating a diverse asset management
product line to increase its AUM and to satisfy the need of different
client groups. Meanwhile, it will enhance professional team building,
gradually strengthen its core management capabilities, including but
not limited to strengthening compliance supervision and risk
management and adhering to the “people-oriented” philosophy.

The wealth management team targets to expand its sales force for
promotion of its products and services. It will cooperate with
insurance companies overseas, trust companies, immigration
institutions so that clients will be referred to the wealth management
team to invest in its financial products. It also plans to set up a trust
for high-net-worth clients for wealth inheritance arrangements.

The automation business team has been in its constant provision of
world-class automation manufacturing devices and services for the
industries of smartphones, Internet of Things, semi-conductors,
automobile electronics in the PRC. With the gradual sophistication of
5G application business regimes together with the accelerating
progress proposed by China in terms of the new infrastructure
facilities construction as representative of 5G, Artificial Intelligence,
Industrial Internet and Internet of Things, there will be a new source
of vitality to benefit the development of the automation business
segment.

The Group believes that the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area will usher in a strategic window period for truly rapid
development. China’s real estate market is set to continuously
stabilise and see stronger consumer demand under the new
development pattern that takes domestic circulation as the mainstay,
with domestic and international circulation reinforcing each other.
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With the continuous support from China by its gradual introduction
of new measures under the Greater Bay Area initiative, greater
collaboration between the local governments is anticipated within
the region. Hong Kong will definitely gain from the development of
China’s most economically vibrant region. To seize every opportunity
presented in the region, the Group will continue to equip itself with
more talents while making adjustment and optimization to the
management and core business teams with devoted effort to develop
more professional and experienced business teams. The Group
anticipates a turnaround from crisis to opportunities under the
professional operating capabilities of its teams to expand the scope
of its business by the leverage of the opportunity arising out of crisis.
The Group will carry on with its plan to provide investors in the
market with more business opportunities and more quality services
so that the business of the Group can achieve a new level of success.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to
fellow members of the Board, and the entire workforce for their
dedication and hard work over the past year. | wish to also thank all
of the Group’s shareholders and stakeholders for their unwavering
support. Looking forward, we will embrace each and every challenge
with our consistent adherence to the spirit of “Create, Blend and
Share Together” to create stable and satisfactory return for our
Shareholders with our utmost endeavour to maximise the value for
each and every one of our shareholder and investors alike so that we
can create better return together.

By Order of the Board
Glory Sun Financial Group Limited

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND A
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Continuing operations

Revenue

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020
decreased by approximately 28.1% to approximately HK$7,826.2

million (2019: approximately HK$10,887.8 million). The revenue
analysis by segment is presented as follows:

NALYSIS

B % o

FEREER

W az
AEEBEZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE
MR K1 28.1% £4)7,8262 BE B (=

T—NF:#10887.8EEET) - DA A=
DHT2HNET

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

Proportion Proportion
HK$’ to total to total %
million AL HKS million revenue change
ey g (R ERalsd
BEERT A "AEBT sl FE)
Automation =EEIe 545.4 7.0% 634.2 5.8% -14.0%
Financial Services SRR 246.8 3.2% 175.4 1.6% 40.7%
Property Investment and #1315 & R E R

Development 803.4 10.3% 5,063.1 46.5% -84.1%
Securities Investment BEIE (22.0) (0.3%) (260.8) (2.4%) -91.6%
Trading of Commodities HE@mE 5 6,129.0 78.3% 5,160.4 47 4% 18.8%
Yacht Club HEREE A 10.0 0.1% 60.0 0.6% -83.3%
Training b=l 8.9 0.1% 46.0 0.4% -80.7%
Others Hi 104.7 1.3% 9.5 0.1% 1,002.1%
7,826.2 100% 10,887.8 100% -28.1%

During the year, the trading of commodities and property investment
and development segments were the major source of revenue for the
Group, accounting for 78.3% and 10.3% of total revenue,
respectively.

Gross Profit and Margin

The gross profit for the year decreased by approximately 80.2% to
approximately HK$386.7 million (2019: approximately HK$1,953.7
million), while the gross profit margin decreased to 4.9% (2019:
17.9%). The change was mainly due to the significant decrease in
scale of the property sales made handover to the customers in the
Year as compared with those in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Gains — Net

The net other gains during the year was approximately HK$576.6
million (2019: net other gains approximately HK$23.9 million), which
was mainly due to the gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$519.6 million and the gain from derecognition of
financial guarantee contract of approximately HK$33.4 million.

Other Income

The other income increased by approximately 17.0% to
approximately HK$46.1 million (2019: approximately HK$39.4
million).

Distribution Costs

The distribution costs increased by approximately 76.1% to
approximately HK$131.4 million (2019: approximately HK$74.6
million), accounting for 1.7% (2019: 0.7%) of the total revenue. The
increase in distribution costs was mainly due to the increase in
advertising, promotion and exhibition expenses of approximately
HK$23.8 million and increase in agency service fee of approximately
HK$13.9 million.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses decreased by approximately 8.2% to
approximately HK$355.8 million (2019: approximately HK$387.4
million), owing to the effective implementation of cost control policy
to reduce the routine administrative expenses.

Finance Costs — Net

The net finance costs was approximately HK$56.3 million (2019:
approximately HK$192.5 million). The decrease in net finance costs
was because of increasing interest expenses that qualified for
capitalisation.

Income Tax Credit/(Expense)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded an
income tax credit of approximately HK$93.4 million (2019: income
tax expense of approximately HK$595.4 million) was mainly due to
the deferred tax credit derived from revaluation of properties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Discontinued operations

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed of its
online game service business and manufacturing business in the PRC
and recognised loss from discontinued operations of approximately
HK$88.7 million.

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company recorded a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$217.3 million (2019: profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$684.3 million).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

By adopting a prudent financial management approach, the Group
continued to maintain a healthy financial position with good cash
flow. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$1,724.7 million (2019:
approximately HK$1,313.6 million). The working capital represented
by net current assets amounted to approximately HK$7,789.3 million
(2019: approximately HK$4,235.6 million). The current ratio was
approximately 1.6 (2019: approximately 1.3). The gearing ratio,
which is calculated at borrowings divided by net asset value, was
123.3% (2019: 91.8%).

The borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020 included
corporate bonds of approximately HK$1,020.0 million (2019:
approximately HK$1,688.4 million), trust receipt loans of
approximately HK$8.7 million (2019: approximately HK$36.5 million),
bank loans of approximately HK$6,800.9 million (2019:
approximately HK$4,022.2 million), and other loans of approximately
HK$5,562.4 million (2019: HK$4,133.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The borrowings were secured by (i) guarantees provided by the
Company, shareholder of the Company, certain of its subsidiaries,
related parties and an independent third party; (2019: the Company,
shareholder of the Company, certain of its subsidiaries and related
parties); (i) properties owned by an independent third parties (2019:
nil); (iii) equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Company (2019:
same); (iv) property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$126.6
million (2019: approximately HK$137.0 million); (v) investment
properties of approximately HK$5,536.7 million (2019: approximately
HK$4,561.6 million); (vi) properties under development of
approximately HK$6,491.3 million (2019: approximately HK$5,116.5
million); (vii) completed properties held for sale of approximately
HK$1,333.4 million (2019: approximately HK$85.9 million); (viii)
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$310.5 million (2019:
approximately HK$19.6 million); (ix) collateral of the Group’s margin
clients of approximately 828.3 million (2019: approximately
HK$227.6 million); (x) pledged bank deposit of approximately
HK$178.7 million (2019: approximately HK$610.6 million); and (xi)
intragroup group receivables of a subsidiary of the Company (2019:
nil).

Capital and Other Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had contracted but not provided
for capital commitments of approximately HK$215.2 million,
HK$17,600.7 million and HK$3.8 million (2019: approximately
HK$240.0 million, HK$11,300.9 million and HK$5.2 million) relating
to the investment in an associate; investment properties and property
development expenditures; and property, plant and equipment,
respectively.

Currency Exposure and Management

During the year, the Group’s receipts were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi (“RMB"), and US dollars. The Group’s
payments were mainly made in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US
dollars.

As the business activities of the Group’s automation and property
investment and development segments were mainly conducted in the
mainland China, most of the Group’s labour costs and manufacturing
overheads were settled with the RMB. As such, fluctuation of the
RMB exchange rate will have an impact on the Group's profitability.
The Group will closely monitor movements of the RMB and, if
necessary, consider entering into foreign exchange forward contracts
with reputable financial institutions to reduce potential exposure to
currency fluctuations. During the year, the Group did not enter into
any foreign exchange forward contract.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Future Plans for Capital Investment and Expected
Source of Funding

The Group finances its operating and capital expenditures mainly by
internal resources such as operating cash flow and shareholders’
equity and bank facilities. The Group expects to have sufficient
resources and banking facilities to meet its capital expenditure and
working capital requirement.

Fund raising for future business development

When the Group considers that there are funding needs for the
expansion of its businesses and development of new businesses, it
will explore possible fund raising methods, such as debt financing,
placing of new shares or issuance of corporate bonds.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 1,036 (2019: 1,020) full-
time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. Employees’
remuneration is determined in accordance with individual’s
responsibility, competence and skills, experience and performance as
well as market pay level. Staff benefits include medical insurance,
provident funds and other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company adopted
a share option scheme on 2 June 2020 and share options will be
granted to eligible employees in accordance with the share option
scheme.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SHARE SUBSCRIPTION
IN JULY 2019

On 10 July 2019, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Bao Xin Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Yao Jianhui, in relation to the
subscription of 4,000,000,000 new shares of the Company (the
“Share(s)"”) at a subscription price of HK$0.25 per Share (the “Share
Subscription”). Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 July 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 10
October 2019 (the “Circular”) for more details regarding the Share
Subscription.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 17 December 2019, the Company issued and allotted
2,400,000,000 new Shares to the Subscriber and received a proceeds
of approximately HK$600,000,000. On 8 May 2020, the Company
issued and allotted 1,600,000,000 new Shares to the Subscriber and
received a proceeds of approximately HK$400,000,000. The net
proceeds of the Share Subscription were approximately HK$999.4
million, HK$919.4 million of which had been utilised as follows:
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HK$" million
BEATT

1. Provision of brokerage service and corporate finance 1. IREELRERLERE
() securities brokerage and margin financing; () BHEELEKAFERE: 130.0
(i) investment; and iy ®E: & 39.4
(iii)  corporate finance division (i) TEMEDE 20.0
2. Expansion of asset management business 2. BEEEEWRE 180.0
3. Expansion of money lending business 3. BEEXBKHEE 250.0
4. General working capital 4. —HEEE® 300.0
919.4

Save for the HK$80.0 million dedicated to the corporate finance
division which has yet been utilised, all net proceeds of the Share
Subscription have been used for the intended uses as set out in the
Circular. The unutilised net proceeds was deposited with the banks in
Hong Kong.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2019: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group'’s financial conditions, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group
are discussed in this section. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those illustrated below, which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
become material in the future. Furthermore, risks can never be
eliminated completely due to the inherent limitations in measures
taken to address them. Nevertheless, risks may be accepted for
strategic reasons or if they are deemed not cost-effective to mitigate.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of financial loss or reputational damage
resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems. Responsibility for managing the Group’s operational risks
rests with every function at both divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and a reporting framework. The Group
will identify and assess key operational exposures and report such risk
issues to the senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk responses can be taken.

Industry Risk

The financial services business of the Group is subject to extensive
regulations. Among others, operating subsidiaries such as Glory Sun
Securities Limited and Glory Sun Asset Management Limited are
obliged to operate in accordance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the "SFO"). The Group is required to ensure
consistent compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and
guidelines and satisfy the relevant regulatory authorities that it
remains fit and proper to be licensed. If there is any change or
tightening of relevant laws, regulations and guidelines, the Group
will face a higher compliance requirement for its business activities.
In addition, if the Group fails to comply with the applicable rules and
regulations from time to time, it may face fines or restrictions on its
business activities or even suspension or revocation of some or all of
its licenses for operating the financial services business. Furthermore,
the financial services business, like all other businesses of the Group,
is not immune from market changes. Any downturn in the financial
market may also adversely affect the financial services business of the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The automation business of the Group operates in a highly
competitive environment. The Group faces fierce competition from
global technology companies and rapid technological changes which
may render technologies developed and employed by the Group
obsolete. As such, the Group'’s products may lose its competitiveness,
adversely affecting the Group's ability to maintain its market share.
Failure to maintain the Group’s competitive position may lead to a
material adverse effect on the results and profit margins of these
business segments. Furthermore, the current trade war between the
PRC and the US may have an impact on the business environment in
the PRC. The Group is prepared to pay close attention to market
conditions and will establish a contingency plan if the trade war
persists over a period of time.

The securities investment business of the Group is sensitive to market
conditions and fluctuations in the prices of the securities held by the
Group. Any significant downturn in the securities market may affect
the mark to market value of the Group’s securities investments and
may adversely affect the results of the Group.

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to various
financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks. The
changes in the currency environment and interest rate cycles may
significantly affect the Group's financial position and results of its
operations in the PRC.

The Group’s earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business
objectives may be adversely affected by movements in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. In particular, any
depreciation in the Group’s functional currency may affect its gross
profit margin. The Group closely monitors the relative foreign
exchange positions of its assets and liabilities and allocates its
holdings of different currencies accordingly in order to minimise
foreign currency risk.

The Group may be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In managing liquidity risk,
the Group monitors its cash flows and maintains an adequate level of
cash and credit facilities to enable it to finance its operations and
reduce the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group is subject to credit risk from its clients. To minimise risk,
new clients will undergo stricter credit evaluation, while the Group
continuously monitors its existing clients to further improve its risk
control measures.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The competition for human resources in the countries that the Group
operates in may result in the Group not being able to attract and
retain key personnel with the desired skills, experience and levels of
competence. The Group will continue to provide remuneration
packages and incentive plans to attract, retain and motivate suitable
candidates and personnel.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of gauging and responding
promptly to market changes within the sectors that it operates in.
Any failure to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy
to such changes accordingly may have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s business, financial position, results of operations and
prospects.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Jianhui (BkZZ#8), aged 49, has been the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since August 2015. He serves
as a director to multiple subsidiaries of the Company. He also serves
as the chairman of each of the Nomination Committee, Strategic
Committee and Investment Committee of the Company and is a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yao completed a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the South China of Technology. He has held senior
management positions with a number of enterprises across a wide
range of industries, including food, construction materials, real
estate, commerce, agriculture and forestry, logistics, technology and
finance. He was appointed as an executive director of Glory Sun Land
Group Limited (Stock Code: 00299.HK) (“Glory Sun Land”) in
December 2018. He was the general manager and chairman of the
board of directors of Baocheng Investment Co., Ltd. (Stock Code:
600892.SH, currently known as Dasheng Times Cultural Investment
Co., Ltd.) ("Baocheng Investment”) from July 2010 to October
2014. He acted as the executive vice president of Shenzhen Baoneng
Investment Group Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Baoneng Investment”)
from March 2002 to March 2003.

Mr. Lau Wan Po (2I& ), aged 45, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in July 2018 and re-designated as
an Executive Director in March 2019. He also serves as a member of
each of the Strategic Committee and Investment Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’s degree in Science from the City University
of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Finance from Curtin
University of Technology. He has extensive experience in the
investment banking industry focusing in the areas of initial public
offering, merger and acquisition, corporate restructuring and
professional financial advisory services to listed companies in Hong
Kong. He was an executive director of Glory Sun Land from April
2016 to November 2016 and a non-executive director from
November 2016 to May 2019. He was a non-executive director of
Huabang Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 03638.HK) from
January 2017 to March 2017, the vice chairman and an executive
director from March 2017 to June 2018 and a non-executive director
from June 2018 to October 2018. He was the chairman of Huabang
Securities Limited from December 2015 to February 2019. He served
as the managing director of each of Haitong International Capital
Limited and Haitong International Capital (HK) Limited from January
2010 to November 2015. He acted as an executive director and head
of investment banking division of CMB International Capital Holdings
Corporation Limited from August 2008 to January 2010.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS
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Mr. Li Minbin (Z80R), aged 40, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2015 and re-designated as an
Executive Director in November 2015. He has been the Vice President
of the Company since January 2016. He serves as a director to
multiple subsidiaries of the Company. He also serves as a member of
each of the Strategic Committee and Investment Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Li obtained the Master's degree of Business Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has comprehensive
experience in operation and management of logistics, real estate,
investment and financial industries. He was an executive director of
Glory Sun Land from December 2018 to May 2019. He served as the
supervisor, assistant to general manager and representative of
securities affair of Baocheng Investment from July 2010 to March
2014 and acted as director and secretary to the board of directors of
Baocheng Investment from March 2014 to March 2016. He served as
the assistant to manager of the investment department of Shenzhen
Shum Yip Logistics Group Holdings Co., Ltd.* CHRIIEZE YT & B K
B BBRAA]) from July 2004 to July 2010. He served as the manager
of the securities department of Shenzhen Baoneng Investment from
December 2007 to October 2008.

Mr. Huang Wei (Z4&), aged 46, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in August 2015, re-designated as a Non-
executive Director in November 2015 and further re-designated as an
Executive Director in November 2018. He also serves as a member of
the Investment Committee of the Company.

Mr. Huang obtained a Master’s degree in Economics from the Hunan
University. He has over 20 years of experience in investment and
financing industries. He has served as the senior vice president of
Shenzhen Baoneng Investment since December 2013. He served as
the vice manager of the department of personal housing loan of the
Shenzhen branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from
August 2002 to November 2004, the vice general manager of the
corporate financing management centre from November 2004 to
September 2008, the general manager of the department of
corporate financing management from September 2008 to February
2012 and the general manager of the department of institutional
banking from January 2013 to December 2013.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Chi (3&3k), aged 32, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in July 2017 and re-designated as a Non-
executive Director in August 2019. He also serves as a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Zhang graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws from the
Shenzhen University and obtained a Master’'s degree of Science in
Management from New York University. He is experienced in fund
investment. He served as an officer in the investment department in
Shenzhen Sichuang Technology Development Co. Ltd.* (&I B AIR}
FEER AR AR from January 2013 to June 2013. He worked in
Shenzhen Creative Investment Group Limited* CEJITAIFIR L =E
BBRAFA]) and served as an intern in the fund management
headquarter from September 2015 to April 2016, an officer in the
fund management headquarter since April 2016, and has acted as an
investment manager in a management headquarter managing a
Government Guide Fund since October 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chun Bong (E#&x#B), aged 62, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since November 2009. He
also serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a range of
positions regarding the provision of assurance, taxation, accounting
and financial management services, which the Company believes will
enhance in the overall financial control and management of the
Group.
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Mr. Wong holds a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He has been an independent non-
executive director of Glory Sun Land since December 2018 and an
independent non-executive director of Guangzhou R&F Properties
Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 02777.HK) since May 2017. He is the founder
of a firm of certified public accountants in Hong Kong, a member of
the Council of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a fellow
member of each of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, an ex-member of
the Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the ex-
Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in Hong Kong.

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew (Z=E] %), aged 61, PhD, has
been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
November 2009. He also serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Strategic Committee of the Company.

Professor Lee is the Vice-President (Development & External Relations)
and Chair Professor of Information Systems & E-Commerce at the
City University of Hong Kong, and he is also a member of the
University Court and University Senate. He has been an independent
non-executive director of Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 00046.HK) since April 1998. He is the Chairman
of the Hong Kong Committee for Pacific Economic Cooperation
(HKCPEC) and a member of the Hong Kong Deposits Protection
Board.

Graduated from a number of world-class universities, Professor Lee
has obtained the following qualifications: BEng, MBA (University of
Sheffield), MSc (University of Oxford), PhD in Computer Science
(University of Manchester), LLB, and LLM in Commercial & Corporate
Law (University of London). He qualified as a Barrister-at-Law in Hong
Kong and England and Wales, and is a Chartered Engineer (UK
Engineering Council), and a professional member of the British
Computer Society.
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Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie (Z33#), aged 55, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since November
2015. He also serves as a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Mr. Lee received his Bachelor’s degree in Laws and Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1988 and
1989 respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
1991 and in England and Wales in 1997.

Mr. Lee is currently a consultant at Messrs. Howse Williams. He was a
partner of Messrs. Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo from April 2001 to February
2011. Mr. Lee successively served as a manager and a senior manager
in the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong from
December 1992 to April 1994. He serves as an independent non-
executive director to multiple listed companies in Hong Kong,
including Embry Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 01388.HK) since
November 2006, NetDragon Websoft Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
00777 .HK) since June 2008, Newton Resources Ltd. (Stock Code:
01231.HK) since December 2010, Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 06868.HK) since August 2011, China
BlueChemical Ltd. (Stock Code: 03983.HK) since June 2012, Red Star
Macalline Group Corporation Ltd. (Stock Code: 01528.HK) since
February 2015, FSE Services Group Limited (Stock Code: 00331.HK)
since November 2015 and Ten Pao Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 01979.HK) since November 2015.

In the previous three years, Mr. Lee was an independent non-
executive director of Futong Technology Development Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 00465.HK) from November 2009 to November
2017, Asia Cassava Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00841.
HK) from January 2009 to May 2018 and Landsea Green Properties
Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 00106.HK) from July 2013 to June 2020.
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KEY PERSONNELS

Mr. Ho Ka Yiu, Simon ({A&#), aged 42, was appointed as the
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company in
December 2018. Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Ho has nearly 20 years of experience in auditing, professional
accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the Company,
he worked in several international audit firms and served as a chief
financial officer, company secretary and authorised representative in
a listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Kam Yun Kwong, Dick (H3#>), aged 56, is the founder of
Gallant Tech Limited which was established in 2006. Mr. Kam joined
the Group in January 2012. Mr. Kam is currently the General
Manager of Gallant Tech Limited and is responsible for driving the
business of the Group’s Automation platform. Mr. Kam has over 24
years of experience in equipment distribution business and has
developed very strong business network in the PRC with sound
knowledge in surface mount technology (“SMT") and electronics
assembly process. He was the General Manager in American Tec Co
Ltd. before the setup of his own business. Mr. Kam obtained a
Higher Certificate in Electronic Engineer from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He was granted an IMBA degree from the
Victoria University of Wellington in New Zealand.

*  For identification purpose only
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company since
the publication of the 2019 annual report of the Company required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set

out below:

Name of Directors

ExpE

DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS
FHEAERAE

EEENBE

BIE EMMAIFE13.51BMN) G 2T - ARFIE
FHEEAARNG - NFFRTIBARZE
EERZEEHNMT ¢

Details of Changes
BEEE

Executive Directors
HITES
Ms. Ye Weiging

Independent Non-executive Director
BYFHTES
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie

ML

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules. The

Resigned as an executive director and ceased to be a member of each of
the Investment Committee and Strategic Committee of the Company on
2 June 2020

R-ZE-ZEFRA_HBERRARTERTL ITEREREZESR
BREEGZEBMKE °

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Landsea Green
Properties Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 00106.HK, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange) (“Landsea”) and ceased to be a member of each of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of Landsea with effect
from 19 June 2020

BRI P E T A RIBAFHE M EF R A R (M5 - 00106.HK) ([ B3
FDZENRTES  UDRTHAMFGERZESNIERZES
KB BZZEZTF AT BARBER-

B EXFTIRERSN  BEE M ERARE LR
AIE 13 51BMIRZREM TIARE - ARRE

updated biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set FEZBHMBREFBFHN EX[EERFEAE]
out in the preceding section headed “Directors and Key Personnels”. —ffi o
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of Glory Sun Financial
Group Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A business review of the Group during the year under review and a
discussion on the Group's future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2020 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 11 to 22 and the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 23 to 32 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2020 using financial performance indicators is provided in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
23 to 32 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 87.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the
2021 annual general meeting:

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration:
4:30 p.m., Friday, 28 May 2021

Closure of register of members:
Monday, 31 May 2021 to Thursday, 3 June 2021

(both days inclusive)

Record Date:
Thursday, 3 June 2021
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In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 annual general
meeting, all transfer of share(s), accompanied by the relevant share
certificate(s) with the properly completed transfer form(s) either
overleaf or separately, must be lodged with the branch share registrar
and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than the respective latest
dates and time set out above.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the past five financial years, as
extracted from the consolidated financial statement, and restated as
appropriate, is set out on the inside front cover. This summary does
not form part of the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made external
donations of approximately HK$240,125 (2019: HK$16,600).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save for the placing of new shares under general mandate
mentioned above and the disposal of 222,816,000 shares of the
Company by a subsidiary of Glory Sun Land Group Limited on 24
December 2020, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries,
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 89.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (“Companies Law") of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$3,368.1 million (2019: HK$3,110.9 million). No
dividend (2019: nil) has been proposed for the year. Under the
Companies Law, HK$5,064.6 million as of 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$4,824.6 million) is distributable from share premium account of
the Company to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend, if any, is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
Company'’s share premium account may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, 22.8% (2019: 71.3%) of the Group’s revenue and
40.2% (2019: 39.1%) of the Group's purchases, were attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers,
respectively; and 8.0% (2019: 35.4%) of the Group's revenue and
15.1% (2019: 12.9%) of the Group's purchases were attributable to
the Group's largest customer and supplier, respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yao Jianhui (Chairman)
Ms. Ye Weiging (Co-Chairman)
(resigned as Executive Director on 2 June 2020)
Mr. Lau Wan Po (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Li Minbin
Mr. Huang Wei

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Zhang Chi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the current Directors of the Company are
set out on pages 33 to 37 of the annual report and can be found on
the Company'’s website.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All of the executive Directors and non-executive Director had
respectively entered into a service contracts with the Company.
Details of the service contracts include: (1) a term of directorship for
three years with effect from the date of appointment, reappointment
or re-election; and (2) the contracts shall be terminated according to
the terms of each contract.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors had signed a letter
of appointment with the Company. Details of the letter of
appointments mainly include: (1) a term of directorship for three
years with effect from the date of appointment, reappointment or re-
election; and (2) the letter of appointment shall be terminated
according to the terms of each letter of appointment.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in Notes 12 and 10, respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
Group's results.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As of 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii)
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company

HFE RN

EERTETHRABREALQAR
i ﬁ@ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%i%éﬁ%ﬁ

HE-Z-ZTF+-_A=+—H ARFES
&IETTB{/\EX& ZENBMEBAREAT
S E TR FREE B (E & B F R E S (%
HRE KA ) FEXVID) Bk - Bk
BHEZERERETR - (VREESRBAEK
EXVEE 7 R8BS AR E] MR ¢ 2k (ii)
BIBEH R EIEF 5352 (BN & LM
WA FERARE (i) BE TR B8 1
sl E BT AESETEFRR HNEESTE

(TR )) - A 7 RS 5 2 s
EHAWT -

Eé‘zﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁszgé,ﬁiiﬁ

Approximate
percentage of
shares in issue

Capacity in which interests Interests Total interests as at 31
Name of Director in shares are held in shares in shares December 2020
BE-2-%F
+=ZA=+—-H
v A7 ERITREH
BEx£B RRBHEEERNED BEER HEER BAEI
(Note 1)
(B 1)
Yao Jianhui Beneficial owner 44,468,000 (L) 14,839,411,600 (L) 47.28
HhEE BEREAA
Interest in controlled corporation 14,794,943,600 (L)
bR (Note 2)
(MEE2)
Note 1: As at 31 December 2020, the total issued share capital of the Company MizE1: BE-ZE-TFE+_A=+—8  ARQFE2&TK
amounted to 31,387,512,211 shares. 4R A 31,387,512,211 % °
Note 2: As at 31 December 2020, these shares were beneficially owned by (i) Tinmark fizr2: HE-_Z-_ZTE+_A=+—H  ZZERH D33
Development Limited being interested in 10,494,943,600 shares in the i Tinmark Development Limited Bz A + H R4
Company and (ii) Bao Xin Development Limited being interested in AR)HEA 10,494,943,600 fE RS Dt RS - M (i) R E #T

4,300,000,000 shares in the Company respectively. As (i) Tinmark Development
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Yao Jianhui (“Mr. Yao") and (ii) Bao Xin
Development Limited is wholly owned by Bao Xin International Group Limited,
which in turn is wholly owned by Tinmark Development Limited, Mr Yao as the
chairman of the Company is deemed to be interested in the shares owned by
Tinmark Development Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Abbreviations: “L" stands for long position

BEARAFAE=ER EEAARLQF
4,300,000,000 % f% 17 & # i o 1 72 3) Tinmark
Development Limited Rk IESE A ([BREE]) 2 &
BER(NEFERARAFHEFEEEEEGRA
AIZEAHA  MBEHBEREESBR AR HTinmark
Development Limited 2 E %A - IRBEFHFRAE K
KR EEAAR QB EF 0 AR B R Tinmark
Development Limited A B IR R B 2 o

BEw U RTREFR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES IN THE
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION OF THE COMPANY

EERTRARNAQABEDNT
R RMEERD 2 EREXA

all

Interests and short positions in shares and NN BRI EEE N T E%ﬁ%iﬂz% ER
underlying shares of Glory Sun Land Group Limited, A TMKRHARAEBEKRO ZEREXE
an associated corporation of the Company
Approximate
percentage of
shares in issue
Capacity in which interests Interests Total interests as at 31
Name of Director in shares are held in shares in shares December 2020
BE-2-%F
+=A=+-A
R R ERITRAN
EEEE RBRBFEERZNEH BEER AR R BHBE
(Note 1)
(BTzE1)
Yao Jianhui Beneficial owner 1,314,000 (L)  3,146,858,700 (L) 69.16
wkiErE EmBEA
Interest in controlled corporation  3,145,544,700 (L)
RiEH R (Note 2)
(BTzE2)
Li Minbin Beneficial owner 306,500 (L) 306,500 (L) 0.01
HOH EmBEA
Zhang Chi Beneficial owner 1,220,000 (L) 1,220,000 (L) 0.03
o 5t EnBEAA
Note 1: As at 31 December 2020, the total issued share capital of Glory Sun Land ~ KizE1: BE-Z-_ZTF+_A=+—0 EFSHEEE
Group Limited amounted to 4,550,104,797 shares. B2 7E’JE?§TTH§E$%@%(%4,SSO,104,797 B e
Note 2: As at 31 December 2020, these shares were beneficially owned by (i) Hong a2 BE-ZE-ZTF+_A=+—8  ZZERHHHG)

Kong Bao Xin Asset Management Limited being interested in 3,124,415,652
shares in Glory Sun Land Group Limited and (i) Glory Sun Securities Limited
being interested in 21,129,048 shares in Glory Sun Land Group Limited
respectively. As (i) Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset Management Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and (i) Glory Sun Securities Limited is a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in which the Company holds an
effective interest of 89.94%, and (iii) Mr Yao is a controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, Mr Yao is deemed to be
interested in the shares in Glory Sun Land Group Limited held by the Company

by virtue of the SFO.

Abbreviations:
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“L" stands for long position.
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Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO; or (i) to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or; or (iii) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Scheme (as defined in the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY " below), at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2020 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executives of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. Save
for the disclosed, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised any such
right during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director,
other officer and auditor shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him/her as a Director, Auditor or other officer of the
Company about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company.

HFE RN

BREXBEEN B2 _ZTF+_A
Zt+—B BERARATETHRAENES
& BB E A ER A D B sk AT A 58 A E
(EERBHFLBEEHIEXVED) R - +8E8
BDRESD - () IBIEESF RIS EGIE XV
FIRSIEEBMARR LB (i) ER
SR EME B LR B RS E AR AR IR 5 & 2
EIEPIE 352 R EMFENZELMA - ki)
RIEIZHET AR F B AE AR a) M B P e
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following, not being a Director or the chief executives of the
Company, have an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and are recorded in the register kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO:

Interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company

TERRREMATARG RIEE
Rz EHREXE

HE_T-_ZF+_A=+—8 ' LA
o U TAFERRFEETHITHREHHALIR
BESRHEENEXVEE2 REIIENETE
AR BEERAERR BRI ABBEIR D R HE
MR SOR B - IBIBEEF KA EEHIE 336 K
U FERAARZERME

RATRORABRRONESZR AR

Approximate
percentage of
shares in issue

Capacity in which interests Number of as at 31
Name of Shareholder in shares are held shares held  December 2020
BE-2-%F
+=HA=t—H
ERITRAN
BREE RBRBFEERZNEH BERBHE BHBE D
(Note 1)
(FEED)
Tinmark Development Limited Beneficial owner 10,494,943,600 (L) 34.44
EmBEA
Interest in controlled corporation 4,300,000,000 (L) 13.70
e 2kl e ey
Bao Xin International Group Limited Interest in controlled corporation 4,300,000,000 (L) 13.70
EMBREEAR AR PRI RS
Bao Xin Development Limited Beneficial owner 4,300,000,000 (L) 13.70
EMEEBR AR E=#EBA
BB ASRBRHBRAF] Beneficial owner 4,219,560,000 (L) 13.44
EmBEEA
Taiping Assets Management (HK) Investment manager 4,219,560,000 (L) 13.44
Company Limited wE LR (Note 2)
ANEEEER(BA)BRAA (MI7E2)
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Note 1: As at 31 December 2020, the total issued share capital of the Company
amounted to 31,387,512,211 shares.

Note 2: Taiping Assets Management (HK) Company Limited is an investment manager
of BB AFREEMD BB AQF], and is thus deemed to be interested in such
shares.

Abbreviations: “L" stands for long position.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2020, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group's eligible employees in the PRC, and a
mandatory provident fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

On 2 June 2020, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) and the major terms of the Share Option
Scheme were summarised as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was (i) to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; (ii) to provide additional incentives to
employees; and (iii) to promote the long term financial success
of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
its shareholders.
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(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

50

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may at its
absolute discretion grant options to any employee of the
Company or its subsidiaries (including any director, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of
the Company or its subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time
employment with the Company or its subsidiaries at the time
when an option is granted to such employee, or any person
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or
may contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
3,138,751,221, representing approximately 10% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company as of the date of this
report.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in
issue, unless approved by the shareholders in the manner as
stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which may commence on the date on which the offer for the
grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of the grant of the option subject
to the provisions for early termination thereof. No minimum
period for which the option must be held before it can be
exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.
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(9)

(h)
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The subscription price per Share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option granted
under the Share Option Scheme is such price as determined by
the Board at the time of the grant of the options, but in any
case the subscription price shall not be lower than the higher
of:

o the closing price of the share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date on which the options are offered, which must be a
business day;

o the price being the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which the options are offered; and

. the nominal value of a share on the date on which the
options are offered.

Payment on acceptance of option

A non-refundable sum of HK$1 or other amount as determined
by the Board by way of consideration for the grant of an option
is required to be paid by each of the grantee upon acceptance
of the granted option.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years from its adoption date (i.e. 2 June 2020). The Share
Option Scheme will terminate or expire (as the case may be) on
the earlier of (i) the approval of the shareholders in a general
meeting, and (ii) at the close of business on the day
immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of the adoption
date (the “Share Option Scheme Period").

After the Share Option Scheme Period, the Company cannot
grant new options but for so long as there are options granted
but not yet exercised, outstanding vested or unvested options,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in full force and effect of
such outstanding vested or unvested options or otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.
As at the date of this report, no option had been granted by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF GLORY SUN LAND
GROUP LIMITED

2014 Share Option Scheme

On 26 March 2014, Glory Sun Land Group Limited (stock code:
00299.HK) (“Glory Sun Land”) adopted a new share option scheme
(the "2014 Share Option Scheme”) and the major terms of the
2014 Share Option Scheme were summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

52

Purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme was (i) to
attract and retain the best quality personnel for the
development of the businesses of Glory Sun Land; (i) to provide
additional incentives to employees, consultants, agents,
representatives, advisers, suppliers of goods or services,
customers, contractors, business allies and joint venture
partners; and (iii) to promote the long term financial success of
Glory Sun Land by aligning the interests of option holders to its
shareholders.

Participants of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the 2014 Share Option Scheme, Glory Sun Land
may at its absolute discretion grant options to any employee,
consultant, service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-
venture partner of Glory Sun Land or its subsidiaries (including
any director, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not, of Glory Sun Land or its subsidiaries) who
is in full-time or part-time employment with Glory Sun Land or
its subsidiaries at the time when an option is granted to such
employee, or any person who, in the sole discretion of the
board, have contributed or may contribute to Glory Sun Land
and its subsidiaries.
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(c)

(d)

(e)
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Total number of shares available for issue under
the 2014 Share Option Scheme

The total number of shares may be granted under the 2014
share Option Scheme is 24,691,756 shares after adjustments
for share subdivision in 2015 and share consolidation in 2017,
which represents 0.54% of the total number of shares in issue
at the date of this report.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2014 Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of Glory Sun Land shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in
issue, unless approved by the shareholders of Glory Sun Land in
the manner as stipulated in the 2014 Share Option Scheme.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the 2014 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the directors of Glory Sun Land
to each grantee, which may commence on the date on which
the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
No minimum period for which the option must be held before
it can be exercised is specified in the 2014 Share Option
Scheme.
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(d)

(e)
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6]

(9)

(h)
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The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option granted
under the 2014 Share Option Scheme is such price as
determined by the board of Glory Sun Land at the time of the
grant of the options, but in any case the subscription price shall
not be lower than the higher of:

o the closing price of the share as stated in the daily
guotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date on which the options are offered, which must be a
business day;

o the price being the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which the options are offered; and

. the nominal value of a share on the date on which the
options are offered.

Payment on acceptance of option

A non-refundable sum of HK$10 or other amount as
determined by the board of Glory Sun Land by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is required to be paid
by each of the grantee upon acceptance of the granted option.

Duration of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

The 2014 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from its adoption date (i.e. 26 March 2014).
The 2014 Share Option Scheme will terminate or expire (as the
case may be) on the earlier of (i) the approval of the
shareholders of Glory Sun Land in a general meeting, and (ii) at
the close of business on the day immediately preceding the
tenth anniversary of the adoption date (the “2014 Share
Option Scheme”).
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After the 2014 Share Option Scheme period, Glory Sun Land
cannot grant new options but for so long as there are options
granted but not yet exercised, outstanding vested or unvested
options, the 2014 Share Option Scheme will remain in full force
and effect of such outstanding vested or unvested options or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the 2014
Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this report, a total of
31,100,000 share options (after adjustments for share
subdivision in 2015 and share consolidation in 2017) had been
granted by Glory Sun Land under the 2014 Share Option
Scheme. The number of outstanding share options as at 31
December 2020 is nil.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the Group's Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director and
Independent Non-Executive Directors has confirmed that none of
them is engaged in, or interested in any business which, directly or
indirectly, competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as of the
date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee was established on 28 November 2009 with
written terms of reference set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”). The principal duties of the audit committee
includes the review of the Group's financial reporting matters, risk
management and internal control procedures.

At present, the Audit Committee comprises one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhang Chi and two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chun Bong and Professor Lee Kwok On,
Matthew, of which Mr. Wong Chun Bong is the Chairman.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters,
including the review of the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited
by the Company’s independent auditor, BDO Limited.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the auditors of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

YAO lJianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. An internal corporate governance policy was adopted by
the Board aiming at providing greater transparency, quality of
disclosure as well as more effective risk management and internal
control. The execution and enforcement of the Company’s corporate
governance system is monitored by the Board under its terms of
reference as formally adopted on 2 November 2015, including but
not limited to the development and review of the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and to ensure their
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and to review
and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior members of the Company.

In line with the best corporate governance practice, the Company
has established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee, a
Nomination Committee, a Strategic Committee and an Investment
Committee. The Board and all subordinate committees evaluate and
monitor their respective effectiveness on a regular basis in accordance
with their terms of reference.

The Company believes that its commitment to high standard practices
will translate into long-term value and ultimately making returns to
shareholders. The Company’s management pledges to building
longer-term interests for shareholders via, for example, conducting
business in a socially responsible and professional manner.

The Board procedures are in compliance with the articles of
association (the “Articles”) of the Company as well as relevant rules
and regulations. For the year ended 31 December 2020, there were
no significant changes to the Articles.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY &
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group is determined to be a good corporate citizen by fulfilling
its corporate social responsibilities and contributing to the society for
the good of the community. In 2020, the Group provided donations
to worthwhile organisations that help the needy and participated in
various charitable activities. Meanwhile, it cares for its employees by
providing safe and healthy working environment and regularly
hosting events and activities for the employees to benefit from work-
life balance.
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The Group encourages its employees to minimise the use of paper by
using e-files. While ensuring the observance of high level of
confidentiality, employees are prompted to use reusable papers. The
Group has largely replaced its lighting systems from metal halide
lamps to light-emitting diode (LED) energy-saving lighting to reduce
carbon emissions.

Details of the environmental policies and performance of the Group
are disclosed in the 2020 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report to be published in compliance with the requirements under
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
with a view to enhancing the management of the Company as well
as preserving the interests of the shareholders as a whole. During the
year under review, the Board is of the view that the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, except the deviations disclosed herein.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Yao Jianhui (“Mr. Yao")
currently assumes the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The Company deviates from this
provision as it believes that by holding both roles, Mr. Yao will be
able to provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership. It
allows for more effective and efficient business planning and
decisions as well as execution of long-term business strategies of the
Group. As such, the structure is beneficial to the business prospects
of the Group. Furthermore, the Company’s present management
structure comprises sufficient number of independent non-executive
directors and all major decisions are made after consultation with the
Board, appropriate Board Committees and key personnel. The Board,
therefore, believes that a balance of power and authority have been
and will continue to be maintained.
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THE BOARD

The Board provides leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities,
overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and financial
performances. The Board has delegated its powers to the
management for the Group’s daily management and operations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an audit committee, a remuneration
committee, a nomination committee, a strategic committee and an
investment committee with clearly defined written terms of
reference. Each committee reports to the Board on its decisions or
recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on
its ability to do so.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 November
2009, with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review
and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting matters, risk
management and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee
comprises one non-executive director, namely Mr. Zhang Chi and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Chun
Bong and Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, of which Mr. Wong
Chun Bong is the Chairman. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
approved the preliminary announcement of the Group’s results for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28
November 2009, with written terms of reference consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include considering and recommending to the Board on
the appointment of all the Directors. The Nomination Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Yao Jianhui, Mr. Wong Chun
Bong and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie, of which Mr. Yao Jianhui is the
Chairman. During the year, the Nomination Committee has duly
discharged the above duties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28
November 2009, with written terms of reference consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of the
Remuneration Committee include determining and reviewing the
remuneration packages of all the Directors and senior management
of the Company. The senior management of the Company comprises
only the Executive Directors of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely Professor Lee Kwok
On, Matthew, Mr. Yao Jianhui and Mr. Wong Chun Bong, of which
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew is the Chairman. During the year,
the Remuneration Committee has duly discharged the above duties.

Strategic Committee

The Company has established the Strategic Committee on 28 March
2012. The principal duties of the Strategic Committee include
considering and recommending to the Board on the Group’s business
strategies and investment opportunities. The Strategic Committee
comprises four members, namely Mr. Yao Jianhui, Mr. Lau Wan Po,
Mr. Li Minbin and Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, of which Mr.
Yao Jianhui is the Chairman. During the year, the Strategic
Committee has duly discharged the above duties.

Investment Committee

The Company has established Investment Committee on 26 August
2016. The principal duties of the Investment Committee include the
consideration of the proposals regarding investment, fundraising,
acquisition and disposal made by the Company and its subsidiaries.
The Investment Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Yao
Jianhui, Mr. Lau Wan Po, Mr. Li Minbin and Mr. Huang Wei, of which
Mr. Yao Jianhui is the Chairman. During the year, the Investment
Committee has duly discharged the above duties.
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT VARIOUS

MEETINGS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The attendance of individual members of the Board at Board
meetings, meetings of the Board Committees and general meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2020, as well as the number of
such meetings held, are set out as follows:
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BE_Z_THFE+_A=t—HULEFE E=F
SENKELEEFEEER EFLZEIER
ERBRREZHER  URBTEEEZEZH
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Audit  Nomination Remuneration Strategic  Investment General
Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
ENZEE R#ZEE HMZEE HKZEE REZEE
g% Ezees EE EE EE EE g%  RRA®
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Yao Jianhui BEErsE 44 n 2 0/0 11 n
Ms. Ye Weiging (Note 1) ERELL(MH) N W), n
Mr. Lau Wan Po HERRE 44 0/0 111 n
Mr. Li Minbin FHHLE 4/4 000 111 n
Mr. Huang Wei BERE 44 11
Non-Executive Director ~ F#1{TEE
Mr. Zhang Chi RakE 44 313 1111 1/1
Independent Non- BUkHAES
Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Bong TRALE 44 33 101 22 11
Professor Lee Kwok On, FERHR
Matthew 44 33 20 0/0 17n
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie ~ Z#if %4 414 1/1 11
Notes: B 5E
1. Ms. Ye Weiqing resigned as Executive Director on 2 June 2020. 1. HEBFRITR_TTF A _ABENTES -
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEEZTLEE
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the EFEERMNEFEEZIILBE AR HAE

approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered
that diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

HEEFSZLENNE - ARBRBR/ATERS
THEEEREFTEXNEZ L BREENR
KR Fik - XERBEES  BELER -
REERHE EFEMAZERARARS S
JRAI - WIEE RIREARSUREER T DB R
EERZ s -

61

Annual Report &3 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

B BB

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits of the selected candidates and their contribution to the Board.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each
newly appointed Director or alternate Director would receive
materials covering the Group’s businesses and director’s duties and
responsibilities. The Company provides the Directors with market
news and regulatory updates for them to understand the latest
development of regulatory and compliance issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors participated
in the following trainings:

EERIE AN — RIS TR AEE B
EETERER . 5 MERHEEE &
L0 - R ABRRBER o BRERTR

EEEREANBH LA AEZTEHRNE
BAM{E

ESRIIREERE

EENATHASERE BEHZINES
FEFEEHN LERESRENMEAEEE
BHERLREERENEE - ARARANEER
HHBHESERER - WEETREEREE
MR EN SRR -

BE_ZZFT_A=t—HLHFE E=F
//\LATiE.SJII

Directors Types of training
2= g
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yao Jianhui Wi pE o A A, B
Mr. Lau Wan Po BIEHEE A, B
Mr. Li Minbin TR LA A B
Mr. Huang Wei mESLSE A, B
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Zhang Chi st 7 A A B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFBTES
Mr. Wong Chun Bong FIRAEE A B
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR A, B
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie ES Sy A, B
A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A: LR g R ek SmiE
B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, latest ~ B: MEARAE MR EFEHRER bEE
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, AERERE  AMRESEH
and etc.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct of the Group regarding
securities transactions of the Directors. All Directors have confirmed
that throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, they have
complied with the provisions of the Model Code.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company, with a term of directorship for 3
years with effect from the date of appointment, reappointment or re-
election. Upon the expiry of the aforesaid term of 3 years, the
appointments shall be subject to the approval by the Board of the
Company. The term of appointment shall be terminable by either the
Independent Non-Executive Director or the Company by giving the
other party not less than 3 months’ prior notice in writing.

INTERNAL CONTROL
Risk management and internal control report

The Group has established and adopted the “Glory Sun Financial
Group Risk Management System” as a simple and effective
management procedure for all business units. Pursuant to which,
risks were identified, reviewed and prioritised to facilitate resources
allocation for the appropriate risk management. The Group has also
engaged independent consultants to conduct review of the internal
control system of our business segments. The management, through
the framework, also developed clear understanding on the material
risks faced by the Group, which formed the basis for its decision and
project implementation, thereby enabling the Group to deliver better
operating results.

It is the sole responsibility of the Board to build and maintain a
comprehensive and effective risk management and internal control
system for the Group for the purpose of safeguarding shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. Such system is designed to
identify and manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
This risk management and internal control report describes the
structure and major features of the risk management and internal
control system.
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Risk management structure

Based on the different functions performed by each component, the
risk management structure of the Group is organised into three basic
lines of defence under the leadership of the Board, namely the
business departments and subordinate units directly under the
Group; the Risk Management Taskforce; and the Audit Committee
and internal audit.

B EIE RS

RIFSAKRFONBE TR AREHNERE
BHBREND REFTERE TN Z8ELN
R IASEEBEGHMARTBEN : Rk
ERER/E  BRZBERANEE

Functions & Duties

e The right to give guidance and final decision on the risk
management system and risk response plan.

o HBRELIE R E IR HIE LA K B FE ¥ 5 R AEITHE S
BRIORR o

e To monitor the dynamics among staff, corporate
strategy, risk, internal control and compliance.

e EBERBT - MEHE- Rk AEES - SREZE
BECE °

e Monitor the implementation of risk management and
the timely report of outcomes to the Board.

e AEYHEREBENEMBERNETEZE ARKOES
FWEER -

e To review the risk assessment report and review the
effectiveness of the risk management mechanism of the
Group at least once a year.

o BREREHRELZFIEF-ABRIEERRER
T A UL o

e Responsible for the establishment and optimisation of
the risk management framework of the Group and the
supervision and coordination of risk identification,

e RBE
Ultimate Board
responsible body EEy
BREEMEHE
Monitoring Audit Committee and
(third line of defence) Internal Audit
EEER ERZEER
(B=EHR) NEBEET
Management Risk Management
(second line of defence) Taskforce
EEEH EfgEIRET /A
(BB #R)

Implementation
(first line of defence)

Business departments and
subordinate units directly

BITEE under the Group
(E—EEZ) NEE B B EEER
RTBEM
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assessment, mitigation, as well as the risk management
report and presentation.

e AERUYLTEASENEREERR BREEER
WA EE R - ERRTE - EiaEY - D RER
B TR FE R TAE -

e To perform self-review and inspection of the risk
management work by the respective department or its
subordinate units of the Group, so as to identify and
rectify deficiencies in a timely manner.

e BWASEBEMEMNMN TEEUMNAREEIIFETE
ARG - REERRE LR -
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Risk Management Methodology

The Group adopts the enterprise risk management framework of the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in establishing the risk management system, which
illustrates the key elements necessary for managing risks and their
integration at all levels.

The top-down approach is adopted in the Group's risk management
system. This is facilitated by strong oversight exercised by the Board
of Directors, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Taskforce in the establishment and maintenance of the risk
management policy and risk management system. These oversight
components provide leadership and guidance that the business needs
to focus, balance risk and reward and steer the Group to the planned
direction. This approach ensures clarity of the top extreme/high risks
involved in shaping the Group's objectives and performance, supports
risk related decisions at the Board/senior management level and
ensures communication amongst the management teams. It is based
on risk appetite and broad understanding of themes.

The risk assessment comprises of five stages:
1. Risk Identification:

Business departments that directly oversee their respective
processes should identify potential risks of their processes
through daily operations, operating and financial data analysis,
changes in operations, etc. All of the risks identified during the
risk identification process should be input into a risk inventory
which summarizes the risks that the Group is facing. The risk
identification process should be performed at least once a year
to take into account changes in the business environment and
determine whether adjustment to the risk inventory is required.

2. Risk Assessment and Prioritization

Risks in the risk inventory shall be evaluated by business
departments using a predetermined assessment criteria. Both
qualitative and quantitative criteria shall be used to measure
different aspects of the risks. Ratings of 1, 2 and 3 will be
assigned to the risks in the risk inventory after completion of
the assessment. Prioritization will be performed according to
the total score of the risks which indicate their level of
significance. This facilitates the determination of action plan
and timeline for mitigating the risks.
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e KB
3. Risk Response

The risk inventory is submitted to the Risk Management
Taskforce for review. The Risk Management Taskforce is
responsible for assigning risk owners from business
departments to top risk events. The number of risk events
identified as top risks is determined by the Board, Audit
Committee and Risk Management Taskforce depending on the
Group's overall risk appetite.

Risk owners involved in the operations of their respective
processes are responsible for formulating risk mitigation plans
for the top risks assigned to them. They should consider the
risks’ impact and vulnerability when determining the
appropriate risk mitigation plan.

In generally, four types of risk responses can be adopted:
(i) Acceptance:

Risks are considered immaterial and acceptable based on
Group's risk appetite and therefore no action is
considered necessary.

(i) Reduction:

Risks cannot be considered immaterial. Actions have to
be taken to reduce the impact and vulnerability to an
acceptable level.

(iii) ~ Sharing:

Risks cannot be considered immaterial and the Group
cannot effectively reduce the risks to an acceptable level
by itself, therefore a portion of the risks has to be
transferred to or shared with other parties. Common
ways of risks sharing are purchasing of insurance, and
outsourcing.

(iv)  Avoidance:

Risks are so significant that there is no internal nor
external measures available to reduce the risk to an
acceptable level, or the mitigation actions are associated
with unreasonably high costs. Activities giving rise to the
risks should be avoided.

Risk response should at least include the risk owners and risk

mitigation plans, reviewed and approved by the Risk
Management Taskforce before implementation.
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4. Risk Monitoring

Monitoring is a key component of the Group’s risk
management system. It enables the Board, Audit Committee,
Risk Management Taskforce and business departments to
determine whether the system is functioning effectively as they
should and to ensure that risks are identified and
communicated in a timely manner to those responsible for
taking corrective action and to the Board as appropriate.

Risk owners assigned to oversee and manage a particular risk
are responsible for implementing or ensuring the
implementation of risk mitigation plan for the assigned risks.

Annual review on the risk management system should be
performed. The Risk Management Taskforce shall examine
whether all of the required information (i.e. risk event, risk
mitigation plan, reporting frequency and period, responsible
department) have been filled in by the risk owners, and have
been properly supported by supporting documents or other
data if applicable.

5.  Risk Reporting

The Risk Management Taskforce shall report top risks of the
year and the corresponding risk mitigation plans to the Audit
Committee and the Board for endorsement annually. It should
perform the independent review on the risk management
system and report the result to the Audit Committee.

The above risk management system aims at managing but not
eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
Furthermore, the Board will only give reasonable but not absolute
assurance that there will be no material misrepresentation or loss.
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Review on system effectiveness

The review on effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system for 2020 covers the year ended 31 December 2020, in
which the Board has performed annual review on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system of the Group
through the Audit Committee, and was of the opinion that the
existing risk management and internal control system was sufficient
and effective. During the review, the Board has reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience of the audit
and financial reporting function of the Group through the Audit
Committee, and has not identified any material deficiencies. The
Board was not aware of any material issues that may affect the
shareholders and require their attention, and was of the view that
the internal control of the Group was in full compliance with all of
the code provisions relating to internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code.

In conclusion, the Board strives to enhance the risk management and
internal control system of the Group on an on- going basis.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Group shall disclose to the
public any insider information as soon as possible after such
information comes to the attention of the Group, unless such
information is within the scope under any safe harbours provision in
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group will ensure such
information will be kept confidential before it is fully announced to
the public. If the Group considers that the confidentiality required
cannot be kept, or such information may have leaked already, such
information will be disclosed to the public immediately. We also
endeavour to ensure that the information contained in the annual
report shall not be deceptive or misleading in all material aspects,
and there are no other material matters the omission of which would
make the information contained therein to be deceptive or
misleading, such that the insider information disclosed can be made
available to the public in an equal, timely and effective manner.
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In addition, if there occurs any significant risk events, the related
information will be disclosed to appropriate authorities and personnel
in a complete, accurate and timely manner, so that appropriate
decisions and measures can be made and implemented by the Group
to deal with such risk events. Meanwhile, in order to further develop
the risks management culture of the enterprise, as well as to enhance
the risk awareness of our staff, the Group has already rolled out
training programs, so that we can assure to maintain the balance
between business expansion and risk management in our operation.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements of each financial year, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flows for that year. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, approved adoption
of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, made appropriate
judgement and estimates, prepared the financial statements on a
going-concern basis.

The Group has announced its annual results in a timely manner
within the limits of three months after the end of the relevant period,
as laid down in the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of services provided by BDO Limited, the
external auditors of the Company, for the year ended 31 December
2020 is summarised as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the
Directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out
of corporate activities of the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board established a shareholders communication policy in 2014
and made it available on the Company’s website. The policy is subject
to review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Group has established and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders. Annual reports and other corporate
communications are published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. General meetings and investor meetings were
held either face-to-face or via telephone conference. The Group
reports to the shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular
dialogue with investors.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
including email address and postal address, in order for them to
make queries that they may have with respect to the Company. They
can also send their enquiries to the Board by these means. In
addition, shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited,
the share registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries about
their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend. The website of the
Company has also set out details on how shareholders can convene
an extraordinary meeting, and the procedures for shareholders to put
forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting.

The annual general meeting provides an useful forum for
shareholders to exchange their views with the Board.
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SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHTS

()

(i)

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM")

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing by the
shareholder(s) to the Secretary of the Company of not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith
proceed to convene an EGM in accordance with the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves do so but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
General Meeting (“"GM")

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a
resolution at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed
by all of the shareholders concerned and be deposited at 18/F.,
Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the “Company Secretary” no less than six
weeks before the GM in case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and no less than one week before the GM in
case of any other requisitions.
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(iii)

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses giving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned under applicable laws
and rules.

If the requisition is verified to be not in order or the
requisitionists have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet
the Company’s expenses for the said purpose, the
requisitionists will be advised of the result and accordingly, no
action will be taken by the Company in that regard.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may make enquiries or direct concerns to the
Board in writing by addressing for the attention of the
“Company Secretary” by mail at 18/F., Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The auditors of the Company acknowledges its reporting
responsibilities in the auditor’'s report on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

On behalf of the Board

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021
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IBDO

E5% 1 +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
BETHEER11155
JKZRHI2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Glory Sun
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 310, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to notes 4.7, 5B(f) and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group’s investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$9,301,747,000 as at 31 December 2020 and a fair value loss of
approximately HK$607,202,000 was recognised in the “fair value
(loss)/gain on investment properties” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year.

Management has engaged independent professional valuers (the “IP
Management Expert”) to assist the management in performing the
valuation of the Group's investment properties at the end of the
reporting period. Valuations of the Group's investment properties are
dependent on certain key inputs and assumptions that require
significant management judgement. The valuation was inherently
subjective due to the significant estimates used and significant
changes in these estimates could result in material changes to the fair
value of the investment properties.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of investment properties (Continued)
Our response:

Our key procedures in relation to the management’s assessment of
the valuation of investment properties included:

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and the reasonableness of the key assumptions and evaluating
the appropriateness of key input data used in the valuation of
the fair value of the investment properties;

— Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the valuation of
the fair value of the investment properties; and

—  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
IP Management Expert and auditor’s expert.

Impairment assessment of intangible assets

Refer to notes 4.5, 4.9, 4.18, 5B(b), 5B(c) and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group had intangible assets amounted to approximately
HK$273,836,000 as at 31 December 2020. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets was approximately HK$419,802,000.

Management reviewed regularly whether there are any indicators of
impairment of intangible assets with finite lives. The intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are subject to annual impairment review.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of intangible assets
(Continued)

For the purpose of performing impairment tests, all intangible assets
including goodwill have been allocated to its respective cash-
generating units ("CGUs").These CGUs which included goodwill are
tested for impairment at least annually.

Management tests whether intangible assets has suffered any
impairment. For the operating right, management has engaged an
independent professional valuer (the “IA Management Expert”) in
assisting the assessment of the recoverable amounts of these CGUs.
In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant management
judgement was used to determine the underlying key assumptions
and estimations.

Our response:

Our key procedures in relation to the management’s impairment
assessment of intangible assets included:

—  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology in
respect of the assessment of the recoverable amounts;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the underlying key assumptions
used;

—  Evaluating the appropriateness of key input data used in the
assessment of the recoverable amounts;

— Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and
reasonableness of key assumptions for the impairment
assessment of the operation right; and

—  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
IA Management Expert and auditor’s expert.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Assessment of the net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties held
for sale (“Inventories of Properties”)

Refer to notes 4.12, 5B(g), 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group had properties under development and completed
properties held for sale of approximately HK$9,477,577,000 and
HK$2,442,662,000 respectively as at 31 December 2020. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the write-down of Inventories of
Properties recognised was approximately HK$189,921,000.

Inventories of Properties are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The determination of net realisable value involves
significant management judgements and is dependent upon the
management’s assessment of estimated selling prices of these
Inventories of Properties, estimated costs to completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Our response:

Our key procedures in relation to the management’s assessment of
net realisable value of Inventories of Properties included:

— Assessing the appropriateness of the basis of the determination
of net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale, and evaluating the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used by management;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the Group's estimated selling
prices by comparing them to the recent transacted prices and
prices of comparable properties on sample basis; and

—  Assessing, on sample basis, the reasonableness of construction
costs to be incurred to complete the properties under
development estimated by management, based on underlying
documentation such as budgets of development project costs
and existing construction contracts.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans and advances,
trade receivables, other receivables and contract
assets (“Receivables and Contract Assets”)

Refer to notes 4.10(ii), 5B(d), 25, 26, 27(a) and 29 to the
consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had loans and advances, trade
receivables, other receivables and contract assets of approximately
HK$945,940,000, HK$384,856,000, HK$330,839,000 and
HK$68,514,000 respectively after loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL") of approximately HK$5,074,000, HK$3,752,000,
HK$40,151,000 and HK$4,140,000 respectively.

Management performed the assessment on the recoverability of the
Receivables and Contract Assets and the sufficiency of loss allowance
for ECL. Assessment on the recoverability of certain Receivables and
Contract Assets and the sufficiency of the related loss allowance for
ECL are performed with the assistance of an independent
professional valuer (the “ECL Management Expert”).

In carrying out impairment assessment on Receivables and Contract

Assets under the ECL model, significant management judgement was
used to determine the underlying estimations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans and advances,
trade receivables, other receivables and contract
assets (“Receivables and Contract Assets”) (Continued)

Our response:

Our key procedures in relation to the management’s impairment
assessment of Receivables and Contract Assets included:

— Assessing whether the Receivables and Contract Assets had
been appropriately grouped by management based on their
shared credit risk characteristics;

— Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data used by
management and the ECL Management Expert to develop the
historical loss rates and assessing the reliability and relevance of
that data;

— Involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment on the
appropriateness of methodology in determining the historical
loss rates on certain Receivables and Contract Assets;

—  Testing the calculation of ECL provisions applying the ECL rates
to the respective categories of the Receivables and Contract
Assets outstanding at the reporting date; and

—  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
ECL Management Expert and auditor’s expert.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ngai Hang

Practising Certificate Number P04743

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A AR

Notes

i &

Continuing operations

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other gains — net

Other income

Gain on bargain purchase

Loss on remeasurement of pre-existing
interest in an associate

Fair value (loss)/gain on investment
properties

Impairment losses on non-financial assets

Impairment losses on financial assets and
contract assets — net

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

(Loss)/profit from operations
Finance costs — net
Share of results of associates

(Loss)/profit before income tax
from continuing operations

Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued
operations

(Loss)/profit for the year

(Loss)/profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations
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19

13

2020 2019
=E-TF —TNF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
(Re-presented)

(EFHER)

7,826,208 10,887,820
(7,439,498) (8,934,072)
386,710 1,953,748
576,633 23,854
46,131 39,397

- 696,412
- (176,869)
(607,202) 23,935
(454,489) (194,705)
(94,439) (72,908)
(131,362) (74,585)
(355,845) (387,458)
(633,863) 1,830,821
(56,335) (192,483)
16,011 20,631
(674,187) 1,658,969
93,395 (595,443)
(580,792) 1,063,526
- (88,727)
(580,792) 974,799
(217,251) 757,799
- (73,507)
(217,251) 684,292
(363,541) 305,727
- (15,220)
(363,541) 290,507
(580,792) 974,799




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FER FAT
(Re-presented)
(BEFER)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)&=F (580,792) 974,799
Other comprehensive income: Eﬂ’_ﬂ,éﬁ &g
Items that may be reclassified to AJBEE R D E R i
profit or loss: IE g :
Currency translation differences B E R 461,790 (195,962)
Release of exchange reserve upon HEM B A 7)1 RS IE
disposal of subsidiaries & 44 (18,390) 4,674
Share of other comprehensive income SEBE AR HMEE
of associates Wz (45,109) (72,113)
Items that will not be reclassified to B REEH T EE B A
profit or loss: HH :
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of HERYMEERIREME
owner-occupied property to BHEH AR
investment properties 6,442 75,566
— deferred tax arising from — BAEARERLETIE
revaluation thereof - (10,376)
Net change in fair value of equity 5 Tf%iﬁ’&?fﬁﬁ)\ﬁﬂﬁ
investments designated at fair value 1@4& E’JHX%&?E’]
through other comprehensive income N EFE (194,239) (315,667)
Other comprehensive income FREMZERES
for the year 210,494 (513,878)
Total comprehensive income FRAZHEKRAEH
for the year (370,298) 460,921
Total comprehensive income EhHEEZEKRFELE
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ Y =N (129,952) 208,761
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR R 2 (240,346) 252,160
(370,298) 460,921
(Loss)/earnings per share from REFERERKLERE
continuing and discontinued ¥XNER (B8
operations 2R 15
— Basic (HK cents) — EARGEM) (0.71) 2.55
— Diluted (HK cents) — #FE OB (0.71) 2.55
(Loss)/earnings per share from REBELCEEKNER
continuing operations (B8] &F 15
— Basic (HK cents) — EARGEA) (0.71) 2.82
— Diluted (HK cents) — #E OB (0.71) 2.82
Loss per share from discontinued RELLREEKRNER
operations EE 15
— Basic (HK cents) — ZEARGE) N/A (0.27)
— Diluted (HK cents) — #E OB N/A (0.27)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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Notes

i &

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Investments in associates

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Loans and advances

Finance lease receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Derivative financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Properties under development

Completed properties held for sale

Loans and advances

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Derivative financial assets

Finance lease receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Current tax recoverable

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Client trust bank balances

Pledged bank deposits and restricted
deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
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16
17
18
19

20
25
28(BKii)

29
21
36

22
23
24
25
26
27(a)
21
28(B(ii)

29

30

31
31

2020 2019
—EEHF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
564,348 322,671
9,301,747 9,011,837
273,836 726,735
317,524 321,780
478,681 904,840

= 78,000

59,553 61,480
329,316 111,430

= 13,753

49,296 40,019
11,374,301 11,592,545
26,443 23,156
9,477,577 7,855,386
2,442,662 1,146,584
945,940 1,190,715
384,856 321,315
68,514 250,550
32,044 =
64,500 54,173
5,166,222 4,275,164
40,537 20,818
475,056 128,851
254,786 376,677
646,085 889,611
1,724,662 1,313,570
21,749,884 17,846,570
33,124,185 29,439,115




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A 1 IR DL &

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables
Contract liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Consideration payable
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Financial guarantees
Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Other payables
Consideration payable
Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY
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The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2021 and were

signed on its behalf.

Yao Jianhui

w2 g

Chairman
E 3

2020 2019
—E-%F —TNF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Pt ot TER TR
32 3,730,461 4,313,930
27(b) 2,006,206 798,585
33 1,449,490 1,502,480
34 - 300,620
35 6,448,771 6,190,104
28(A) 16,280 5,412
49 - 33,180
309,406 466,631
13,960,614 13,610,942
7,789,270 4,235,628
19,163,571 15,828,173
33 17,660 -
34 163,747 136,019
35 6,943,190 3,690,642
28(A) 103,625 28,698
36 1,073,251 1,211,543
8,301,473 5,066,902
22,262,087 18,677,844
10,862,098 10,761,271
37 3,138,751 2,978,751
38 4,828,230 4,648,403
7,966,981 7,627,154
2,895,117 3,134,117
10,862,098 10,761,271
RAEMBBREACN T —F=A_+_HE

EXRENRETIRY A TIESAARE -

Li Minbin
20

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAHEE AR
Financial assets
atfair value
Merger Capital ~~ Statutory Other  through other Non-
Share Share reserve reserve reserve Treasury reserves comprehensie  Exchange  Retained  controlling Total
capital  premium  (Note 38(a)  (Note 38(b))  (Note 38(c)) share  (Note 38(d)) income reserve reserve eamings interests equity
BATEA
Eft2E
AlffE  AARE  iRER Afs Yk
A ROEE (WiEse) (WE3sb) (M#38e) BRRG (Mse) eREE EXGE  REBRH HREE  EReR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T FhL Tk T Thr T T T T
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H 2,586,981 4,199,301 (215,150) 1241 118547 - (199,138 (2,010602)  (108441)  1,918558 662,287 6,964,754
Profit for the year EFaA - = - - - - - - - 684292 290507 974799
Other comprehensive income: At 2ERE:
Net change in fair value of equity BATEALDZE
instruments at fai value through habEETANR
other comprehensive income TaE2HFE - - - - - - - (29869 = - (16975 (315667)
Share of other comprehensive income of ~ AEEERFLMZE
associates e - - - - - - () - - - - )
Release of other reserve upon step APRBEBRENTZHE
acquisition of an assocate to subsidiary ~ AFEBRE MR - - - - = = 852 = = (852) = =
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal  HiEMBARKBRE
of subsidaries REE = - - - - - - - 4674 - - 4674
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of KaRnEEERED
owner-occupied properties to FEMERRS N
investment properties, net of taxation BRE - - - - - - 57,563 - - - 7627 65,190
Currency translation differences BHREEE = = = = = = 28,282 - (195245) - (28999 (195962
Total other comprehensive income £t 2EHEAE = = - - - - 14584 (986%)  (190,571) (852) (38347 (513879)
Total comprehensive income 2EURAE = - - - - - 14584 (298692)  (190571) 683440 252,160 460,921
Placing of new shares (Note 37(b) REMR (D) 240000 360,000 = = = = = = = = - 600000
Arising from step acquisition (Note 45A(3)) K& 258 (B3
45A(3)) 150,850 324,329 - - - (70,187) - - - - 177,966 2,582,158
Financial effect arsing from acquisition of B /A 12 FE0HI B
subsidiaries under common control NAEENE KT - - (694678 = 13,53 = = = - (186673 (@40,119)  (1,307,934)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - S = = = = = 52,174 52,174
Deemed contribution from shareholder R EHBARMES
arise from disposal of subsidiaries WRERRILE = - - - - - 1412 - - - 91 2403
Capital contributions from non-controlling  3EEHBRRAREA
interest equity holders fiHE = = - - - - (3,578) - - - 14,708 11,130
Transactions with non-controling interests £33 ERHIR 5
(Note 42(b) (B3 4200)) 920 1839 - - - - 785,785 - - - 414750 1,20329%
Transfer to statutory reserve E\ETRE = = = = 90,180 = = = - (90,180 = =
Put option lapsed KRHTagE - - - - - - U146 = = S N IVATS
Dividend paid EfikE - (54T - - - - - - - - - (54T
At 31 December 2019 R=B-hE+ZR
=t-H 2978751 4,830,694 (909,828) 12411 222,263 (70,187) 846211 (2309294)  (299,012) 2325145 3,134,117 10761271

88

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o B i 528 ) 2

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOARA AR

Finandial assets
atfair value

Merger Capital ~ Statutory Other  through other Non-

Share Share reserve reserve reserve  Treasury  reserves comprehensive  Exchange  Retained  controlling Total
capital  premium (Note 38(a)) (Note 38(b)) (Note 38(c) share (Note 38(d)) income reserve reserve  eamings  interests equity
BATEFA
ARG EARE  ERE RibRE 2y
B ROEE (W) (WE3sh) (WiEss) EFRG (MiE3s(d) tHEE  EXBRF RERY FEREE RROE
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TEn TER TER TER TR TER TER TER TER TER

At 1January 2020 R-2-2£-f-R 2978751 4,830,694 (909,828) 12411 222,63 (70,187) 846,211 (2,309294)  (299,012) 2,325,145 3,134,117 10,761,271
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - - - - (a7251)  (363541)  (580,792)
Other comprehensive income: A2ERE
Net change in fair value of equity BATEIAR

instruments at fairvalue through other ~ EIRE#ERTA

comprehensive income WATERDTE - - - - - - - (184,168) - - (10071)  (194239)
Share of other comprehensive income i —TBEEAFE

of associates f2EkE - - - - - - (45109 - - - - (45,109)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal & —FHiBAF4

of a subsidiary RIREN G - - - - - - - - (183%0) - - (183%)
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of KaRnzEERE

owner-occupied properties to NEENERR

nvestment propertis, net of taxation % MbE - - - - - - 6,442 - - - = 6,442
Currency translation differences BEAEER - - - - - - - S 17 - 133266 461,79
Total other comprehensive income £t 2EHEAE - - - - - - (38667)  (184168) 310,134 - 13195 21049
Total comprehensive income 2ANELE - - - - - - (38667) (184168) 310,134  (217.251)  (240346)  (370,298)
Placing of new shares (Note 37(c) REHR (E370) 160,000 240,000 - - - - - - - - - 400,000
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHEAR - - - - (34860) - (8.401) - - B2 - -
Transactions with non-controlling interests  E3FARER RS

(Note 42(b) (Pt 4ab) - - - - - - 706 - - - 1346 205
Transfer to statutory reserve E AR - - - - 18,866 - - - - (18866) = =
Transfer of resenve to retained earnings ~ MEERATFEFA

upon disposal of equity instruments at ~ Etp 2 EMzA#E

fairvalue through other comprehensive 3 T R4 E AR

income ERAEH = - - - - - - (214728) - -
Derecognition of treasury share RIHERERRE - - - - - 70,187 - - - (1,114) - 69,073
At 31 December 2020 RZBZ2F+28

=t-H 3138751 5,070,694 (909,828) 124 206,269 - 799,849 (2,278,734) 1122 1916447 2,895,117 10,862,098
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GBS ER

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash used in operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid
PRC corporate income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of property, plant and

equipment

Payment for construction costs of

investment properties

Additions of intangible assets

Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash

disposed

Proceeds received from disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Proceeds received from disposal of partial

interest of an associate
Purchases of bond

Proceeds from redemption of bonds

receivables

Proceeds received from disposal of
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Proceeds from disposal of investment

properties

Capital contribution to an associate

Interest received

Dividend received from other investments
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash

acquired

Payment of consideration in relation to
acquisition of subsidiaries in prior year
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank

deposits

Decrease in time deposits with original
maturity over three months

Net cash generated from/(used in)

investing activities

EEIHNRERE
REmARE
ENEBNEHR
ENTREEEMAEH

EEZETAEEFE

RETHNERESHRE
RNBYE - BEREE

RE W) 56 TR R

//J\EEH/QF
BERATE AHAM
ZHBENSREE
HEMBAR - ke
HERE

HEWE - BFER&E
FRiS3kIE
B N B R MR P

/8 £

5508
BEES
fE @ MR E 5 FTS TR

R AT A AR
PEWRNSMAE
e

HEREMEMEHA

H-HBLERRZER
TE

B UH S
BEUWEAMRERE

WEEHIB AR - MR
RE

BRAEFKEN B AR
REMK
BEARTERRD,
(18h0)

REER A=A L8
E MTF SR A

REZBHE - (FH)
BEFE
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2020 2019

—_ 7 — ﬂE 7j-LE'E

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T T FHIT
43(a) (1,917,689) (2,723,868)
(26,960) (7,886)
(250,126) (135,186)
(2,194,775) (2,866,940)
(45,064) (24,286)
(470,125) (730,071)
(1,720) (2,264)
(239,008) (157,797)

44 390,261 3,914
497 1,814

- 31,285
- (166,950)

168,150 -

467,059 -

11,675 -

19 (24,842) -
41,000 11,241

4,816 8,663

45 - 258,665
(302,691) (10,000)
245,298 (580,505)

- 39,247
245,306 (1,317,044)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
B EmER

2020 2019

—EB-FF —E-NF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihE=s THET FHIT

Cash flows from financing activities BEFENRESRE
Capital contribution from non-controlling % B IEIEIRERS BB A Z

interest equity holders BN 2,346 11,130
(Repayment to)/advance from non- KEFERERZ

controlling interests (B, #% (232) 45,519
Advance from related parties REBEB S 22K 21,282 79,772
Drawdown of bank borrowings and REERTTEE RAMEK

other loans 14,848,736 9,048,958
Repayments of bank borrowings and BERTEEREMER

other loans (11,261,245) (6,769,224)
Repayment of principal portion on lease  EEHE B EARE D

liabilities (15,054) (10,048)
Repayment of interest portion on lease i EBEF S D

liabilities (6,653) (835)
Proceeds from issuance of corporate BITRBESFS A

bonds 1,025,000 1,132,600
Interest paid BAFE (1,033,001) (466,273)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT PTSFE 400,000 600,000
Proceeds from sales of treasury shares KRB HEEFRD 2 Was 69,073 =
Settlement of corporate bonds HEELEES (1,695,800) (146,614)
Dividends paid ERRE 14 - (54,775)
Transactions with non-controlling BIEIERER L 5

interests (294) 1,157,516

Net cash generated from financing BE TS REFEHE

activities 2,354,158 4,627,726
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESEEYEMT

equivalents L] 404,689 443,742
Cash and cash equivalents at FNEERESEEY

beginning of year 1,313,570 907,123
Effect of foreign exchange rate IMNEERESEFHTE

changes 6,403 (37,295)

Cash and cash equivalents atend of EXREELREELZEY
year 31 1,724,662 1,313,570
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 18th Floor, Wing On Centre, No.
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations (“the new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Conceptual Framework for  Revised Conceptual
Financial Reporting Framework for Financial
Reporting

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ VA 5 i A Pl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RANEABAUBEHRELERN(FSB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B SRE 2R |)(2)
(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior period. In addition, the Group has
early adopted amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 —
Related Rent Concessions ahead of the effective date and
applied the amendment from 1 January 2020.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient
to lessees in accounting for rent concessions arising as a
result of the Covid-19 pandemic, by including an
additional practical expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits
entities to elect not to account for rent concessions as
modifications. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
Covid-19 pandemic and only if all of the following criteria
are satisfied:

(@ the change in lease payments results in revised

2.1

BRI BRI B R MR

HERA ()

B2 ] B R B A S
HEAEANEBZ A BERR
XERUBRABERMERTE -
N REBERERERE BER
BRI ERE 165 (BRI A) —
2019 MR mERMAERE - R
E-BF—A—AREAZKIERIA

B BRI & ERIE 16 5 (15T
&) » 2019 7Bt 7% & 5 46 BE st FH

BEAVBREEAF165R(BE]
) - 20192 MR E S W AR RS
FIEBUMBHREERFE 165 I
20198 MBS RE B E B RAEM
MABAARESHTEENIITER
Tk FABREBYBREZER
F16HPMA—TBREINITIRE S
E R EREETBREAARA
{E5T - AJTHEE A AEE AR 2019
BRAESHEEEZEBMRA -
BERUTHEZERCEGAIEFE
A :

@) HENFWEHEHEERES

consideration for the lease that is substantially the FrgeR - MAER 2 REHEE
same as, or less than, the consideration for the EZFHaaiEENREXRIUE

lease immediately preceding the change;

(b) the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021;
and

(c)  there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A SO RE RSB NEE
KA

(b) FENRHRBEZERIE
BE-_Z-—FA=+H=
ZRTRNE G R

(O FEOEMGEI RIS RE
B -
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Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions (Continued)

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be
accounted for in accordance with this practical expedient,
which means the lessee does not need to assess whether
the rent concession meets the definition of lease
modification. Lessees shall apply other requirements of
HKFRS 16 in accounting for the rent concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications
would have resulted in the Group remeasuring the lease
liability to reflect the revised consideration using a revised
discount rate, with the effect of the change in the lease
liability recorded against the right-of-use asset. By
applying the practical expedient, the Group is not
required to determine a revised discount rate and the
effect of the change in the lease liability is reflected in
profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the rent concession occurs.

The adoption of the amendment to HKFRS 16 does not

have a material impact to the Group’s results and
financial position.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMNEBUBREERN([FB

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B SRE 2R |) (&)

(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs 21 RAFITIREBITBBHBER
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they

become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1

HK Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current*

Presentation of Financial
Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause*

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract?

Insurance Contracts*

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle?

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for business combinations for which the date of
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

> The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or
contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new or
revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group are not aware of any aspect
of the new standards which are likely to have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the "HKFRS”) issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for certain
properties and financial instruments that are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
in note 4 below.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

Comparative figures

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors
of the Company reviewed the presentation of the
accounting items in the consolidated financial statements.
Due to the financial significance of certain accounting
items in current year , certain comparative figures have
been re-presented to conform to the current year’s
presentation. The changes represented the reclassification
of accounting items in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income which included (i) impairment
losses on intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment previously reported under “administrative
expenses” were separately presented under “impairment
losses on non-financial assets” and (ii) the impairment
losses on trade receivables, contract assets, loans and
advances and other receivables previously reported under
“administrative expenses” were separately presented
under “impairment losses on financial assets and contract
assets — net”.

The directors of the Company considered that such
reclassification provided more informative presentation
on the primary statement of the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

3. MRBEEH)

(d) Comparative figures (Continued) (d) bEBEE=FE)
Effect on the consolidated statement of comprehensive HEZE_T— jLE‘i’ - E-I—— =]
income for the year ended 31 December 2019: IFEENGE2ARERATE
As previously As
reported Reclassification re-presented
A2 ]| ERsibak | KES|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Administrative expenses THER (655,071) 267,613 (387,458)
Impairment losses on FEeMEEN
non-financial assets B ER - (194,705) (194,705)
Impairment losses on CREER
financial assets and BHEER
contract assets -net BB IR 5 = (72,908) (72,908)

The reclassification has no financial impact to the
consolidated statement of financial position, the
consolidated statement of cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses, other than
business combination under common control, are
accounted for using the acquisition method.

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities
and assets meets the definition of a business and control
is transferred to the Group. In determining whether a
particular set of activities and assets is a business, the
Group assesses whether the set of assets and activities
acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and
substantive processes and whether the acquired set has
the ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed
unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

4. EAETBE )

4.1 EBEHRGEEEEE)

ERBIHEZHBRARNFERNL
XEFABURBERRESERHE
R (ER) BlL 26 2 E N
ReMAERBE  MEBARZHMBER
REELRHE  UEESFTHRA
AEBEMKERRIMEREER
_ﬁ ®

BRI RE SR A G5 B
BB A B SR WBRAKREEA

=

EFRE-AEBREENEES
ZEERIEFIEEE EANKEE
AEBHNBKRBEBES G BA
o AEBESRBFGAEIE AR
HREEESELHTEEEREA
ARWENEERRSAIAE B
ELNRAEH —EEBREERE R
—IRER -

WEKAIREREE ELEZ
EFRAEE(ERWET ) AT
ZBAER YR 2 R EAMG
B o B 2 R B E K AR E
ZREEFERWBER ZAFER
B AKEAMRBEKENREZ
iERWER 2 A T EEHNTE
EAZ Was kB BRN B AR
AEBEERE  UEEXHELE
B ERR RS AT RAIREE
FEEENEERRKEARH
BARHA D IFER R - A
BEMIFZERER AR FER
B EEEVBREEARECE
st EEEARIN - WEBELEZE
FRAR XS - HEBITRAT AR
ELEZ BRIk -

Annual Report &3 2020 99



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ VA 5 i A Pl

4,

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All
other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change
in ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and
each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this
results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Merger accounting for business
combination involving entities or
businesses under common control

A business combination involving entities or businesses
under common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining entities or businesses are
ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both
before and after the business combination, and that
control is not transitory. The Group adopts merger
accounting in accordance with AG 5 issued by the
HKICPA for common control combinations.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities first came under the control of the
controlling party.

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

4, ERESFBE®E)

4.1

4.2

EBEHRGREEEE)

WEEEER KRB ARER
FRB &R IHES S REE
BRI ATE R H) % F a0 it
BB R R EREREEN
Betn o FREBER LR A M ISR
R ERRATES > LEAR
AEBAEGEEENHZY - B
KE A2 WA RS ABRE D 57 B
TARBER A RIFERER - B
REEZ L IR s B IR R F R
%E WA BB IR %5 IRE g

o

E\

B —Z&% FHERHERBHE
BEHNEHEST

SESHNERERHARAXRA
— AR Z T & KRR B E
B IEE RS - SR —IEH T

TEAG - AEBERBETEGHAD
NEHEMESTRER - B KR H

BHERAAHER

AR BmERIELREEESE
ERTS R A P E B S E IS B 5
Wz MOEEAHERIESLA
BRZESAEREH 2 ARES
Bf -

101

Annual Report £3§ 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ VA 5 i A Pl

4,

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.2 Merger accounting for business

4.3

combination involving entities or
businesses under common control
(Continued)

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using their carrying amounts prior to the
business combinations. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the
net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
includes the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group'’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group's interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired, the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associate are accounted for using equity
method as mentioned above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.5 Goodwiill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (“CGU(s)") that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. A CGU is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (see note 4.18), and whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
first allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. However, the loss
allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of
disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-
in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 20-40 years
Leasehold improvement Shorter of assets expected
useful lives and lease term
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Furniture and fixtures and 2-10 years
office equipment

Machinery and factory 2-10 years
equipment

Computer equipment 2-5 years

Motor vehicles 4-10 years

Yacht 4-10 years

Land and properties leased
for own use

Shorter of assets expected
useful lives and lease term
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well
as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount. The gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its
carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in other
reserves. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained earnings.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.7 Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only
when there is a change in use. If an investment property
becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8 Leasing

(i)

GLORY

As a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease
term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);
(i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-
use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFEER®)
(Continued)
4.8 Leasing (Continued) 48 HEE)
(i) As a lessee (Continued) (i) 1EREAHEA (E)

Right-of-use asset (Continued) EHEEE &)
The Group accounts for leasehold land and AEEAHHNKERNIZER W
buildings that are held for rental or capital A MHEE T RIEF G4
appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are BIRBEEBS G ERFEA05%
carried at fair value. For right-of-use asset that AR - WARTFEVIER - fF&
meets the definition of a leasehold land and BIEEAHETHREFTER
buildings held for own use, they are carried at cost RIS RREEE - KA 25
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated FERAEMRFTEEYIR - &
losses. Other than the above right-of-use assets, PP REEESN - RNEBTR
the Group also has leased a number of properties EREBEHEHREEEZEY
under tenancy agreements which the Group ¥ MAKEITEABNEE
exercises its judgement and determines that it is a HAEREERANEE LI RIE
separate class of asset apart from the leasehold FUINOBLEREE -
land and buildings which is held for own use. As a Ut HEBHREE TEEERN
result, the right-of-use asset arising from the ERREERTEXAIIE

properties under tenancy agreements are carried at
depreciated cost.

Lease liability HEERE

The lease liability is recognised at the present value HEABRRITIENHEERS
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date BHZ 2 HEMN KRR AR
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments R HENFERAEERS
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the KR R BEIR (M2 T R A8 5
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that EE) WkF R\ ERFE
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses TE o ANEEE A5 R B A A2 B Y £
the Group's incremental borrowing rate. ERERAE -
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4,

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.8 Leasing (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or to reflect revised in substance fixed
lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination
option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying
amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments
to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. An
equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further
reduction is recognised in profit or loss.
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4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8 Leas

ing (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation
results in one or more additional assets being
leased for an amount commensurate with the
standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a
separate lease, in all other cases, where the
renegotiated increases the scope of the lease
(whether that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate
applicable on the modification date, with the right-
of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount.
With the exception to which the practical expedient
for Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions applies (see
note 2.1), if the renegotiation results in a decrease
in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount
of the lease liability and right-of-use asset are
reduced by the same proportion to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease with any
difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease
liability is then further adjusted to ensure its
carrying amount reflects the amount of the
renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term,
with the modified lease payments discounted at the
rate applicable on the modification date and the
right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.

f 3 SO 065 e A B i
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Leasing (Continued)

(ii) As a lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of

the leases.

The Group has leased out its investment property
to a number of tenants. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on the straight-line basis over the

lease term.

4.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over their useful lives as follows:

Contractual customer relationships
License

Trademarks and patents 3-10 years

Other intangible assets
Operating right
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

(ii)

Internally generated intangible assets
(research and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the
product for it to be sold;

o adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

o there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o the Group is able to sell the product; and

o sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and expenditure on the
project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from
selling the products developed.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

(iii)

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note
4.18).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease
to the extent of its revaluation surplus.

4.10Financial Instruments

(i)

GLORY

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

4. EAETBE )

410 €T B (&)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost as
described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

(i)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"”)
are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables, contract
assets and financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

4, EREFBE®E)

410 €T B (&)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12 months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

(ii)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets

(Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal

credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its

obligation to the Group.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is

more than 30 days past due.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by

the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is

more appropriate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

4.10Financial Instruments (Continued) 410 €T B (&)

(i) EEEERRERR(E)

(iij) Impairment loss on financial assets

(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

()  the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

(d) it is becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10Fina

(ii)

(iii)

GLORY

ncial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
contract asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period
in which the recovery occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

4, EREFBE®E)

410 €T B (&)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVTPL, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of
financial liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (i) the financial liability contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise, except for the gains and
losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
4.10Fina

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

GLORY

ncial Instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and bills payables, accruals and other payables,
lease liabilities, consideration payable and
borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFEER®E)
(Continued)
4.10Financial Instruments (Continued) 410 £ T A (%)
(vi) Financial guarantee contracts (vi) BIFERER
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that IEERE QTR T EITAM
requires the issuer to make specified payments to BHAZNIEESRE - LAHE
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a BB ABREEREBARER
specified debtor fails to make payment when due BEBTARB ISR IR
in accordance with the original or modified terms REBRAFRMEZBRNE
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee 7 o AASEFITHIWIEET
contract issued by the Group and not designated as BN EFABEN I BE
at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value less RE DN T IE AN FERETH
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the BEREONEEEEZZK
issue of the financial guarantee contract. TR o 92 HRIE - A
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group SEEUATEERSEEN
measures the financial guarantee contact at the BERGH ((VEEREES
higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, 2 - BAR 45 BT 5E 4.10(i) AT X
being the ECL provision measured in accordance IR ENTEHREEEE
with the accounting policy set out in Note 4.10(ii); B VLT ERS TR
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when (EE)RBEEBUBRSE
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in ZRE155RARA RN R
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15. ST o
(vii) Derecognition (vii) #&IETEEE
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the EEHSRMBEEARKEEN
contractual rights to the future cash flows in BZAEKENER - ESH
relation to the financial asset expire or when the BEKLCDEEIEERSES
financial asset has been transferred and the transfer B 75 S 5 4 BI 28 9 SR 4R T A9 ER
meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance SHIERAER - RIRNEEEUE
with HKFRS 9. RELTREE -
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the EHBEE NP HRE 2 BBR
obligation specified in the relevant contract is B BUBSE MR - BUBRER
discharged, cancelled or expires. TEBE -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

4.11Inve

Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued
cannot be reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for
the year.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amount and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

ntories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable

value

. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

GLORY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, ERETHE®)

(Continued)
4.12Properties under development and AN BRIPYERETIFELHE
properties held for sale ES

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the anticipated sales proceeds of properties
sold in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land,
development costs, borrowing costs and other direct
costs attributable to the development of such properties.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets when the construction of the relevant properties
commences unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.

4.13Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or service
may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
Control of the goods or service is transferred over time if
the Group'’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amounts receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4, EREFBE®E)

4.13 WEER (&)

4.13Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Sales of goods

Customers obtain control of the goods when the
automated production related products are
delivered to and have been accepted. Revenue is
thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the goods. There is generally only one
performance obligation.

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers
from the sale of automated production related
products provides customers a right of return (a
right to exchange another product). These rights of
return do not allow the returned goods to be
refund in cash. The right of return gives rise to
variable consideration. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained
until the associated uncertainty is subsequently
resolved. The application of the constraint on
variable consideration increases the amount of
revenue that will be deferred. In addition, a refund
liability and a right to recover returned goods assets
are recognised.

(i)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of properties

The Group develops and sells commercial and
residential properties. Revenue is recognised when
control over the property has been transferred to
the customer. The properties have generally no
alternative use for the Group due to contractual
restrictions. However, an enforceable right to
payment does not arise until control has passed to
the customer. Therefore, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the control has passed to the
customer.

The revenue is measured at the transaction price
agreed under the contract. In most cases, the
consideration is due when control has been
transferred. While deferred payment terms may be
agreed in rare circumstances, the deferral never
exceeds twelve months. The transaction price is
therefore not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component.

Commission and brokerage income

Commission and brokerage income on dealings in
securities and futures contracts are recognised as
revenue on the transactions dates when the
relevant contract notes are executed.

Securities investment income

Securities investment income includes net gain/loss
on financial assets at FVTPL including realised gains/
losses which are recognised on trade dates; and
unrealised fair value gains/losses which are
recognised in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Trading of commodities

Revenue from the sale of commodities is recognised
when control of the commodities have transferred,
being when the commodities have been shipped to
the customer’s specific location (delivery). The
Group is primarily responsible for fulfilling the
promise to provide the specified goods or service,
has inventory risk before the specified good or
service has been transferred to a customer and has
discretion in establishing the price for the specified
goods or service. A receivable is recognised by the
Group when the commodities are delivered to the
customer as this represents the point in time at
which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised

on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
4.13Revenue recognition (Continued)

(viii) Others

—  Consultancy fee income is recognised on a

time proportion basis.

— Management fee income and performance
fee income are recognised when services are

rendered.

— Installation income and maintenance income
are recognised when services are rendered.

— Handling fee income is recognised when

services are provided.

— Revenue arising from property management
services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered.
The Group bills the customers for each month
of service provided and recognises as revenue
in the amount to which the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the

services to its customers.

For property management services income
from properties managed under lump sum
basis, where the Group acts as principal and
is primary responsible for providing the
property management services to the
property owners, the Group recognises the
fee received or receivable from property
owners as its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of service. For
property management services income from
properties managed under commission basis,
the Group only recognises the commission,
which is calculated by fixed percentage of the
costs involved in the management of the
property units, as its revenue.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

4, ERESFBE®E)

4.13 WEER (&)

(viii) B fts

B U AR )

uZLJ\ ©

EIEBWARERE R
AR AR R AR o

RN T 4 E AR
?ﬁ,ﬁ\ﬁﬁ%%ﬁqﬁﬁau

FEE WA RERS
FEIERR o

MEEEREELNK
SERERE 2 258
BAMHER - NEEE
AR R R F R
ARBEISAKEE B

BERBEEP TKE
i’]f{ﬂi’] > BRIER AU

BB EENYE

Fﬁ?%%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%)\
CAKEEREE

A FEBEMETR
HYEESHERE A&
Ei5E ek R EEN
BRERAKE T
FrE B EE EK A
BRERBEEA o A
BLHERNYERS
WEEERBSWKAM
T AEEERAAS
Bl BEREEY
EBENTSRARNET
BOLETE -



4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
4.13Revenue recognition (Continued)

(viii) Others (Continued)

— Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive the dividend is established.

— Revenue from construction contracts is
recognised when the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
when or as the construction projects are
transferred to the customer. Depending on
the terms of the contracts and the laws that
are applicable to the contracts, control of the
construction projects may transfer over time
or at a point in time. If the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced, and
therefore, recognises revenue over time in
accordance with the input method for

measuring progress.

—  Revenue from sales of seafood is recognised
at a point in time when the goods are
delivered to customers and title has passed.

—  Revenue from trading of home appliances is
recognised at a point in time as those services

are rendered.

—  Revenue from hotel and restaurant operations
is recognised upon provision of the services.

—  Revenue from training services is recognised
over the time of the service performed to

customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(viii) Others (Continued)

—  Revenue from yacht club services comprise
mainly income from members and other
customers. Revenue from provision of yacht
club services to membership holders are
recognised over the membership period in
which the yacht club services are performed.
Payment for the membership therefore is
recognised as a contract liability over the
membership period. Revenue from yacht
parking services is recognised over the time
of the services performed to customers.
Revenue from provision of yacht club services
to other customers is recognised when
services are rendered to the customers.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

A contract liability represents the Group'’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group has the
right to consideration under the contracts with customer
from the sale of goods but not billed because the rights
are conditioned on the Group's future performance in
achieving specified milestones at the reporting date on
the product certification. Any amount previously
recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade
receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances
received from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised
to date under the output method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

4.13Revenue recognition (Continued) 4.13 Wz TR (4)

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to
fulfil a contract when those costs meet all of the
following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the cost relate. The asset is subject to impairment
review.

4.14Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of
the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.14Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and initial
recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part of
the business combination which affect neither accounting
nor taxable profits, taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, provided that the deductible
temporary differences are not arises from initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction other
than in a business combination that affects neither
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

4.14Income taxes (Continued) 4.14 FriB%i (&)

An exception to the general requirement in determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on
these investment properties are measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.

4.15 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.15 Discontinued operations (Continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, which comprises:

—  The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.

4.16 Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.16 Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at
the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as exchange reserve
(attributed to minority interests as appropriate).

Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group
entities’ separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group'’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.17 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related
service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

4.18Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

GLORY

property, plant and equipment;
intangible assets; and

investments in subsidiaries and associates.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BARETBE#®)

(Continued)

4.18Impairment of assets (other than financial 418 BEE (FEREE) BE (&)
assets) (Continued)
If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair BENAKESE(BIAFERD
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is ERAEANFEBEAEEREN
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the BEmE) PR EREER - A
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable EERHEBRREATKESEE -
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense (B 5 18 BE BN 1R 5 > FERR - BRIEAE
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a AEERES —BREHBEREE
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the AlESEmESEIEE  ERHERT
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under BEEBEER AT BN KRS 2R
that HKFRS. BTHEMKD -
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the WEBREERREERE  AKEEN
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised FREEG N E BB TR b ET T
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the E&5 - EAMEMAREET SIS
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying BB T M ph B E R R A
amount that would have been determined had no EEmREEENRRE - BESB
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior BB ARREZNER - BRIER
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in BEEREBES —HEBUBRELE
profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is AREMESRINE  EHERLT
carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in BEBBREEEREENBERE
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated ERTE TR EMIEM -

as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows FREBEDREERARE EERIR
expected to be derived from the asset or CGU (see note SCELEBM(2RMELS) BEET
4.5), discounted to their present value using a pre-tax RKREMEFTE - AAIARME
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of BEEEEENENMSTHREE
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset o IR & B A B AL A RE R B 9 B AT
or CGU. ARIRRANIRE HIR(E -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.19 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

4.20Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

4.21Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EXRSFEE®
(Continued)
4.22 Segment reporting 4.22 75/ E
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent EED IR RE H A EEE R T
with the internal reporting provided to the chief EMERRENANBRE > =
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision- DREREE AELRERKT

maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and A EPIRE R - W R AR R
assessing performance of the operating segments, has BHITEIRS R HITES -
been identified as the executive directors of the Company

that make strategic decisions.

.

4.23 Government grants 4.23 BUFHRE
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair B R A TR IR 2B 4 B A AT UER B
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the BREBEeREME W GRER
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all B AR A A AR o

attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and B RK 7N A6 8 2 U 8 B R A R dR AR
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary WEZHNAE SR ARTERT
to match them with the costs that they are intended to MR o

compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation EREEENFR X BB RHFE K
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose VA4S T 7= & B B AR B I 2 4% (T 1
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with 2 EERRBEEAA) i FE WK &K
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in FE#EBh - BB AR e W R TE ) HA R
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants TIERHER - ZEFARNEMBA
are presented under other income, rather than reducing HTIE5 - MIERmPHEERE -

the related expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.24Share-based payments

4, ERESFBE®E)

4.24 IR RER VTR

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
and other providing similar services is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expenses, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest.

The fair value of the options granted is considered by:

— including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

4.24 Share-based payments (Continued) 424 R REBRNNRK (&)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

4.25Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits
arising from normal business transactions. The Group has
classified the clients’ monies as client trust bank balances
under the current assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group is allowed to retain some
or all of the interest income on the clients’ monies and
recognised corresponding accounts payable to the
respective customers in the current liabilities clients on
grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of clients’” monies. Under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), the Group is not allowed
to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligation.

SN EREERT - BE A B
B B8 AR AR - Bk T
ROAHzAF¥E  gEBRINR
BRmMER AR H2AX -

REBEHR - AEECREED
BRARBRBIGRHELENERE
R BB 2R B M (AT - MUk as R AR
RIETRERREFEENFZE(D
B)  YHESELARREE - 25t
B S T & 3R B E K T 35 55 B 15k
Mm% o

11 B B 4 2 1k I (R IF FE LB SR
AT BEBY - fE AR B BAT R 1R
FrEZEREQTERE TS AR
TEREHET AR -

4.25 BEFEERITER

AEBNERESBEBRRER
KIEBERRE - MEREFPRLEER
BRBTRAELEZFK - AEEH
BEPRERBER/REEMBINARIR
BEER NP EERITER
R A7 SR B (R B R P SRR
BoHEHMAMBEA - WEREY
BEPREMEABERIBAAEM
ERENRBABREFABRER
AR - REBEFEIEF LR
FH(FESNE)  AEBTFEHA
EFFEBEREAHE -

Annual Report &3 2020 1 43



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ VA 5 i A Pl

4,

144

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.26 Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned
above, the Group provides brokerage and asset
management services and the Group acts in a fiduciary
capacity which results in the holding or placing of assets
on behalf of its customers. These assets and any gains or
losses arising thereon are not included in these
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
contractual rights to these assets and its gains or losses
under fiduciary activities.

4.27 Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options issued
by the Group over the equity of subsidiaries are
accounted for as financial liabilities when such options
may only be settled other than by exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of shares in the subsidiaries. The amount that
may become payable under the option on exercise is
initially recognised at fair value within other payables
with a corresponding charge directly to equity.

Such options are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, in order to
accrete the liability up to the amount payable under the
option at the date at which it first becomes exercisable.
The charge arising is recorded as a financing cost. In the
event that the option expires or unexercised, the liability
is derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. EAETBE®)

4.28 $FEF RIS R Bk

4.28 Service concession arrangements

Service concession arrangements are accounted for as
follows if:

a.  the grantor controls or regulates what services the
operator must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

b.  the grantor controls through ownership, beneficial
entitlement or otherwise any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term
of the arrangement.

The Group’s rights over the infrastructure

Infrastructure constructed by the Group under service
concession arrangements is not recognised as property,
plant and equipment of the Group because the
contractual service arrangement does not convey the
right to control the use of the infrastructure to the
Group. The operator has access to operate the
infrastructure to provide the public service on behalf of
the grantor in accordance with the terms specified in the
contract.

Consideration received or receivable by the
Group for the construction services

Consideration received or receivable by the Group for the
construction services rendered under service concession
arrangement is recognised at its fair value as a financial
asset or an intangible asset.

An intangible asset (other intangible assets) is recognised
to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of the public service, which is not an unconditional
right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent
on the extent that the public uses the service. The
intangible asset (other intangible assets) is accounted for
in accordance with note 4.9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., BARETBE#)

(Continued)

4.28 Service concession arrangements (Continued) 4.28 BRI = (&)
Construction or upgrade services ZEG A RIRT
Revenue and costs relating to construction or upgrade RS AR 7% ok AR AR TS 9 e B AR AR
services are accounted for in accordance with note AR IR BT 5E 4.1 3(vii) ABR ©
4.13(viii).
Operating services BERY
Revenue relating to operating services are accounted for LRSI =R IEM FE4.13 A
in accordance with note 4.13. Costs for operating IR o A IRIGA AN EE AR 8 o
services are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

4.29Related parties 4.29 BT
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family (@ MHEBNATAL BIFZALTHZ

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b)
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.29 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner,

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

A. Critical judgements

(a) Assessment of fund investments as
structured entities

Management has assessed whether the funds in
which it invests should be classified as structured
entities. Management has considered the voting
rights and other similar rights afforded to investors
in these funds, including the rights to remove the
fund manager or redeem holdings. Judgement is
made on an individual investment in each fund
where the Group has ownership interest or acts as
fund manager or both. Management has evaluated
whether these rights of investors are the dominant
factor in controlling the funds, or whether the
contractual agreement with the fund manager is
the dominant factor in controlling these funds.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

A. Critical judgements (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from
investment properties that are using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time rather than
through sale whereas those situated in the PRC are
held under such a business model. Therefore, the
presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties are recovered entirely
through sale is rebutted for properties situated in
the PRC but is not rebutted for properties situated
in Hong Kong. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of these investment properties located in
Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any
income tax on disposal of these investment
properties. The presumption that the carrying
amount of the Group's investment properties in the
PRC is to recover through sale rather than through
use has been rebutted and deferred tax on the
changes in fair value is recognised according to the
relevant tax rules.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

A. Critical judgements (Continued)

B.

(c) Principal versus agent consideration

Significant judgments include determining whether
the Group is acting as the principal in a transaction.
The Group is a principal in a transaction if the
Group obtains control of the products sold or
services provided before they are transferred to
customers. If control is unclear, when the Group is
primarily obligated in a transaction, is subject to
inventory risk, has latitude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers, or has several but not all of
these indicators, the Group records revenues on a
gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net
amount earned as commissions from products sold
or services provided.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, other key sources estimation
uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within next financial period are as follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for property, plant and
equipment at the end of the reporting period. The
property, plant and equipment are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purposes of impairment testing, assets are allocated
to its respective CGUs. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether the carrying amount of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less cost of disposal
or value in use; and (ii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

B.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b) Impairment of intangible assets (other

(c)

than goodwiill)

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for intangible assets (other
than goodwill) with finite useful life at the end of
the reporting period. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. The intangible assets are
tested for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts. For the
purposes of impairment testing, assets are allocated
to its respective CGUs. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether the carrying amount of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less cost of disposal
or value in use; and (ii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate.

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which goodwill has been allocated. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to its respective CGUs. Management
judgement is required in the area of goodwill
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether the
carrying amount of an CGU can be supported by
the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less cost of disposal or value in use; and (ii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

B.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d) Impairment allowances of financial assets

(e)

and contract assets

The measurement of impairment losses of financial
assets and contract assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing
of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this
purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in
jurisdictions in PRC. There are certain transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

B.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(e) Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

)]

(Continued)

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax
(“LAT") in the PRC. However, the implementation
and settlement of these taxes varies among various
tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group
has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments
with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation
and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
LAT based on management’s best estimates
according to the understanding of the tax rules, by
using a single best estimate of the most likely
outcome approach. The final tax outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and deferred tax provisions in
the periods in which such taxes have been finalised
with local tax authorities.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. In determining the fair value,
the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates of market
condition. In relying on the valuation report, the
directors of the Company have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions
used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain
or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

B.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(g) Net realisable value of inventories of

properties

Included in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 December 2020 is inventories of
properties with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$11,920,239,000 (2019:
HK$9,001,970,000), which is stated at the lower of
the cost and net realisable value. Based on the
experience of the directors of the Company and the
nature of the subject properties, the directors of
the Company determine the net realisable value of
the underlying properties by reference to the
estimated market prices of the properties under
development and completed properties held for
sale, which takes into account a number of factors
including the recent selling price of the properties
and the prevailing real estate market conditions in
the PRC. If the actual net realisable values of the
underlying inventories of properties are more or
less than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development costs, material reversal of
or provision for impairment losses may result. The
directors of the Company estimate the costs to
completion and costs necessary to make the sale by
reference to the actual development cost of other
similar completed projects of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEO") that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The reportable segments were classified as follows:
Continuing operations:

— Automation segment represents the trading of
automated production related equipment trading
business in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC");

—  Financial Services segment represents regulated business
activities in respective to financial services under the
Hong Kong Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO") in
Hong Kong;

—  Property Investment and Development segment
represents the properties investment activities, property
development project, hotel and restaurant operations
and provision of construction works in Hong Kong and
the PRC;

—  Securities Investment segment represents the investment
activities through direct investments in listed and unlisted
securities;

— Trading of Commodities segment represents trading of
commodities in the PRC;

—  Yacht Club segment represents operation of a yacht club
in the PRC;

—  Training segment represents provision of training services
in the PRC; and

—  Others segment represents operation of golf practising
court, children playroom and fitness room, and trading of
seafood and home appliances in the PRC (2019:
operation of golf practising court and trading of seafood
in the PRC).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Discontinued operations:

—  Manufacturing segment represents the LED manufacturing
of a range of high-technology and new energy products
business in the PRC; and

—  Provision of Online Game Services segment represents
design, development and operation of the mobile and
web games and platform services in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
identified its manufacturing business and the provision of
online game and platform services business as discontinued
operations upon disposal of subsidiaries and further disclosed
in note 9.

The revenue from external parties is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.

Revenue from external customers for Manufacturing and
Automation segments are derived from the sales of automated
production related products net of returns and installation and
maintenance income. Revenue from Securities Investment
segment is derived from realised and unrealised gains/(losses)
of financial assets at FVTPL and commission income on dealing
in securities. Revenue from Financial Services segment includes
commission and brokerage income on dealings in securities and
future contracts, interest income from money lending,
management fee and performance fee income from financial
services. Revenue from Property Investment and Development
segment is derived from the sale of properties, hotel and
restaurant operations, construction contracts and rental
income. Revenue from Trading of Commodities segment is
derived from trading of commaodities. Revenue from Yacht Club
segment is derived from operation of a yacht club. Revenue
from Training segment is derived from provision of training
services. Revenue from Provision of Online Game Services
segment is derived from online game operation. Revenue from
Others segment is derived from operations of golf practising
court, children playroom and fitness room, and trading of
seafood and home appliances in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group's revenue derived from external customers located
in Hong Kong and the PRC, is approximately HK$300,008,000
(2019: HK$180,266,000) and approximately
HK$7,544,711,000 (2019: HK$11,017,198,000) respectively.
The remaining balances of the Group’s revenue represented
securities trading in Financial Services segment and Securities
Investment segment, represents securities investment loss of
approximately HK$18,511,000 (2019: HK$261,817,000).

The CEO assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of operating, which is in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.
The measurement of segment results excludes the effect of
unallocated corporate income and expenses, as these type of
activities are managed by central finance and accounting
function, which manages the working capital of the Group. In
addition, loss on remeasurement on pre-existing interest in an
associate, share of results of associates, gain on bargain
purchase, fair value gain on derivative financial assets and
taxation are not allocated to segments.

In preparing the segment information for the year ended 31
December 2020, the business relating to operation of a yacht
club and provision of training services meet the quantitative
thresholds of HKFRS 8 Operating Segments and the CEO
considered these being as separate reportable segments.
Accordingly, the comparative information has been re-
presented to conform to current year’s presentation.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group's revenue by segment and the reportable segment
information is reconciled to (loss)/profit before income tax as

follows:

Year ended 31 December 2020
Revenue

Inter-segment revenue
Revenue from exteral customers
Segment results

Share of result of associates

Fair value gain on derivative financial
assets

Unallocated other gains — net

Unallocated other income

Unallocated administrative expenses

Unallocated finance costs — net

Loss before income tax

158

Property
Investment
Financial and

6. DIER ()
AEEIEH BB D U35 R ATRE 5 56
BRHER FRE R AT (B1R),/ % Fi # ¥ 85
mT

Continuing operations

Securities

Trading of

Automation Services Development  Investment Commodities  Yacht Club Training Total
NERE
REf SRER RER F5RE Gt il 4= Sl At - h
HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TER TER TER TR TER TER TR TR
HE-EoER
ToAZt-BLEEE

i 545,371 285,625 805,044 21,971) 6,129,006 10,000 8,915 104,740 7,866,736
A8BRE - (38871) (1,657) - - - - - (40,528)
RENMPEF f 545,371 246,754 803,387 21,971) 6,129,006 10,000 8,915 104,740 7,826,208
AREE 54,757 145,369 (388,002) (62,231) (8,354) (249,314) (197,113) 18,544 (686,344)
PEBELTZE 16,011

fEeREEs AT EYE
18,291
APENEGNE—FR 38,718
AARMEBRA 20593
AARMITRER (23462)
AARAMBRA—FE (57.99)
KHEHAESR (674,187)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

6. 7EHER &)

Discontinued operations Continuing operations
RIEEERE FEREER
Property
Provision of Investment
Onlne Game Financial and Secures  Trading of
Senices  Manufacturing Subtofal  Automation Seices  Development — Investment~ Commodities ~ Yacht Club Training Others Sub-tofal Total
RtARES HES T
i 2 It CE A1} RER  B5RE  ERER  EeR sl i It it
HK$ 1000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Thn Thn Thn Tén Tén ThL Th Thn Tin Thn Thn Thn Tén
(Re-presented) ~ (Re-presented) ~ (Re-presented)
(E2R) (e¥eR)  (Ehed)
Vearended 31 December 2019 EZ=F-1E
TZAZT-BILER
Revenue g 3 4779 4780 634,160 182459 5010416 (260755 516035 60,027 46,047 9435 10902143 10,949,970
Interseqment revenue ARk - - - - (1031) (129) = = = = = (1433) (14303)
Revenue from extemal customers~ RESMIRFAIME 37 4779 780 634,160 175428 500314 (260755 5,160,354 60,027 146,047 9435 10887820 10,935,647
Segment results e 59429 (148.151) (88,722) 54,797 73459 1,717,552 (309812) 271 (135,091) (21583 6 1377301 1,288,585
Shareof resufsof ascocates ~ AEEEATEE 0631
(Gain on bargan purchase SRNE G 696412
Loss on femezsurement on ElfirEi-ERE
pre-eistng inteestn an ABERREY
assodate bii (176,869)
Undlocated other gais —net AR ME—58 10847
Unalocated otherincome RARMERKA 62
Unalocated adminitatve expenses. ARSI (164,530)
Undlocated fnance costs— et~ RARAEHA—5E (104.891)
Pofitbeforencome taxrom ~~ REHELEERT
contiungand discontinued ~ RIHEEERAR
operations HERATAT 1570247
Add: Lossbefore income taxfom 11 RE IR EEA)
discontinued operatons RAERIER 8872
Poftbeforeincome taxfrom - REFEEEZRARA
continuing operations Eianad

1,658,969
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEPER(#)
Other segment information Hith o BWE R

Continuing operations
Property
Investment
Financial and  Securiis  Trading of

Automation Services Development  Investment Commodities  Yacht Club Training Others  Unallocated Total
NERE

BBl SRER k3%  R3RE  BREZ  BEEK S Afp 38 &3t

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

TR TR TR TR TR TER TR TR TR TR

Yearended 31 December 2020  HE-B-%%
toA=t-ALEE
Depreciation and amortisation NERER (1,601) (21,512) (24,250) (371) - (20,584) (17,673) (8,021) (4,052) (98,064)
(Provison for)feversal o impairment & BAE RAHEEMHE
Josses on finandial assets and EE(EE)/AE—38

contracts assets — net (263) (1,486) (83,378) - (121) (91) 49 (224) (8,925) (94,439)
Impairment losses on nonfinancal ~ F & HEEFEFE

assets - - - - - (231,314) (188,488) (34,687) - (454,489)
Write-down of inventories of MEFEHA

properties - - (189,921) - - - - - - (189,921)
Wiite-down of inventories e - - - - - - - (15,097) - (15,097)
Finance income B 1,204 349 744 118 - - - - 38,585 41,000
Finance costs SRR (384) (34200 873)  (14769) - - - - (7,109 (97335
Finance income/(costs) — net BBRA/ (K38 820 (33851) (129) (14,651) - - - - (8524) (56,335)
Additions to non-current assets  JERBAERE

(other than financial assets and (BREER

deferred tax assets) BEREEER) 5911 75,644 615,339 VE] - m 1,024 40,648 28,562 767,918
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER (#)
Other segment information (Continued) Hitn BER (&)
Discontinued operations Continuing operations
BHEER KEaRR

Property

Provison of Investment

Online Game Financl and  Securtis  Trading of

Senices - Manufacturing Subotal  Automation Senices  Development  Ivestment ~ Commodities ~ Yacht Club Training Others— Unallocated Sub-tofal Total

o He g Bgt  fERE RBR  E5RE  EmER  BEER Sl it #AR g e
HK$'000 HKk$ 000 HkS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Thr T Thn Thn Thn Thr T Thn Thn Thn Thr T T Thn
(Re-presentec)  (Re-presented)  (Re-presented)
(Eheh) (E0ER)  (ERER)

Vear ended 31 December 2019 EZ=F-NET2R
St-RIER
Deprecation and amortisation  7E R §E 6) 6,687) (6,6%3) (1,509 (16,306) (12,549) (459) - (24.440) (18.210) (5.21) (185) (78.926) (85,619
(Provsion forjreversalof ~ £BEERANEE
impaiment losses on foancal  HEEE(3E)/

asetsand ontectsasets BE—EE

—net - 63,509 63,509) 00 3689 (76,376) 8 0] (E2)] %) (104) - (72.908) (136417)

mpaiment loss on FEREEREER
non-finandial assets - 109%) 109%) - - - - - (166,844) (21861) - - (194705 (205,701)
Wite-down of inventories &g = (19,699) (19,69 (152 = = = = = = = = (15 (19851
finance income 10N - 2947 2947 1m 560 3507 1493 il - - 5 8841 16279 19,26
Finance costs BEAE = = - (788) (9274 (52997) 8.107) (2599 - - (21,266) (113,73) (208,762) (208762)

Finance incomellcost) —net A/ (W)~
e - 2947 2947 94 84 (19470) 6,614) (2,566) - - @) (104891) (192,483) (189,53)

Additions tonon-curent asets 3 EEARRE (48
(other than fnancilassels ~ EERETHELE
and deferred tax assets) E9h) 781 a7 1298 m Mo 591567 87 - 473932 280342 168,134 788 6303617 6904875
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

The information provided to the CEO with respect to total
assets are measured in a manner consistent with that of the
consolidated financial statements. Segment assets comprise all
assets exclude assets held by head office and the inactive
subsidiaries and other unallocated assets that are not directly
attributable to the reportable segments.

The total amount of non-current assets (other than financial
assets and deferred tax assets) located in the PRC and Hong
Kong is approximately HK$9,460,341,000 (2019:
HK$9,423,794,000) and approximately HK$997,114,000
(2019: HK$959,229,000) respectively.

The information provided to the CEO with respect to total
liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with that of the
consolidated financial statements. Segment liabilities comprise
all liabilities exclude liabilities held by head office and the
inactive subsidiaries and other unallocated liabilities that are
not directly attributable to the reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER ()

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) FWEERERE(£F)

ARESHBEELRAREEEAENRE

Reportable segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to total

assets and total liabilities as follows: SEFEREIRMT ¢
Continuing operations
FEREER
Property
Investment
Financial and  Securities  Trading of
Automation Services Development  Investment Commodities Others Total
BBt SEEE kER  R5RE  BRER A Ehy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tn Tin Tin TEn T#n TEn T#n
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-85+-B=1-A
Segment assets PHEE 586,391 2679924 28229402 175,637 25,057 185366 31,998,536
Unallocated assets AOMEE:
Property, plant and equipment % BERRE 28340
Financial assets at FVOCI BATE AL 2ENE
LEHEE 74,551
Investments in associates KB EDRMRE 317,54
Prepayments, depositsand other  ERFUE - BER
receivables EtoENEE 188,067
Cash and cash equivalents ReRELZEN 470,766
Derivative financial assets kX 3,004
Others Aff 14,357
Total assets BESE 33,124,185
Segment liabilities AH8E 139917 954336 18,738,344 212,009 188,878 65725 20,535,540
Unallocated liabiltes: AOTAE:
Accruals and other payables B R AR 40,619
Borrowings &8 1,645,203
Deferred tax abiltes EitHEsE 11,037
Lease liabiltes HEAR 29,688
Total liabilities BEEE

22,262,087
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) TEBE R (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEERERB(E)
Discontinued operations Continuing operations
RIHEERH HELERH
Provision of Property
Online Game Financial Investmentand — Securities  Trading of
Services Manufacturing ~ Automation Services  Development  Investment  Commodities ~ Yacht Club Training Others Total
RUERER ESE
e g Bo  SREH REE E5RE  @BagS  BEER 1| At @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tikn Titn Tikn Tin Thr Thi Thr Thr T Thn
(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(EHM2R) (Eh2d) (2928)
Asat 31 December 2019 R=F-NF
tZA=t-A
Segment assets AHEE - 488684 2394020 23,614,286 670,270 73,148 324,241 266,464 174,026 28,005,139
Unallocated assets AOREE !
Property, plant and 0% BERRE
equipment 5543
Financial assets at VOCI  RATFEF ALK
2EkE 2R
iE 199,030
Investments in associates BB FRIRE 321,780
Prepayments, deposits  EfFUE - Bk
and other receivables  EHEMEA 4,648
Pledged bank deposit ~~ BEFRAFHR
and restricted deposits ~ FRATER 556,000
Cash and cash RERALEEN
equivalents 3332
Derivative financial assets 15 & BERE 13,753
Total assets EESE 29,439,115
Segment liabilities AH8E - 158,624 807,018 14,627,481 226,286 502,401 128538 143,799 16,304 16,610,457
Unallocated liabilites. ~ KARAR
Accruals and other [ ERREE
payables 38 27839
Borrowings EE 1,730,984
Deferred tax labiliies ~ EEHEEE 2,654
Consideration payable ~ JERKE 300,620
Lease liabilties HEEE 5290
Total liabilities il et
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from major products or

service lines:

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

DEER (&)

AEEZRERERIAMBRE D 2B
R4

Continuing operations:
Revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15
— Sale of goods
— Sale of properties
— Installation and maintenance income
— Commission and brokerage income
— Management fee and performance
fee income
— Trading of commodities
— Training services
— Yacht club services
— Construction contracts
— Others

Revenue from other sources
— Securities investment loss
— Interest income
— Rental income

Revenue from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:

Revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15
— Online game operation (Note 9(a))
— Sale of goods (Note 9(b))

Revenue from discontinued
operations

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Transferred over time

BEEE XK

BB R & ERIE 155 #
A2 K EEEFIA K
— HEER

— HEWE

— TRREERA

— A& RS LIWA

— EEBERERBRA

—EmES

— B3I RS

— B PR
—BIAK

— Hit

H R 2 W s
— EFRERE
— FMEWA
—H2WA

REFRCEEBOW S

RIEREREK

BB & 2ERE 1558
A2 K EHBE P& IR 2
— HERBEEEE (T 9a))
— HEEM (MFE9b))

RERIEEE R W
W 2 R 8 B

WA — BT
BERSs PRI

2020 2019
—B-2F —FTNEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHTT
524,022 629,715
682,878 4,960,466
4,699 4,445
69,335 41,986
40,710 18,090
6,129,006 5,160,354
8,915 46,047
1,612 60,027
- 12,280
124,474 9,435
7,585,651 10,942,845
(18,511) (261,817)
132,904 116,414
126,164 90,378
240,557 (55,025)
7,826,208 10,887,820
- 37
- 47,790
- 47,827
7,534,414 10,854,228
51,237 136,444
7,585,651 10,990,672
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166

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue attributed from customers that contributing for 10%

or more of the Group’s total revenue during the year, are as
follows:

DEER (&)
TEEFEH

AR ABRBREEHNE @ SRS EARE
B EEER) 10% A F ¢

Customer A EFEA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C EFC

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no major
customer contributing for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, customer A is from

Property Investment and Development segment and customers
B and C are from Trading of Commodities segment.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2020 2019
—E-EF —EB-NF
HK$’000 HK$000
TAERT FET

- 3,855,601

- 1,755,238

- 1,118,447

BE_T_FTFT-_A=t—HILFE"
BMEI2EFAMAIASERSREN
10% S LA ek

BE-2—NE+-A=+—BILFE
EFARANERERREND  EFB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. OTHER GAINS — NET AND OTHER INCOME 7.

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

Hftsdm— FEREMRA

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Continuing operations: HEKSEER
Other gains — net Httzs— FH
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries KB AR S Mk E
(Note 44) (KteE44) 519,624 95
Fair value gain on derivative financial PTHESBMEE 2 N TERE
assets 18,291 8,895
Fair value loss on financial guarantee MBER 2 AT EEE - (15,970)
Fair value loss on contingent R SAREz A FEER
consideration payable - (5,409)
Gain from derecognition of financial RILERIBERE DG
guarantee contract g %5 33,419 27,348
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - HEREHER
plant and equipment (E518) Wz (123) 397
Others HAh 5,422 8,498
576,633 23,854
Other income Hu A
Dividend income A& B U A 10,781 8,663
Government subsidies (Note) AT B (B 5E) 8,039 5,539
Property management income BRI 1,508 7,278
Handling fee income FEBKA 7,747 5,804
Others Hfth 18,056 12,113
46,131 39,397
Discontinued operations: BRI
Other losses — net and other income HEE— FHEREMWA
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEYE - HEKEEDN
equipment 518 = (3,194)
Others Hi - 2,060
- (1,134)
Note: st -

Among the government subsidies, HK$6,539,000 (2019: Nil) are government
subsidies obtained from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-
epidemic Fund launched by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees. The
remaining represented the encouragement of development of culture and
creative companies and the support of the Group’s automation business from the
relevant government authorities. The Group has complied with the requirements
set out in the subsidy notice or relevant law and regulations.

B HE B EREBFRTRRBA LN EES
I8 N RBEE JFT 2B M BUT Rk 6,539,000 78 T (=
T-NGF:8) UIREEEIMNITERMR - H&f
BT E BT AR B AR RBEE UL REIEE
BRIEFAEEN S EBMZENMHE) - AEE
BENH RS EREAERERNAEER -

167

Annual Report & 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SV 265 e A B i

8. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 8. FR(EE) H=A
(Loss)/profit for the year is arrived at after charging/(crediting): FR(ER) HAEE(GEA)
2020 2019
—E-S& “E-NF
Continuing Continuing  Discontinued
operations operations operations Total
BECEER BitdE e - e
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET TET FTAT
Auditor's remuneration TR
— Audit services — RERS 5,839 6,834 16 6,350
— Non-audit services — FRERS 950 3,835 - 3,835
Cost of inventories and FERMEFERA
inventories of properties 7,082,187 8,826,082 29,888 8,855,970
Write-down of inventories and T & R EF S 3K
inventories of properties (Note) ~ (Fff#E) 205,018 152 19,699 19,851
Cost of inventories and RERINEERNE
inventories of properties FEKA
recognised as expenses 7,287,205 8,826,234 49,587 8,875,821
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ #Ef¥ & E# i
(Note 18) (Ft5E18) 43,658 37,926 295 38,221
Depreciation of property, plant ~ ¥1% - BiE KR ETE
and equipment (Note 16) (3£ 16) 54,406 41,000 6,398 47,398
Directors’ and chief executive's EZRFETHRAEZ
emoluments (Note 12) e (FtzE12) 15,570 16,541 - 16,541
Employee benefit expenses B8R X (fizE10)
(Note 10) 234,699 162,149 11,502 173,651
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEWE  BERREZ
property, plant and equipment 518,/ (Wzs) (B 7)
(Note 7) 123 (397) 3,194 2,797
Net foreign exchange (gainsy’ ~ SME (Wiz%) /B 1BSE
losses (18,914) 16,840 (582) 16,258
Short-term lease expenses REHEER 7,733 4917 1,473 6,390
Research and development HEER
expenses - - 7,049 7,049
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8.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

8. FR(EHE) EHwe

Impairment losses/(reversal of)
impairment losses on financial
assets and contract assets
—net:

— loans and advance (Note 25)
— trade receivables (Note 26)
— other receivables (Note 29)
— contract assets (Note 27(a))

Impairment losses on non-
financial assets:
— intangible assets (Note 18)
— property, plant and
equipment (Note 16)

Note:

2020 2019
S s i . wlhia
Continuing Continuing  Discontinued
operations operations operations Total
BESEER BRettd-Ey e 3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET FAT FAT
SHMEERANEERRE
B8,/ R EEE (BE)
—FE
— BEREBR(KfF25) 1,486 (3,774) = (3,774)
— [EWE SRR (KI5 26) 475 236 63,509 63,745
— Hin R (P95 29) 32,662 5,575 = 5,575
— ANEE (M3E270) 59,816 70,871 = 70,871
94,439 72,908 63,509 136,417
FeMEERERE
— B EE (HFE18) 419,802 140,094 2,661 142,755
— ¥ BERR
(Ffsx16) 34,687 54,611 8,335 62,946
454,489 194,705 10,996 205,701
B -

Write-down of inventories and inventories of properties to net realisable value of
approximately HK$205,018,000 was included in “cost of sales” of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (2019: HK$152,000 was
included in “cost of sales” and HK$19,699,000 was included in the “loss for the
year from discontinued operations” of the consolidation statement of

comprehensive income).

& RYET S MIEE R 31 FE4 205,018,000
T AREEERER [HEXKER] R (ZT—NEF -
152,000 BILE T ARG 2 E TR [$5ER A ] A
%.19,699,000 8 LBt ARG 2 EME RN [ANFE

QEEBZBRD -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ VA 5 i A Pl

9.

170

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-Z-NF+-A=1T—HLFE

A gain of approximately HK$62,363,000 arose on the
disposal of Kingworld Holdings. No tax charge or credit
arose from the disposal. Details of the assets and liabilities
disposed of and the gain on disposal of Kingworld
Holdings is disclosed in note 44(b).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

(a) Discontinued Operation — Online game (a) ARILBEXEK— EREHEE
operation
On 29 June 2019, the Group entered into a sale and R-ZE—HNFAAZ+NB K&
purchase agreement to dispose of its entire equity Bzl —HBEEHEALEER—
interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Kingworld M JE 2 & K B 2 "lKingworld
Holdings Limited (“Kingworld Holdings”). Kingworld Holdings Limited ([ Kingworld
Holdings and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in Holdings|) 2 #B f% #  Kingworld
provision of online game services. The results and cash Holdings R E i B AR X 2 H1R
flows of the discontinued operation of online game HRIEAR BB ARTS o TEARDFEL S 1B
operation and the gain on disposal are as follows: IS B RESRMEE
a2 FHBWT
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FH&T
Revenue Weas 37
Cost of sales SHE RN (1,468)
Distribution costs Pali=ID Wi 9)
Administrative expenses THRER (1,524)
Other income and gains H AU A Rz 30
Loss before income tax MRAETSBiIRIE 8 (2,934)
Income tax expense Frig®if =
Loss after income tax from discontinued REKRIEREEBNRAEBEE
operation = (2,934)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BT B A B TS W as 62,363
Profit for the year from discontinued REARREELNERER
operation 59,429
Cash flows from discontinued operation: RERIEREEBNRSRE
Operating cash flows REBHERE (2,390)

& Kingworld Holdings & 4 Y 25 49
62,363,000/ 7T - L EWRELE
MIBMRSERR - HENEERE
& LA & & Kingworld Holding 2 4%
w2 FE BRI 44(b) AR FE ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 9. RIEREXEK &)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued) BE—T-hE+=-A=+—HLFE®

(b) Discontinued operation — Manufacturing (b) ARILASEXEK— RE

The Group entered into sale and purchase agreements to
dispose of its entire equity interests in two non-wholly
owned subsidiaries, Shenzhen Bao Yao Construction
Engineering Co. Limited (“Bao Yao Construction”) and
Bao Yao International Technology Limited (“Bao Yao
International”) on 15 November 2019 and on 30
December 2019 respectively. The subsidiaries were
principally engaged in the LED manufacturing of a range
of high-technology and new energy products business.

AEEDHN=-_ZT—hLF+—A
LEBR-Z=—h&+—A=48
FIVEEREANEERREIES
BEWNBARIFYIEREETIRZAR
Al ((ERER]) MEREERE
BERAR(ERERR])HEIRK
E-WBRAREENRE—RIEF
B REFEIRE A LED R E - Bl
ENZEBERBSRNHEZERE

The results and cash flows of manufacturing business and ZEEBIT
the loss on disposal are as follows:
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FH&T
Revenue Was 47,790
Cost of sales HEXA (56,868)
Distribution costs 2 $HRK R (501)
Administrative expenses TRER (104,124)
Other losses — net and other income HithEis — S5 R E AW A (1,164)
Finance income BIREHA 2,947
Loss before income tax MRETEBATEE (111,920)
Income tax expense Frig®if = (5)
Loss after income tax from discontinued RELILLEEEENBRFIBHREZ
operation BB (111,925)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENRB ARG ZBE (36,231)
Loss for the year from discontinued RERLLREEBHFAEE
operation (148,156)
Cash flows from discontinued operation: REARLKREEBNESRE
Operating cash flows KERERE 24,986
Investing cash flows KERSRE 2,042
Financing cash flows BERSRE (37,619)
Total cash flows BanERsE (10,591)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SV 265 e A B i

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 9. RIEREEK &)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

(b) Discontinued operation — Manufacturing

(Continued)

A loss of approximately HK$36,231,000 arose on the
disposal of Bao Yao International and Bao Yao
Construction. No tax charge or credit arose from the
disposal. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of
and the loss on disposal of Bao Yao International and Bao
Yao Construction are disclosed in notes 44(d) and 44(e)

respectively.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS)

Continuing operations:

Wages and salaries

Other employee benefits

Pension costs-defined contribution plans
and social security costs

Discontinued operations:

Wages and salaries

Other employee benefits

Pension costs-defined contribution plans
and social security costs

FREEERY

T& R H

H it 8 T1&H|

RIS — E BB RET 81 &
HEREKA

RIEEEER

T & N

Hh 8 T

RIRERA —EREREE R
HERERA
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BE—Z-NFT-A=+T—HLFE®

(b) AUZERKE— RE(H)

HEERERRERERELEIE
4736,231,0008 7T ° ZHEWKE
EHENRSER - HEEREE
REREENEERABEFBRD
& B 1B 5 B B s 44(d) & 44(e) B

L-?go

10. ETREANAX(TEREESRE
M)

2020 2019
—E-FF —FTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THAT
207,051 124,585
14,076 14,980
13,572 22,584
234,699 162,149

- 10,283

- 443

- 776

- 11,502




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS)
(Continued)

(i

(ii)

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), which is a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong
(the employer) and its Hong Kong employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employee are subject to a
cap of HK$1,500 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC contribute to state-
sponsored retirement plans for its employees. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of the employees, the basic salaries and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

10. ETH{AAZ(TEREEEE
MRERER) )

AEEDLHERBREE D INET
MRAESFE((RESE ) H
AABYZTAEENERENG
gl o RIBRIE SRS REBEE
MNEMBAR(EEX)BEGEES
BEAZE® AMTEELNHAER
EEAB(ERRRGIEAESE
B)5% MK - EFEEESEN
F A HZHLA1,5008 T A R
A ERR A SRAIE B RS -

PR RARBIRTR - NP EE
BB ARASERERBEIRZE N
RRRETEIEL K - ZFHB A
AW ABMNE THLAME TERH
B BERERIN  WEER R
ReHERREBANOEMEME
f- BRERZEARAZAE N
BN TERKEE 22BERAKRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ VA 5 i A Pl

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING 10. EIEMNE X (T OIEEEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS) MRER) 2

(Continued)

Five highest paid individuals hEEEHFAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEERERSFALBE=ZEEE (=
Group include three directors (2019: two directors), whose T-NF:-MBES) A2 R
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 12. REVNHND TR - RFRNERNHRTH
The emoluments payable to the remaining two individuals BAT(ZE—NF: Z2AD)OHE
(2019: three individuals) during the year are as follows: ;YT

2020 2019
—E-FF —FNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TR

Basic salaries, bonuses, other allowances — EA¥& - fE4L - A M2EL KR

and benefits in kind B 3,917 6,065
Retirement benefit-defined contribution R KIEF—E 2B K ET 2
scheme 36 53
3,953 6,118
The emoluments fell within the following bands: Bl <& B LA T &85 -

Number of individuals

BERIALEHE
2019

—E—NF
Emolument bands B < 2i g
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T & 2,000,000 75 7T 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 2
No inducement for joining the Group or compensation for loss RER - AEB I EE sk e IR U8
of office was paid or payable to any five highest paid individuals FHEAARZ=HAL  EARSIEEN
during the year (2019: nil). AREER SRR ERBERNEE(ZT

—hEFE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

11. FINANCE COSTS — NET 1. BBRAE— FHE
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Continuing operations: HEKSEEK
Finance income: BN -
— Interest income on bank deposits — RITERFBWA 28,865 16,279
— Interest income on bond receivable — BRESHFEHA 12,135 =
41,000 16,279
Finance costs: B AS
— Bank loans — iRITER (344,384) (205,143)
— Trust receipt loans — IR ER (316) 711)
— Obligation under repurchase — B RS T A RE
agreements (9,893) (6,125)
— Margin loans —HFEREX (5,077) =
— Corporate bonds — RAEEFH (122,908) (78,960)
— Other loans — HthEHR (267,851) (152,500)
— Note payables — ENEE (6,331) =
— Loans from related parties — BEEE T B3k (FF5E 50(0))
(Note 50(c)) (2,641) (35,084)
— Imputed interest on consideration — ERAREN®HERNE
payable (Note 34) (fF5E34) (18,826) (14,127)
— Lease liabilities —HEAE (7,444) (1,766)
(785,671) (494,416)
Less: Interest capitalised on o BARMERE
— investment properties under —ERREME
construction 128,128 42,604
— properties under development —BEPYE 560,208 243,050
(97,335) (208,762)
Finance costs from continuing operations, 1345 48 & 2 7§ &= £ B BF 7S A AR
net HER (56,335) (192,483)
Discontinued operations: HIERE T
Finance income: 3 O
— Interest income on bank deposits — RITERF WA - 34
— Others — EAh - 2,913
Finance income from discontinued BIEREEBEENTBRA
operations (Note 9(b)) (FF5E9(b)) - 2,947
Note: The weighted average capitalisation rate for the year on fund's borrowed Med: E2EFNFENETHERNCEAETF
is at a rate of 5.86% (2019: 7.45%) per annum. 5.86% (ZZF—N&F : 7.45%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ VA 5 i A Pl

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 12. ESREFRER

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments BEERTETHRAEZHME

The remuneration of each director and the chief executive of He T ZF+_-_A=1+—HILtFE -
the Company paid/payable by the Group for the year ended 31 REBDON /ENORARELESE KT
December 2020 is set out below: BN T

Salaries
allowances Employer’s
and benefit Discretionary contribution
in kind bonuses  to pension
Name of director BE=2E Fees (Note a) (Note b) scheme

2R
RENE WERL EIRKS
ik (Ffeta) (M=t b) ST #5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET TR FET TR

Executive directors HITES

Yao Jianhui HER 600 1,082 323 33 2,038
Li Minbin ZHOR, 1,188 1,672 474 64 3,398
Huang Wei B 360 - - - 360
Lau Wan Po e 3,000 2,693 1,800 18 7,51
Ye Weiging (Note ) ZEF(WE 253 = = = 253

Non-executive director ~ FH{TE=E

Zhang Chi SRt 312 200 58 40 610
Independent non- BUEGTES
executive directors
Wong Chun Bong TR 660 - 20 = 680
Lee Kwan Hung Y 360 - - - 360
Lee Kwok On, Matthew ~ ZEZ 360 - - - 360
7,093 5,647 2,675 155 15,570
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

12. EER/ARER 2

The remuneration of each director and the chief executive of
the Company paid/payable by the Group for the year ended 31

EERFIETBAEZHME (@)

HE_Z—

NELZAd _BLEE

2 H
AEEEN NN ARREEREERT

December 2019 is set out below: BBEMF T
Salaries
allowances Employer’s
and benefit  Discretionary  contribution
in kind bonuses to pension
Name of director EEEE Fees (Note a) (Note b) scheme Total
- /%HE
‘ &E%%ﬁ il BB TEAT BiRke
Hwe (PHzxa) (P5ED) BN Kb
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAL FAL FAET FAT
Executive directors HITES
Yao Jianhui HhiEiE 600 830 323 53 1,806
Li Minbin £y 1,140 1,698 998 97 3,933
Huang Wei =R 360 - - - 360
Lau Wan Po (Note d) 22 Mz d) 1,525 1,932 4,218 21 7,696
Ye Weiging (Note e) Z£&5 (Mze) 203 = = = 203
Zhang Chi (Note g) i (f3Eg) 207 204 28 68 507
Non-executive directors I {TEE
Chen Kaiben (Note f) BrRe a (R f) = 111 53 29 193
Lau Wan Po (Note d) 217 (fizEd) 418 = = = 418
Zhang Chi (Note g) ot (P g) 105 - - - 105
Independent non- BUFHITES
executive directors
Wong Chun Bong TR 600 - - - 600
Lee Kwan Hung &30 360 - - - 360
Lee Kwok On, Matthew TE% 360 = = = 360
5,878 4,775 5,620 268 16,541
Notes MisE
(@) Being salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid or payable in (a) HARNE REMEA $j%% ERAME
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and its DEYVANE A /$HEY§¢W%7F
subsidiaries
(b)  Discretionary bonuses are determined on the performance of the employees (b)y BIBEAREEENRRIORE

(a] Appointed on 30 August 2019 and resigned on 2 June 2020

(d) Re-designated from non-executive director to executive director on 1

March 2019

(e) Appointed on 30 August 2019

) Appointed on 1 November 2018 and resigned on 30 August 2019. The
director has unconditionally waived his entitlement to a director’s fee of
HK$20,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019

(9 Re-designated from executive director to non-executive director on 30

August 2019

—NENA=ZTHEZEIR_F=
Tﬁxxﬁl HEHE

—hE=ZRA—BmFRTEERER
§MT§$
R-E-NFENA=ZTHEERE
R_F-NF+— E%;EI AZF
—hENA= +Elr‘§ﬂ£ BE-—T—NF+=

A=+—RALFE - §$aﬂ@#mﬁﬁ;
BH20,000 8 TEE RS

—NENAZ+HRRTEERETR
3E$}1ﬁ§$
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12.

178

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no
arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments. No inducement for joining the Group
or compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any
directors during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, except for Chen
Kaiben, there were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. No inducement
for joining the Group or compensation for loss of office was
paid or payable to any directors during the year.

The remuneration shown represented remuneration received
from the Group by these directors in their capacity as employee
to the Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group does not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors
(2019: Nil).

Save as disclosed in note 50, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2019: Nil).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

12. EET/ARERS 2

EERFETBAEZHME (@)

HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE "
BEEENELRERETAHESN L
BE e MER - NEEWED (KRN R
FATEMES  ERBRIIWFMARSE
B (E RABER A f(E -

BE_T-NF+_A=+T—HLEFE"
Bﬁﬁ%»ﬂ#ﬁl\ BEEENELRBNES
IS ZEE - RER - AEEWED [
KRB IR T EAES - (EAWSIEK
EMAREE KA SBERAAE o

M EREFEEGRASERE
R/ 5 RN RERHHWIAEEEE
M -

BE_T-_TF+_A=1+—HLEFE"
AREEYERIREEZTREGAEME=
AXMRE(ZE-NF  E) -

R-ZE-ZFE+-_A=+—H HMEIUE
2 EEIXENWEERERERAR S

AZEF  EEFRHEMRZLHF(ZF
—hEFE) -
BRETEESOPTINEEE SN - NEEBER] L

EAEEXBHER MARREFTERS
FEEAEA D AN FRNFREMR
REAFEZEARS  ZHEER(ZF
—hEFE) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 13. FAIBH (ER) BIxX

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Continuing operations:
Current tax
— Hong Kong Profits tax
— PRC enterprise income tax
— PRC LAT

Under/(over) provision in prior years

Deferred tax (Note 36)

Discontinued operations:
Current tax
— PRC enterprise income tax

Total income tax (credit)/expense from
continuing and discontinued operations

FrSBE N ARR PRI ¢

2020 2019
—E-FF = ils
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FH&TT
BEEEEK
BIHARH IR
— HEBEFEH 30,492 17,669
— PRI EREH 12,158 192,825
— PR i (E R 58,351 430,228
101,001 640,722
BEFERETR
(EBZERE) 1,074 (764)
102,075 639,958
EIERIA (M 5E36) (195,470) (44,515)
(93,395) 595,443
RILEEER
BNERRE 18
— R ERBH - B)
= 5
REABELENDRIEEE
EBMFSRE(ER), /X H (93,395) 595,448
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13.

180

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)
Provision for income tax

Hong Kong Profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit for the year (2019: 16.5%),
except for one subsidiary of the Company which is a qualifying
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. For
this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits are
taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed
at 16.5%.

The statutory income tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is 25% (2019: 25%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including leasehold land
payments and all property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated the tax provision for LAT according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

13. FIBH (BR) B =)

FRGBiRME

KEEBBNESH BB IR T ERRF
HR165% (=T —hF : 165%):18 -
HEARDNRHET —BHBATATAETN
BRMEREE TG EREE - %M
BARMERKRABNe a8 LK
8.25% My Fi R - EerERHFIHIZ
16.5% B R R BF -

RPEEENHBRATNEERR A
25% (ZZF—NF : 25%) °

THRERDIE L ERIEERI0%E
60% M REMRRFTE  BEBRIHEEY
EMETIERGKEE LN RANAE
WMEBRAXFANRFASL - AREER
B BRREREERERER AT AR
FEfhET LR ER RS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled
to (loss)/profit before income tax in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income at applicable tax rates as follows:

(Loss)/profit before income tax
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable in the respective jurisdiction

Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax
purposes

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Tax effect of share of results of associates

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Provision for LAT

LAT deductible for calculation of income
tax

Under/(over) provision in prior years

Income tax (credit)/expense

BRPrSELAT (BE), a8 F
—REREE
— RIERERR

FRIB I RMA B A 2
B2 B
BAMBGE 2 BB E

PRBENRAX I MBS

DIRBE R R EENB T E
RERHEBR BB E
AN R FERR 2 BB & 18

iﬂﬂifﬁﬁﬁéﬁ

ST E TSR AT H0R 2 i
HE

BEFERETR (BREEE)

PRSI %) FiX

13. FTEH (BR) BIXZ ()

AEEMEHRER) HAIAIHEEE
Mk AL ERA R EBERAOBRETEH
AT (E18), /S M L8R -
2020 2019
—_ 7 — ﬂE _j-LE'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
(674,187) 1,658,969
- (88,722)
(674,187) 1,570,247
(149,730) 358,816
(142,855) (147,195)
62,503 30,678
(2,642) (3,404)
102,571 47,421
(8,079) (12,775)
58,351 430,228
(14,588) (107,557)
1,074 (764)
(93,395) 595,448
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14.

15.

182

DIVIDENDS 14.

(@ No dividend was proposed during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year:

“FEEFR-FB-NF+Z
T-HLEFE- $E5E,é4‘ii§$u§/iﬁﬁ

(o) BEVERFEERIBELCDHRFEAL
HERIRA RS,

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHIT

Final dividend paid in respect of prior ME—FERNZKHARE

year
— Nil (2019: HK0.20 cent per share) —ZE(ZE—NEF:
B A0.20710)
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.

The basic (loss)/earnings per share for the year is calculated by
dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(excluding treasury shares held by the Group) of
30,605,023,000 (2019: 26,863,329,000) during the year.
There were no potential dilutive ordinary share outstanding for
both years and therefore the dilutive earnings per share is the
same as basic earnings per share.

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

= 54,775

SR (&8 BR

FRERELR(EBR) BFDHBREAR
AIMEA AL (B518) % T Bk AE 847
TR INEESSR(TREAEERFR
B EFR%)30,605,023,000 % (=
T — L4 : 26,863,329,000 % ) 5T & - iy
RERGENRBTBEESLTRER &
ISR s R YR ERZFER -

ERAEBABEERERN(BE) &
FTRBIA T ERGTE

2019
—NF
'000
T

Weighted average number of ordinary FERER(EBER) BRI
shares in issue (excluding treasury shares B 377 % 8 A% &9 hiEF 5

24

held by the Group) during the year for (TEEREEFARERN

basic (loss)/earnings per share EEFRR 1)

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

30,605,023 26,863,329




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(@) From continuing and discontinued

(b)

(9]

operations

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following:

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

15. SR (E#E) BF =)

(a) REFHELERRILEEXK

ARREAARBEERER(E
18),/ B TORIBIA TRE

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of
the Company (HK$'000)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (expressed

in Hong Kong cents per share)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company from continuing

operations is based on the following:

ARRHEAR ANEMR (BR),
A (FETT)

FREXR(ER),
B (ABBEILIZ5)

2019

—E-NF

(217,251) 684,292
(0.71) 2.55

REFECEEBHARTEAA
A S IR A (R51R),/ BRI T A
TEE

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of
the Company (HK$'000)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (expressed

in Hong Kong cents per share)

From discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company from discontinued operations is

based on the following:

ZAY/NCTE? DN 3
(&8), &7 (F&T)

FREKR(BER),
BN (AZEAWZS)

2019
—E-NF

(217,251) 757,799
(0.71) 2.82

KERIEREEBEOARRBERA
FEIEEREARBRTIIZATE

Loss attributable to owners of the
Company (HK$'000)

Basic loss per share (expressed in Hong

Kong cents per share)

ARBHEEARIEER

BRENEE (ASEE

2019
—E-NF
N/A
TEA (73,507)
N/A
TEH (0.27)
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. V¥ BEKRRKE
Leasehold
improvement,
furniture Land and
and fixtures  Machinery properties
and office and factory  Computer Motor  Construction- leased for
Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment vehicles  in-progress Yacht  own used Total
HERE & HEE
AREBUR  REES Rzl

BT ROERE REERE  TERG nE  ERIE BE  tHRYE it
HKJ000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK§'000
TEL TAT ThT ThET TEL TAT TiT T TEL

(Note (e))
(Frzke)

At 1 January 2019 R=B-7%-F-H

Cost KA 530718 40,333 47004 9,574 7,947 . : 17738 653334
Accumulated depreciationand ~ Z3FTE A

impairment (155601) (26328 (34,247) (5,.207) (4303) 2 : (370)  (226,056)

375,117 14,005 12,777 4,367 3644 = = 17368 42778

For the year ended BE-2-NEt=h

31 December 2019 =+-ALEE

Opening net book amount EREFE 375,117 14,005 12,777 4,367 3,644 = = 17,368 47278
Additions AE S 15,578 438 7,85 311 103 = 23,19 47482
Transfer to investment properties  EEZRANE

(Note 17) (FitzE17) (223,983) - - - - - - - (B8)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHEAR

(Note 45A) (HzE45A) 4626 32,722 : : 2,155 34,256 2,838 113249 189,846
Acquisition of subsidiaries under ! F— 2| THIHB

common control (Note 458) A7) (fifzE458) = 3428 = = 393 = = = 3821
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR

(Note 44(b) (Ff3E44(0) - (7118) - - = = = = (718)
Disposals it - (916) (2,752) - (943) - - - (4611)
Depreciation ik (8,200) (17,017) (1,528) (139) (809) - (279) (18,162) (47,398)
Impairment HE - (21,019 (8,339) = Bl (32,69) (868) = (62,946)
Exchange realignment EXAE (248) (1,013 (28) 22) (491) (1,565) (342) (2,391) (6,100)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 147,306 25,050 572 10,803 4229 101 1350 133,260 322,671
At 31 December 2019 iy 3

+ZR=1-A

Cost R 302,247 76,023 34,118 17,183 8375 32,794 2473 151,457 624,630
Accumulated depreciationand  ZaFTERAE

impairment (154941)  (50973)  (33,546) (6,340) (4146 (32,693) (1123 (18197)  (301,959)
Net book amount BEFE 147,306 25,050 572 10,803 4229 101 1,350 133260 322671
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)  16. ¥ 3 - ME KRR E (&)

Leasehold
improvement,
furniture Land and
and fixtures  Machinery properties
and office and factory ~ Computer Motor  Construction leased for
Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress Yacht  own used Total
BERE & e
AREENR  REHS HAM

BT MWOERE RERRE  EHRG hE  ERIE B tHRAE it
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000
TERL TAL Thn T TEL TAL ThAn ThEL TEL

(Note (e))
(B (e)
For the year ended BE-E-B512f

31 December 2020 =t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENERTE 147,306 25,050 572 10,803 4229 101 1,350 133,260 322,67
Additions AE = 32,104 4,700 1,558 1,061 5,641 - 96,847 141,911
Transfer to investment properties  EBERANE (HfE17)

(Note 17) (11,958) - - - - - - - (11,958)
Transfer from investment gReRENE (WE17)

properties (Note 17) 209,197 - - - - - - - 209,197
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR (F440)

(Note 44(a)) (3,777) (749) (636) (8,415) @ - - (4,840) (18,421)
Lease modification REET - - - - - - - 1,192 1,192
Disposals HE - (497) = = (123) = - = (620)
Depreciation ik (12,854) (12,996) (191) (1,151) (1,170) - (336) (25,708) (54,406)
Impairment HE - - - - - - - (34,687) (34,687)
Exchange realignment EH 3% 279 2,460 45 2 143 186 P! 6,062 9,469
Closing net book amount FREEFE 328,193 45372 4,490 2816 4,136 5,928 1,287 172,126 564,348
At 31 December 2020 RZBZ2F+ZR

Sqr={
Cost A 348,696 99,368 22,176 13,719 8,558 40,490 2,887 241,646 777,540
Accumulated depreciationand ~ Z3FTERAE

impairment (20,503) (53,996) (17,686) (10,903) (4,422) (34,562) (1,600) (69,520) (213,192

Net book amount RAFE 328,193 45372 4,490 2,816 4136 5928 1,287 172,126 564,348
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

186

Notes:

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the outbreak of Covid-19
pandemic and the subsequent quarantine measures as well as the travel
restrictions imposed by many countries have had negative impacts to the
global economy, business environment and directly and indirectly affect
the operations of the Group. The Group suspended its operation of golf
practising court under other segment for a certain period during the year
due to the mandatory government quarantine measures in an effort to
contain the spread of the pandemic. As such, the financial performance
of the operation of golf practising court was affected in certain aspects,
including reduction in revenue and results. The global health emergency
resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic has led to a decline in the demand
for the services from the operation of golf practising court, primarily due
to the Group suffering from enforced golf practising court closure. The
operation of golf practising court continues to be significantly impacted
by the Covid-19 pandemic even after the golf practising court is
reopened. The timing and extent of a recovery of consumer behaviour
and willingness to spend discretionary income on golf practising court
may delay the Group’s ability to generate significant revenue until such
time as consumer behaviour normalises and consumer spending recovers.

Accordingly, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU of
the operation of golf practising court. As at 31 December 2020, the
recoverable amount of the CGU related to operation of golf practising
court have been determined based on value-in-use calculations, which is
arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer. These calculations use cash flow projections based on
the most recent financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. The key assumptions for the cash
flow projections are those regarding the annual projected revenue over
five-year period, growth rate and discount rate. The annual projected
revenue over five-year period ranged from approximately HK$ 13,708,000
to HK$16,037,000. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3%.
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the business in which the CGU operated. The pre-tax discount rate used is
15.88%.

As a result, the carrying amount of this CGU was written down to its
recoverable amount of approximately HK$59,144,000. An impairment
loss of approximately HK$34,687,000 (2019: nil) was allocated to the
leasehold land for own use in this CGU and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2020.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

16. ¥  BMEKRE#)

GEE

(a)

BHE_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HILtEE

REBGLt-—ZE-_FTE+-_A=1+—RHItFE"
2019 B MR B RRIBE 2 BB RBER 2 BBk
A R E S ERE M2 RITIR 6] 8 2 B
B EERREATARYE  WEEKE
EVETAKBZIES - BRBT RIS G
MREEBAEHRBEELE  AEERFER
FBREEELLEEMH B TAFBAIK
HEL At SMARBSNLEENBER
BIE—EHE DEREREENRD -
2019 MRS RBZBEERHEHREEREM
NEHEREREIGEEEREOFTRTEE -
FTERARASENRRAMEZE %G
B BMERBARBSERE  ARAR
BIZHELNZ R 2019 B E T HR B A B
BEYE -FARNHEBETARRER KRB
B LB EXRKRAZ BB ZIRBER
EREE AEBEERERSZENTES
TE BERHEEETALELREEELY
A ] »

At AEEFERBRARESLENES
EXBUMNAIKESHE RZ2Z_SF+=
A=+—HB HAEBARE5LBRHENE
SELBMNNAKESED ERMNEREER
HEmEE  WKB Y B EGEEMETEED
EEMGL - ZFAEFEAURRAAESE
AR R S R F R SO B S TR E A KR
MIRERETRE - REREER N BERER
RRAEHEATHHENTEET K R
RRIFERNBE - BEHMEE B WS
7 %913,708,000 % 7T Z= 16,037,000 7 7T °
BEAFHEZRESRERA M INETFEYS
WERIPHE - ZWRRIHBARSEE
BAUKEEBNRBTEEER - FiEAD
HATIRE A15.88% °

At BRS¢ ELBUNERECHRER
A] Uy [@ 4 %8 459,144,000 7T © SR E B L
34,687,000 (=T —hF : H)ENEZR
ZECEAEMNANEARE L WRE
E-T-_TE+-_A=Z+—HIEENGE
2EWHRPER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

During the year ended 31 December 2019, management identified
impairment indicator of certain leasehold improvement, office equipment,
motor vehicles, construction in progress and yacht due to decline in
performance in the segments of yacht club as well as training.

Accordingly, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the CGUs of
the operation yacht club and training.

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU related to
the yacht club has been determined based on value-in-use calculations,
which is arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer. These calculations use cash flow projections based on
the most recent financial forecasts approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate
of 1%. The growth rate do not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the business in which the CGU operated. The key assumptions
used for the cash flow projections are (i) discount rate of 20%; and (ii)
annual projected revenue over five-year period ranged from
HK$51,236,000 to HK$109,063,000. The pre-tax discount rate used was
17.86%.

The recoverable amount of the CGU related to the training has been
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal which is arrived at on
the bases of valuation carried out by an independent professional valuer.
The fair value less cost of disposal of the CGU is level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. The key assumptions to determine the fair value less costs
of disposal under income approach using present value technique are
discount rates and annual projected revenue over five-year period. The
pre-tax discount rate used was 18%.

As a result, the carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment in
these CGUs were written down to their recoverable amounts. Impairment
loss of (i) approximately HK$54,611,000 was allocated to the property,
plant and equipment, in which approximately HK$31,870,000 arose in
the CGU of yacht club and approximately HK$22,741,000 arose in the
CGU of training respectively; and (i) HK$140,094,000 was allocated to
the operating right under intangible assets (note 18) of which
approximately HK$134,974,000 arose in the CGU of yacht club and
approximately HK$5,120,000 arose in the CGU of training respectively.

The key assumptions for the cash flow projections are those regarding the
discount rates, annual projected revenue over five-year period and growth
rates. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The annual projected revenue over five-year period
and growth rates are based on past performance and expectations of
market development.

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

16. ¥ BMEKRRE#)

GEE

(a)

(&

HE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—HILFE

HE_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HIEFE @A
RIBREGFRIEINABMOEETE  EEE
HpETHERE RAERE = HE
TRRERNBERER

FEt - AR B R A 2 A T R B DI 3R
SELBEVMAKREEE -

R-T—hE+-A=+—8 HBEESH
SHEENREELEMNITNBSEEE
REREESNEmMEE - YABBYEEMS
ERIETREMSL - ZZ5TEREMA UK
AREFCHRENAE RSP EENBIK
BHHSREEARET - AFULMES
MEBREAGET1%INETFEE R RRHE
B SRRV EBBRSEEEMAE
TENRBPFHERER - BRESREER
# B BB BGO20%H TR E ()N T
51,236,000 7T = 109,063,000 7T 2 WM A
FHRFE A - FifE AN ATITIRER
517.86% °

EIEJIAENRSELBUMAIKE S ER
RBAFERBEXAENOERMET - M
SHEERBBYEXMGEMNEESE - H
CEEBUMNATEREERARE=ZRE
BUHATEFE o E£ARERMRETRA
AT )R FAER & AR5 R AR = AT
RERAFHRNFETRA RS IERER -
PR AETRAT TR £ 7318% -

Hitr WERSELEBMNPYE - BEKRK
HEHEEECHRE SN T REESE - 5/l
{EE18()#54,611,0008 TE D EEEWE
W= K& 5 - H 7 4931,870,000 % It 3k A %
B PTHY IR & B A4 B K 1 #4922,741,000 78
TRABINESEE EN: R
(i)140,094,000 B TE N EEEEFEEE K
weE g (fH3E18) » H A 49134,974,000 T 2R
B S FTRYIR @ E £ B K 45,120,000 74
TREFINNREEELEN -

RenERANBRERRITREEREITRE -
AFERNFERARERERETNER -

SERARBBANMSEEREREBNT
1t R 3R & 7 AR B AL R R R B O A5 A L AR A
FHAERE - AFMMFERMRERERE
EABENRREETSEROBHRBEKE
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Depreciation expense of approximately HK$6,853,000 (2019:
HK$9,457,000) was charged to cost of sales and approximately
HK$47,553,000 (2019: HK$37,941,000) was charged to administrative
expenses, respectively for both continuing and discontinued operations.

(a] As at 31 December 2019, the Group is in the process of applying for real
estate ownership certificates of certain factory buildings and the carrying
amounts of buildings is included in property, plant and equipment,
amounted to approximately HK$5,319,000. The relevant buildings have
been disposed through the disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended
31 December 2020.

(d) Buildings with carrying value amounted to approximately
HK$126,632,000 (2019: HK$137,039,000) have been pledged to secure
the Group'’s bank borrowings (Note 35).

(e) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

16. ¥  BMEKRE#)
MIEE - (48)

(b) #76,853,000 BT FHE S & RIX I 2 %75
MITEER(ZZT— N 9,457,000 7T)E
ST ASHERA - #947,553,000%8 7 (=ZZF— AN,
£ :37,941,0007%70) EFF AT -

(© RZTE-AEF+=ZA=+-—8 AEEBEHE
%%?W%W%ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁ% g F
EEEFTADE BEREHE 05
5,319,000 7T - HEEFERHEE_T_F
F+-A=t+—BLEFEEEBLE —HHB
ATTFULE -

(d) B M 18 #126,632,0008 T( — & — fL % -
137,039,000 7T) MIEFEERTEER R
T AR (FF7E35) -

(e) EREEE

NHBEEEN D REEREEEREEND

Ownership interests in leasehold land
held for own use, carried at
depreciated cost in the PRC

Other properties leased for own use,
carried at depreciated cost

FRIAE - e TS R

ERARTIR
Notes:
(i) Leasehold land for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use a parcel of land in the
PRC for its operation of golf practising court. The lease term is 17
years. Lump sum payments were made upfront to lease the land,
and there are no ongoing payments to be made under the terms
of the land lease.

(i) Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its various
offices through tenancy agreements with independent third
parties and a related party, a company in which Mr. Yao Jianhui
("JH Yao") has significant influence over the related party. The
leases with independent third parties typically run for an initial
period of 2 to 6 years. The lease with the related party runs for an
initial period of 20 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions.
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AR BRUTERAASANA

HEFERNEMLYE AT

W -
2020 2019
—EB_%F —T-hF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 5 T FHT
(i) 59,144 101,458
(i) 112,982 31,802
BieE -
(i) BAAE L
AEECESNFREFERA— L HEEsE

REREBSNERE - BERRB/17F - L+
WHEEN2MFRDHEH —RE - WR
BWBEEMNGR - BHEEEETONK -

(i) MHEFEBANYE

REBMBBBREIE=H MBS (2R
EE(HREERENHEB T RAEEATE
NWAR)MBEmRR  BEHMERERES
EMAENERRE - BBIFE=FHEER
BRH2E6F - MM MAEHR20F -
HEGKXERBZENBRGBEMNE - Eh e
B F A RS AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U5 e A Bl

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)  16. ¥ 3  ME KRR E (&)

Notes: (Continued) BiRE : ()

(e) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (e) FRELE (&)

EERRT R ARG WOEXER T
T

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or
loss is as follows:

2019
—ZE-NF
HK$'000
FHT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by REBEERRESNEREEERN

class of underlying asset: WEER:

Ownership interests in leasehold land HET MG EER 6,342 5,464
Other properties leased for own use HEERRMEMYE 19,366 12,698
25,708 18,162
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 11) HEBENS (E11) 7.444 1,766
Expense relating to short-term leases (Note 8) EEEEER (MiEs) 7,733 6,390

BE-_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—HItFE - H
EMRSREBEH21,707,0008T(=F
— L% : 10,883,000 7T) - FHE A EHEIH
BT E B M 5 28(A) ©

17. BEYWHE

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2020
was HK$21,707,000 (2019: HK$10,883,000). Details of the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 28(A).

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAT
At fair value RATE
At 1 January n—HA—H 9,011,837 3,082,784
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 45A) W BB BT B A &) (MY 5E45A) = 3,492,611
Acquisition of subsidiaries under common U B [E] — 322 1 T~ B9 Bt B & &)
control (Note 45B) (Bi&E458) - 1,647,004
Transfer from property, plant and ERAME  HERE
equipment (Note 16) (FfzE16) 11,958 223,983
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EZE =Y « BE &K
(Note 16) (KftzX 16) (209,197) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 44(a)) 1 E — M B A 7] (B 5E 44(a)) (9,439) =
Disposals HE (11,675) =
Capitalised subsequent expenditure HisRZ BT AR 598,253 772,675
Fair value (loss)/gain NFE(ER), W (607,202) 23,935
Revaluation surplus arising from BROEDE  RERREN
reclassification from property, plant ELXNEHRR
and equipment 6,442 75,566
Exchange realignment PE 54, 82 510,770 (306,721)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 9,301,747 9,011,837
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17.

190

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties using the tax rates
and the tax bases that are consistent with the expected manner
of recovery of these investment properties.

Investment properties with carrying value amounted to
approximately HK$5,536,668,000 (2019: HK$4,561,551,000)
have been pledged as securities to secure the Group's bank
and other borrowings (Note 35).

(@) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for
investment properties

17. BEWHE &)

AEBEFERAEKOZEREMERB T
AR ERBE - A EZFREVE
ERMEZMELEHE -

8 M 18 A& #95,536,668,000/8 L ( — &
— L% : 4,561,551,000787T) 2R &
BEHAELSTRITUEBRAEBIRIT
REAEE (HFE35) °

(a) BREVMEREBEZRRAZTHE

2020 2019
—BoFF —T-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Rental income HeWBA 117,776 90,378
Direct operating expenses from EERSWAZME B
properties that generated KX
rental income 31,712 20,270
Direct operating expenses from REEHSWAZMEZE
properties that did not generate e AL
rental income 2,218 6,070

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's investment properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

17. REWZE &)
(b) BEVMEWATLENE

(i)

RFESR

TRINFNREARIZEE
EEGFENAESBIREMER
FE ENBRBEEMH RS
ERIE 1R ATFEAERE
M =MAFEBR - X FEE
EERME N H2EERM
PRk R ABURR AT IR 12 /R
REEMET @ SURAT

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2020
R-EBE-EFE+-A=+—HxENQAFE

Significant
other
observable

input
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)

HithEXTEH EAXFTAH
=g ABE =g ABE
(BEZ=E&) (B=ZEHR) st
Description B HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FaxT FExT
Recurring fair value "LEMEATETE
measurements
Investment properties: wEDF
— Office, workshop, —WNE T
dormitory, shop, car BE - EfEE
parks, hotel and % BIEREY
shopping arcade %
— the PRC — 1,069,035 7,925,312 8,994,347
— Office and residential ~ — HWAER
properties FEYHE
— Hong Kong — &% 55,200 252,200 307,400
1,124,235 8,177,512 9,301,747
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

192

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

17. REWE &)
(b) BEVMEWATESE )

() RFEEFRE)

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2019

R=B—h&E+=A=+—HHEHATE

Significant
other Significant
observable  unobservable
input inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total

HEARE  EATAER

RPABE ERAZE

(BZER) (B=E#HR) #B5
Description 5t HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FAT
Recurring fair value "KEMEANTETE
measurements
Investment properties: wEME -
— Office, workshop, —WAE - 15
dormitory, shop, car BE -G =
parks, hotel and B RS REE
shopping arcade MR35
— the PRC — 1,055,973 7,600,264 8,656,237
— Office and residential  — WAER
properties FEYE
— Hong Kong — &8 127,300 228,300 355,600
1,183,273 7,828,564 9,011,837

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an
investment property situated in Hong Kong of
HK$67,300,000 was entered into a tenancy
agreement in March 2020 and was transferred
from level 2 to level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
The valuation technique was changed from direct
comparison approach to income approach
following the occupy possession. Except for that,
there was no transfer among the fair value
hierarchy (2019: investment property situated in
Hong Kong of HK$68,400,000 was transferred
from level 3 to level 2 in the fair value hierarchy).

Other than described above, there was no change
in valuation technique during the years.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

BE_EZ-FTF+-_A=+—HILEE -
4767,300,000 B ST R BB RN E W%
MR- F = AEIvHERH  TED
FEBLEFRE _BREDNE=BH 15
Bi%  HERTHEEZLEESEERARA
EoBRILIASN AT EERMBEER
(ZZ— 14 : 68,400,000 TTAL A E B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use.

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation
of the opening and closing fair value balance is
provided below:

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

17. REWZE &)
BREMENATENE (&)

(b)

(i)

Opening balance (level 3 recurring

HmEsR (E=RETE N

fair value) NFE)
Acquisition of subsidiaries A=)
Acquisition of subsidiaries under U B (B8] — 452 11 T MO B
common control (Note 45B) ~a) (M5E45B)

Transfer in/(out) of level 3

Transfer from property, plant and

mME=REAN(BH)
HEEME  BELERE

equipment (Note 16) (M$3E16)
Transfer to property, plant and EREYE - WEREE
equipment (Note 16) (M=% 16)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 44(a)) H & —EH B A 7
(M43 44(a))
Capitalised subsequent expenditure H &R 7 E AN
Fair value (loss)/gain NFE(E8), Iz
Revaluation surplus arising from BEFSEME  BERFK
reclassification from property, BREENEHRR
plant and equipment
Exchange realignment ME B
Closing balance HIR 4

RFEFRE)

ARERFRNERBRE
SRR BT B AR T
ERBEANZE2BARS
&ll o

ATEIBRER it
SERSEER  REEEE
PR o

ERERTAIBREABIEN
NP EFE(E=ER)

REMEN AT ERE =K
BUHAFETE - YRR
A EERR A RN T
X

2020 2019
—z-oq [EEC RS
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT
7,828,564 3,016,084
- 2,341,933
- 1,647,004

67,300 (68,400)
11,958 223,983
(209,197) -
(9,439) -
598,253 772,675
(567,668) 86,158
6,442 75,566
451,299 (266,439)
8,177,512 7,828,564
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

194

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(iij) Valuation techniques and inputs

Valuation processes of the Group

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties located in the PRC were performed by
the external valuer, Valtech Valuation Advisory
Limited (“Valtech”) (2019: D&P China (HK) Limited
(“D&P"), a division of Duff & Phelps, and Valtech)
to determine the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2020.

For the investment properties located in Hong
Kong, the valuations at 31 December 2020 and
2019 were performed by the external valuer, APAC
Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited (“APAC").

Valtech, D&P and APAC are independent and
professionally qualified valuers that hold recognised
relevant professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and category of the
investment properties valued. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest
and best use.

The Group's finance department includes a team
that reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuers for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the chief
financial officer (“CFO"). Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the CFO,
the valuation team and external valuers at least
once every six months, in line with the Group’s
interim and annual reporting dates. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the fair values of the
properties were determined by external valuers.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

17. REWE &)
(b) REWEWATESE(E)

(i) 1EELMREA B

AEE G EREF

SN ERT IR E AR A A
(TFRD (ZZE— % :D&P
China (HK) Limited ([D&P] -
EENSSZRFR)ERAE
BRI AR ERIEE Y ETTE
MiHE NEEEREMERZ
T-EF+-_A=+—HHAR
F1E -

IUREENREDEIMS -
SNES fi (BB 22 K B EERT G o R
MARAR(EAEEFE])
ER—ZF_FFR_F-NF
TZA=t+—BETHE-

Fi2 - D&P MK EEFEA
BARAHBEEARIET
HEREMENNE RS
HAIEESRAE L BEGE
B - LT BIREMHEME B
BFERARERERE RRERS
}Eﬁo

RIEMBRERE - NEER
B EBPIRR A — E BB LG
ERIFTETTME - ZBBE
ZREFEHHE(BRME
BD#®E - ERUHE - GE
BB RINEEEME D /NE
AgsbERFRERET—
RERT - R BN S (B Ay o B
RERRERHR - -RN=F
—EERZF-NAFTA
=1t—R ZEWENLTFE
HINE L ERMEE -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWMZE )
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) BEYWENAFEFTEHE)
properties (Continued)
(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) FEEHREAEE(E)

Valuation processes of the Group (Continued) KEEFR G EEF (&

At each financial year end, the finance department: REVHREER - BRI

e Verifies all major inputs to the independent . % B B ER S A PT
valuation report; BEEQAHE

e Assesses property valuations movements o HBAFMHERELLE
when compared to the prior year valuation HEEEEED &
report; and

D Holds discussions with the independent . B3 (BRI AT ©
valuer.

Valuation techniques & 18 75%

Completed properties in Shenzhen, the PRC RAEBEFINE T T WE

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the valuations RZIE_EFR_FT—NF

were determined using income approach (term and +-A=+—H " HEFHK

reversionary method) based on the following AE(TREI RS %) BB A

significant unobservable inputs: TERAABEGE ABIRE

% 8
Vacancy rates Based on current and expected future market conditions after
expiry of any current lease.
TEEX BENMERIIREHA T EEFIRIT RTBERRTREE
Reversionary yield Based on actual location, size and quality of the properties and
taking into account market data at the valuation date.
EEkaE REMEERME  EREREE - WEENGER BT S EE
Current market rent rates Based on the actual location, type and quality of the properties and

supported by the terms of any existing lease, other contracts and

external evidence such as current market rents for similar properties.
WITMHBHEER REMEEG MR - B8 HRET - WEERRABELGENR -

Hha % RHMNDERE (PIanB A R mIRITmE) 1EZH -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

196

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

(iij) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued)

17. REWE &)
(b) BEVMEWATESE )

(i) 1HEFMREABE (&)

Valuation techniques (Continued)
Properties under construction in Shenzhen, the PRC

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the valuations
were determined using combination of market
approach and depreciated replacement method
based on the following significant unobservable
inputs:

Accommodation value

1 E7% ()
R BRI FE ) 2

RZBEZZEFERZT—NF
+=—A=Z+—8  HERKER
LA SRS 1] B R ) A B -
RAMSEMITES LS #
THEIEHY

Accommodation value represents the unit rate where the

transaction price is divided by permitted plot ratio gross floor area.

BEHE EEEERREMLER HhXSEBRBRALTFNTEREEZE

& °

Incurred construction costs

Incurred construction cost represented the accumulated

construction cost incurred as of date of valuation.

BEAB IR
Properties under construction in Ganzhou, the PRC

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the valuations
of properties under development in Ganzhou, the
PRC were determined using market approach based
on the following significant unobservable input:

BEELABTIAAEERENRARZERN - (ERAEEBAKRA -

R BB M R Y%

NRZE_FFR_FT—NF
+—A=+—8  hEEMNE
RYYENGEDFEATSE
RIBATERT A B REAH

Estimated construction costs

HETHE AR

EMETE

These are largely consistent with internal budgets developed by the
Group’s finance department, based on management’s experience
and knowledge of market conditions, less cost of percentage of
completion on the construction. Estimated construction costs also
include a reasonable profit margin.
ZERBEEANEBEM S HFIMTELNAMBAERBAER - H0R
BERBNARANETRN T - BHRELTKA DK
RETE - IR EREA BN EX -

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(iij) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued)
Valuation techniques (Continued)

Properties under construction in Shantou and
Nanning, the PRC

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the valuations
were determined using direct comparison approach
based on the following significant unobservable
inputs:

Price per square meter

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

17. REWZE &)
(b) BEVMEWATENE )

(i) 1HEFMRBABE (&)

1 E7% ()

R BDWEE K R B EE =

R-B_FEN_FT—NF
T-A=1+—H  AE:RRE
A TNEAN A BERE ABUERE
RBERLEORMEE -

Taking into account the differences in time, location, condition,

size, age and other individual factors between the comparables and

the property.

B ITRER ZRTABLBAREZYENKRE - LE AR HE - FR

REMERNEZTHAER o

Completed properties in Hong Kong

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
engaged external valuer to perform the valuation
using income approach and direct comparison
approach. While the valuations of certain properties
located in Hong Kong had taken into consideration
of existing tenancies, such properties were valued
by applying income approach and the fair value
measurement of such properties were classified as
Level 3 with the following significant unobservable

REENE T IYE

R-_EZTER T —NE
+ZA=+—8  rAEEEF
SNIBALERDE R AR BB L
BUAETTHE - BREURES
HETYERNGHEEZERERNE
2 ZEMERBRNEET
HEARZENE R TENE
DNEFSERE=FR  WER
LA AR AT ER 33 A B -

input:

Reversionary yield Based on actual location, size and quality of the properties and
taking into account market data at the valuation date.

B KR X REVEER S BREREER  WEBENGEER BN TISEE

B -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BEYE &)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) BREMENAFETE(E)

properties (Continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1EEEBREABE(E)
Valuation inputs A EAEF
Below is a summary of the valuation technique AT RIFARAFESRE=E
used and the key inputs to the valuation of R EMFEGEMMAMER
investment properties included in Level 3 in the fair T EZS ABEME

value hierarchy:

Relationship of unobservable

Description Fair value at 31 December Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
ik WM+=A=+-BHATE =003 TUREHARE TARERAYEEE TURREAYBEATENEE
2020 2019 2019
b St 22 E-NE “E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TEL
Completed properties in 1,090,767 1,326,857  Income approach (termand ~ Vacancy rates 20% 5-10%  The higher the vacancy rates, the
— Shenzhen, the PRC reversionary method) lower the fair value
ReEERIINETINE WAL (BRRESRE) ZEX ZEXHS  AATELE
Reversionary yield 7-8% 6%  The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value
ERUEE EBkEEER - BIRTERE
Current market rent rates ~ RMB25-60per ~ RMB34-61per  The higher the current market rent
square meter square meter rates, the higher the fair value
per month per month
RHEeER BASYHRA  BABTARA  BATSHELERHS AAT
REBE60T RE¥uUZE6IT  EEE
Properties under construction 824,611 834,992 Combination of market Accommodation value RMB1,715 per RMB2,330 per  The higher the accommodation
in — Shenzhen, the PRC approach for land and square meter square meter value, the higher the fair value
depreciated replacement
method for building
ReERIERNE AUERHEIIINTE  BELE BYSXRARE  BTFRARE  EEuELR IATEES
ERTHETHIES 171157 23307
B
Incurred construction costs RMB1,292 per RMB776 per  The higher the incurred
square meter square meter construction costs, the higher
the fair value
BEEBINA BYHRARYE  BEAKARE  BEERINASR AIATE
12027 6T BB
Properties under construction 1,044,428 1,116,747 Market approach Estimated construction RMBS5,952 - RMB5,952 - The higher the estimated
in — Ganzhou, the PRC costs 6,385 per 6,270 per construction costs, the lower the
square meter square meter fair value
RhEENNEER IR 5% it IR BYAKARY  BYRRARE  fEHARENAER - ARATEY

5952%6,385T 5952%6.2707T &
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(ii)

Description

i

Properties under construction
in— Shantou, the PRC

RAEENERNE
Properties under construction
in — Nanning, the PRC
ReEBENERNE
Completed properties in

Hong Kong
REBHEZINR

Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued)

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

17. REW*E &)
(b) BEMEWATESE S

(i) 1EEFMRBABE (&)

Valuation inputs (Continued) EEABEF ()
Relationship of unobservable
Fair value at 31 December Valuation technique(s) ~ Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
RM+=A=+-AHATE =003 TARREAYE FURERAYBEE TUBREABBELATENBE
2020 2019 2019
=t 23 = ik “I-nE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL
3,006,256 2,476,425  Direct comparison approach  Price per square meter RMB22,400 - RMB27,000-  The higher the market prices, the
35,833 per 53,333 per higher the fair value
square meter square meter
HELEE BERKRER BYFRARE  BYFRARE  WEERER IATEES
22,4002 27,0002
35,8337 533337C
1,959,250 1,845,243 Direct comparison approach  Price per square meter RMB28,814 - RMB25,773 - The higher the market prices, the
34,906 per 33,514 per higher the fair value
square meter square meter
BRNBE BERKER BYARARY  BYARARYE  TEERER  AATEES
28814% 25,7132
34,906 7T 335147
252,200 228300 Income approach Reversionary yield 1.8% 2.1%  The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value
WA ERREE EEREEER  ARTEEE

There are inter-relationships between unobservable
inputs. Expected vacancy rates may impact the
reversionary yield with higher vacancy rates
resulting in higher yields. For investment properties
under development, increases in estimated
construction costs that enhance the properties
features may result in an increase of future rental
values when the properties are completed. An
increase in future rental income may be linked with
higher costs. If the remaining lease term increase,
the yield may decrease.

The valuation for investment properties under
construction was also arrived at by making
reference to comparable sales as available in the
relevant market. The construction cost incurred and
estimated construction cost to complete the
development as at the date of valuation are also
taken into account.
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18.

200

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. BILEE

Contractual Other
Trademark customers Operating intangible
Goodwill  and patents  relationships License right assets Total
BE BERSHE AHEFERE JRRFT ReR HtEREE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TAT TARL TER TAR TER TART
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-n¥-5-A
Cost KA 147,958 7175 55,710 10,997 - 4,440 226,280
Accumulated amortisation and 2245 KAl
impairment - (4,142) (30,793) - - (2,258) (37,193)
Net book amount FEFE 147,958 3,033 24917 10,997 - 2,182 189,087
For the year ended BE-E2-NEtZA
31 December 2019 Z+-HLEE
Opening net book amount IR F(E 147,958 3,033 24917 10,997 - 2,182 189,087
Acquisition of asubsidiary ~ WE—FIHBLR
(Note 45A(a)) (Bt 45A()) - - - - 749,172 - 749,172
Additions hE = = = = 2,264 - 2,264
Amortisation g = (295) (6,340) - (31,143) (443) (38,221)
Impairment BE - (2,661) - = (140,094) S (142,755)
Exchange realignment R = ) = = (32,735) = (32,812)
Closing net book amount FREHTE 147,958 - 18,577 10,997 547,464 1,739 726,735
At 31 December 2019 RZE2-hnE+ZA
=+-8
Cost AR 147,958 3,984 55,710 10,997 818,656 4,440 1,041,745
Accumulated amortisation and 25T i R E
impairment - (3,984) (37,133) - (271,192 (2,701) (315,010)
Net book amount RETE 147,958 = 18,577 10,997 547 464 1,739 726,735
For the year ended BE-2-ZE1CA
31 December 2020 =t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ~ EFIEAF(E 147,958 = 18,577 10,997 547,464 1,739 726,735
Additions E - - - - 1,720 - 1,720
Amortisation B - - (6,340) - (36,875) (443) (43,658)
Impairment BE - - - - (419,802) = (419,802)
Exchange realignment R A% - - - - 8,841 - 8,841
Closing net book amount FREHTE 147,958 - 12,237 10,997 101,348 1,296 273,836
At 31 December 2020 R-B-FF+-H
Sr=(
Cost KA 147,958 3,944 55,710 10,997 868,274 4,440 1,091,323
Accurnulated amortisation and 2338 RR(E
impairment - (3,944) (43.473) - (766,926) (3,144) (817,487)
Net book amount FEFE 147,958 - 12,237 10,997 101,348 1,296 273,836
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 8. BILEE &)

(a) Impairment test for goodwill (a) EERERNE

Management considered each operating segments
represents a separate CGU for the purpose of goodwill
impairment testing.

As of 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of
goodwill allocated to the Automation and Financial
Services segments amounted to approximately
HK$43,722,000 (2019: HK$43,722,000) and
approximately HK$104,236,000 (2019: HK$104,236,000)
respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs
of disposal with reference to market price, whichever is
higher.

For value-in-use calculations, management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on
industry growth forecasts.

EEERE HEEREANAT
e Tliﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ—fﬁﬁﬁ’\]
e EEREN -

A—TE-_TF+-_A=+—8"
@E%Qiﬂft&%@mﬁ&ﬁ%’hﬁmﬁ@
BRE{E D B4 A43,722,0008 (=
T — 4 1 43,722,000 ) M4
104,236,000 7t ( = & — J1L F -
104,236,000/ 7T) °

iﬁ%?i%ﬁﬁ’]"ﬂ&@%%ﬁfb‘@?@
= AEER B kA FER &K
(fom%%/i)ﬂﬁnm%f 1% 1
= o

SMEREEEMNS  EEEERS
[k & ¥ i R EER E RIS
ERRSEEEMETTERRORSR
AL RAEFHRAIR K - BRI THER
TRERBRIMIEDL -
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

202

(@) Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

For Automation segment and Financial Services segment,
the Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by management
for the next five years with a terminal value related to the
future earnings potential of CGUs beyond the next five
years to determine the recoverable amount of CGUs. The
financial budgets and growth rates are estimated based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The key assumptions used for the value-in-
use calculations are as follows:

18. B EE &)

(a) AERERRE)

REBEDE R BRSO
- AEERTELBGMAKDE
TR AKERRRSARERA
TIREEEEHENRRAFNR
MM ERE - M&xKREBERRK
KAFRRSEL BN RERF
BN - MHAEMERXRRES
ERBEEMGERBBMA
EREEFEMANBERERRNT

Financial
Automation Services
BEt & B AR
For the year ended 31 December BE-Z—-8%
2020 +ZA=+—HLFE
Growth rate BRE 5% 10%
Discount rate AhIE = 14% 16%
For the year ended 31 December BE-—Z—h#F
2019 TZRA=E+—-HLFE
Growth rate BRE 5% 10%
Discount rate AR IR % 10% 10%

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of CGUs to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of CGUs.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A
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. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2020

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the outbreak
of Covid-19 pandemic and the subsequent quarantine
measures as well as the travel restrictions imposed by
many countries have had negative impacts to the global
economy, business environment and directly and indirectly
affect the operations of the Group. The Group suspended
its operation of yacht club as well as training services
(formerly, education and training services) for a certain
period during the year due to the mandatory government
quarantine measures in an effort to contain the spread of
the pandemic. As such, the financial performance of the
segment of yacht club as well as training were affected in
certain aspects, including reduction in revenue and results.
Global health emergency resulting from the Covid-19
pandemic has led to a significant decline in the demand
for the services from the segments of yacht club and
training respectively, primarily due to the Group suffering
from enforced marine sports base and sailing school
closures. The operation of yacht club as well as training
services continues to be significantly impacted by the
Covid-19 pandemic even after the marine sports base and
the sailing school under the segments of yacht club and
training are reopened. The timing and extent of a recovery
of consumer behaviour and willingness to spend
discretionary income on yacht club as well as training
services may delay the Group’s ability to generate
significant revenue until such time as consumer behaviour
normalises and consumer spending recovers.

Accordingly, the Group assesses the recoverable amount
of the operating right allocated to its respective CGUs
and as a result the carrying amounts of the operating
right was written down to their recoverable amounts of
approximately HK$51,089,000 in the segment of yacht
club and approximately HK$50,259,000 in the segment
of training respectively. An impairment loss of
approximately HK$419,802,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
of which the amount of approximately HK$231,314,000
arose in the segment of yacht club and approximately
HK$188,488,000 arose in the segment of training
respectively.

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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8. BEEE®)

HE-S-TF+-A=+-
B ik R

HIE—ZT-FTF+-A=+—HL
FE 2009 MASRRIEZEE
ARBER 2 TRBEIE B A R FE L B
B2 RITREIE2IREE Bk
REELETAASE IE&&%
ERETASEZES - AREA
hw%ﬂﬁﬁfimu¢ﬁfig
A AREBRFRE —BERES
%éﬁi%@%&%m%%wﬁﬁ
BB RIEJIRG) - At - e
P igl o MM GBsEET s T4
AXHTE R K=aRkEET
B 2019 BRBEERBIFEKNE
KEEBRESRRBBUERE ST NS
o BRI PR "k D R EE TR
TEARAEEERGFEESEN
M gBRa e - e
BT R 8590 9 SBHY /8 F iE B A iy Ko
BERENHER  EREM &S
N PEBIDEESE 2019 TR
E,*FE Z’EET/E HX/}%BAA%J;E
BITR RN ERE ST REIRS £
EEEEXMINAZZFEZ KR
AERERE  AEEEEREWNTZ
BENTREETE  BEEHEETA
FREERBEEHIRERT °

At - AEEFHOREEESER
CTEABMMNSEENIKESEE -
PEME 2 BT 20 R EE A o R A B RE Y
REERmM? MR EE T kES
%5 #4951,089,000 7% 7T & 50,259,000
BT e RERAEMmEE KSR E
R {E B 18 49 419,802,000 7T -
E /R #9231,314,0007% 7T 2K B #% 8
@ P EB - 49188,488,000 7 T 2K
Ep=HlFai
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18.

204

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs related to operation of yacht club and training
services have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations, which is arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out by an independent professional valuer. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rates of 1%. The growth rates
do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for
the business in which the CGUs operate. The pre-tax
discount rate used is 17.86% for operation of yacht club
and 14.27% for provision of training services
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

For the details of the impairment of intangible assets for
the year ended 31 December 2019, please refer to note
16(a) to these consolidated financial statements.

The operating right is used in the Group's operation of a
yacht club and provision of training services. As at 31
December 2020, the average remaining amortisation
period of operating right was 14 years (2019: 15 years).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

(b)

8. BILEE &)

BE-E-SE+-A=+-
B L& (%)

RZTEZTF+-_HA=+—8"
PR = P M JHHFH%%%%*HE@E'JEE
CEEBMNMAIRECREEERE
REBEEMEE  WHBEBLE
EGHEMETHAEMSE - 255
HEFRAUARRIEEEZENT
FHEMMBEEAKENRESR
ETERREIT - BBRAFZIHRER
ERAFTMEFIIERE1%ER
ZEEREWHEBRARCEESN
FIETHEMRATHERE - L&
e MRS IIREA AR
WAl E X 5 Rl R17.86% K&
14.27% °

BE-ZE-NhFt+=ZAR=+-
HIEFE
BRBE_T-hFT_A=1—
Htirﬂﬁﬁﬁ/é;‘zﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
FLHZERAMBHRRME

16()

KEERARAEBSEBERESHTR
REFIRE - RZZEZTF+=
A=Z+—8 FYRGBRELEEE
FRAEI14F(ZE—NF  15F) o
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. REEERTINKRE

Z

2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BsE F#ET FHET
At 1 January n—A—A 321,780 1,154,558
Capital injection &ﬁ 24,842 -
Step acquisition from an associate 9 # Uk B — R & A R
to a subsidiary 2R AE—HHB AT 45A(a) - (781,296)
Share of results of associates DIEBE RN A EE (b) 16,011 20,631
Share of other comprehensive SEEEE AR H AL E
income of associates Wz (45,109) (72,113)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8H 317,524 321,780
Notes: BffsT -
(a) Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December 2020 (@) UNTHHERAAEER_T_TER_F—A

and 2019. The associates as listed below have share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group.

F+-—A=+—AZBERF - TXHIID
BENRNBRANERLBRANK  AAEE
HERE -

Country of Place of
Name incorporation business Ownership interest Principal activities
% AR B R BRI BRERES TEEK
2020 2019
“BCRE —T-hEF
Advanced Radio Device Korea Korea 43% 43%  Research and development, manufacturing sales
Technologies, Inc. (“ARDT") and marketing of semiconductors for
communication and related equipment
#E #E M 8iE  HERTSHEERAREBRE
MEgge
Tekmar, Inc. The United States of ~ USA 37.76% 37.76%  Research and development, manufacturing sales
America (“USA") of carrier grade wireless telecommunication
systems and components
X2 ERE XH e RERHEEABANERERRAR
(I%@]) =
Yunnan International Holding  Hong Kong Hong Kong 32% 32%  Investment holdings and trading
Group Limited (“Yunnan”)
ERRBRRNBRAR &t &t REEBRRE S

(TE&e])

ARDT, Tekmar, Inc. and Yunnan are private companies and there is no
quoted market price available for their shares. There are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the associates.

The Group has fully impaired the interest in Tekmar, Inc. and ARDT in
prior years and did not have any unrecognised share of losses of

associates.

All of the above associates are accounted for using equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

4R 07 B AR5 & - & AR 7S ARDT ~ Tekmar, Inc. &
ERALARR  HROHITETIHSHE - #
EERAEERBE AR 2R RRERE -

BIEFEAREE 5 Tekmar, Inc. & ARDT 2 1
HBBELRE - WEEMARERZ D (hH#
BARIEGE -

ERATERE R R RMRERENGS I
HERATIE -
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19.

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The financial effects of the Group’s associates recognised in the profit or
loss are summarised below.

REE NTINIRE (&)

BiE - ()

(b) RBEXBRBLIEEHLEDANTET LR
BIEAR o

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHEL

Share of results of associates oK el kV/NCTE

16,011 20,631

Loss on remeasurement of pre-existing interestin BT &8RN —MHE QA E 2 RAE

an associate (Note 45A(a)) = A& 2 B 18 (M sE 45A))

Summarised financial information for the
associates material to the Group

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of material associates, adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements:

Yunnan and its subsidiaries (“Yunnan Group")

= (176,869)

HEAEEBEACKHELNTA 2UKE
BHEE
TRINNEZBENRZHEEREE -

ERSERRNEMERIEHBARUAR
B A M B HRAANREESRK

ERERAENBLR((ZkeEE])

As at 31 December R+—-—A=+—8
Current assets mENEE

Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current assets IEmBEE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Net assets BEFE

Group's share of net assets of Yunnan FRAAEEDEEEEEEN

Group for the year EFE
Year ended 31 December HE+T-_A=1T—RHILFE
Revenue for the year REEZW
Profit for the year FIE A
Other comprehensive income for the FAHMEERE
year
Total comprehensive income for the FRNEERERE
year

Group's share of total comprehensive FRAEED(FHE QTR
income of associate for the year s 458

206 GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B¢ RiEEA R A 7

2020 2019
—E-FR —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTix TAT
1,053,758 1,148,085
(563,728) (1,283,757)
502,231 1,141,233
992,261 1,005,561
&
317,524 321,780
132,412 2,621,801
50,034 73,655
(140,965) (225,089)
(90,931) (151,434)
]
(29,098) (48,458)




19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information for the
associates material to the Group (Continued)

Glory Sun Land Group Limited (“Glory Sun Land”)
and its subsidiaries (“Glory Sun Land Group”)

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

19. REFEDNTIMIRE (&)

HEAEBBEACHE LR 2UKE
BB ()

ENEMEEERLAF([EHMEL])
REMEB LA ([EHEHEE])

2019
—hEF
HK$'000
FAT
Period ended from 1 January 2019 to the BE-ZE—NWF—A—HE=ZZE—NFH
completion of the Step Acquisition A=+ =B EETK IEHE
on 23 April 2019
Revenue for the period Bz 111,630
Profit for the period B | (22,828)
Other comprehensive income for the period HARNE 2 E W s 3,361
Total comprehensive income for the period HAEmK=ERE (19,467)
Total comprehensive income attributable to the Bt N A IEEAR R A PR R E AR 42
non-controlling interest of the associate L 9,107
Total comprehensive income for the period B AR A AN E MR
attributable to owners of the associate L (10,360)
Group's share of total comprehensive income of BE-ZE-NF—A—HEZZ—hF
associate for the period from 1 January 2019 118 )EI 7—1— = B o UEETERK LEHAME
to the completion of the Step Acquisition on REED(GEE Q7 2EK B
23 April 2019 (3,024)

On 23 April 2019, the Group completed the step acquisition of
Glory Sun Land. As a result, the Group's interest in Glory Sun
Land increased from 29.19% to 66.35% on 23 April 2019 and
Glory Sun Land became a subsidiary of the Company (the
“Step Acquisition”). Further details of the Step Acquisition
are set out in note 45A(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

RZE-—NFUNA=+=8 ' AEEZK
HEFEWN D P - Bt - XEER
TE-NFNA-FTZHREHEHN
M 29.19% 8 £66.35% B EH & ity
RAERARKBAR([2FZWE] -F
Bz PWIERNE - TFBHEHNEGEEY
TEHRER M FE45A(@) °
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOdI

208

20.

EE’D\S}Z%“I' AHEMEEKED

2019
Equity investments KEABRAFETA —E-EHE —ENF
designated at FVOCI HttzmB B ERRE HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Listed shares: ETRRD
— Equity securities — Norway — RAES —E 36,825 15,531
— Equity securities — the USA — RARE S — 6 10,482 12,233
— Equity securities — Hong Kong — BRABESH-BE 404,130 420,106
— Equity securities — the PRC — RAES P E - 390,256
451,437 838,126
Unlisted shares FE LR 27,244 66,714
478,681 904,840

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
FVOCI as the Group considers these investments to be strategic
in nature.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, unlisted securities which
quoted market price is not available of aggregated carrying
amount of approximately HK$27,244,000 (2019:
HK$66,714,000) are measured at fair value determined by
using backsolve and calibration method which are not based
on observable inputs.

The fair values of listed securities are determined on the basis
of their quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.

Changes in fair value of the above equity securities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
within the financial assets at FVOCI reserves within equity. The
Group transfers amounts from FVOCI reserve to retained
earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

As at 31 December 2020, no listed investment (2019:
HK$43,560,000) has been pledged as security for the Group’s
obligation under repurchase agreements (Note 35).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

FRERRE N RE NS E RIE AT
Bt ARMEERE  REARKNEERA
ZEREBREIEE -

RZE—EER_FE-—NFF+_A=+—
B é@mfﬁ%’727,z44,ooo,%rc(_$ it
F 166,714,000 L) AT BARBRME
RIFE ETEE IR A R A& E MR &R
(WIEERATBR G ABE) LA REE

e

MEFH A FERBRSESHROTIS

ARAESOAFEESHREMEE
H&ﬁ$%aﬂiﬁé%ﬁ?&ﬁ?§@¥ﬁ#)\ﬁ
fEEK SN ERMEERRET R - KLE
ERAERAEREL  AEERURFE
AR EERENFEEERERER
] o

RN-E-_FTF+-_A=+—8 " #E(=
T — A5 : 43,560,000/8 ) FTHIRER

ERARSERIERE D R AENER R
(BfFE35) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (Continued)

Financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in the following

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

20. BAFEFAREMEZEHKEH
EWMEE &)

NAFEFARMEARENEBEE

currencies: ATHEHEETE -
2020 2019
—E-%F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
NOK dollar 72 BA 36,825 15,531
US dollar v 37,726 78,947
Hong Kong dollar BIT 404,130 420,106
Renminbi (“RMB") ARB(TARY]) - 390,256
478,681 904,840
21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. FTHEEWMEE
2020 2019
—E-%F —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT T
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABZHNESREE
Put option R B
— Non-current — ERE = 13,753
— Current — E 32,044 =

The Group shall have the option (the “Put Option”) to, at the
Group's discretion, sell the Option Shares (as defined below) to
the seller of Yue Jin Asia Limited (“Yue Jin Asia”) (Note) at
any time within 5 calendar years from 28 December 2016 upon
the Shenzhen Dapeng New District Management Committee or
any other relevant governmental authority enforcing its rights
under the operation entrustment agreement entered into
between Shenzhen Yuejin Sports Company Limited and
Shenzhen Dapeng New District Management Committee or
any other relevant governmental authority (“Operation
Entrustment Agreement”) for any breach of the Operation
Entrustment Agreement by any member of the Yue Jin Asia
and its subsidiaries (“Yue Jin Asia Group”) before 28
December 2016 at the Option Share Price (as defined below).

rEREIMNEEERIB(BEHEM )
()M ERIK BB R TR E R
RINKBEHREER B SLTMEAMM
MHRARBREER)EREEERA
ARRINABEFREEZ B GHEME
AR BB R T R 2 Rt ([ &
EEEHB DN _FT—R"F+_A=tN
BRTASERNER(ERZNT)TEE
BMNBERT - ANEEGE([FEHE])
BITMBERER —ZE—R"F+AZ+N\
B HE Y 5 18 & 4 79 (47T B ] 5 R A AL A T
ERBERTDMNEERENBE AR (B8
M e
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21.

22.

210

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

The consideration for the Option Shares (“Option Share
Price”) shall be the higher of (i) the cash equivalent of the sum
of (a) the amount paid in cash by the Group to the seller of Yue
Jin Asia and (b) the value of all the consideration shares issued
by Glory Sun Land to the seller of Yue Jin Asia as at the date
when the Put Option is exercised; or (ii) the fair market value of
the Option Shares to be determined by an independent valuer
as at the date when the Put Option is exercised.

Where:

Option Shares means all of the issued shares in the capital of
Yue Jin Asia as at the completion date of the sale and purchase
of the issued shares in the capital of Yue Jin Asia after exercise
of the Put Option.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Put Option was stated
at fair value based on the valuation performed by Valtech
Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuer. The valuer conducted the valuation based on a profit
forecast obtained from the Company (level 3 fair value
measurements).

Note: Glory Sun Land Group acquired Yue Jin Asia at 2016 and Glory Sun Land
become the subsidiary of the Company upon the completion of the Step

Acquisition on 23 April 2019 (Note 45A(a)).

INVENTORIES

21.

22.

PTHEEMEE®)

WO E(HERGER]D S
TEETHREE  (VEER T SEMN
FEEAT  QAKREUARSEAZINE
BREMNENTNEE  RO)EHEHR
TEREAEZBRAE T BB MET
AR ERMDOEE  HARITER
EINE 2 BB B S ER AT EE M B
R RFE

R -
HARERR (D BAERUA HARET T/ - IR EIR
NI AR B B B 1T D ,\,\E’JEEXEI

H EERSMNRATOREEETR

,f/\ ®

R-B_BER_F-NFt-HA=1—
B # /EHHT’E'$EB““§%_L§%%TEEWH&
HEBARABETHR/EIAFETIR -
HEMERIFLEAR R RES T EER
(F=FZ N FEFE) KETRHE -

Finished goods BIRK
Food and beverage R YE ek
Others HAftb

For the year ended 31 December 2020, cost of inventories
recognised as an expense includes a write-down of inventories
of approximately HK$15,097,000 (2019: HK$152,000 was
included in cost of sales and HK$19,699,000 was included in
the loss for the year from discontinued operations).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

M EHEMEEN T AT T BB - @
HR BN SREER BB -F—NFNA
—T=ARARRRMHBAR (HE45AE) «

7E

2020 2019
—2-FF —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET
26,204 23,156
195 -

44 —

26,443 23,156

 E— T T F+ A=+ —HLEFE
BRAEEANTFERNAREFEMBLD
15,097,000 7t ( == — J14F : 152,000
78 T0RT A BH & A AR %2 19,699,000 7% T 5t
AN R EEBEENFAERE)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

23. BREAPYE

2020 2019
—B-2F —TNEF
HK$000 HK$'000
TET TAT

Within normal operating cycle included

under current assets BE
The balance comprises: EHRBEE
— Land cost — EHAKAR
— Construction cost — BREERA

— BEREFE

— Capitalised interest

Expected to be completed and available
for sale after more than 12 months AEHEE
Expected to be completed and available
for sale within 12 months AEHE

The properties under development are all located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of properties
under development of approximately HK$3,123,958,000
(2019: HK$3,262,134,000) are pledged as securities for bank
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 35).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of properties
under development of approximately HK$3,367,303,000
(2019: HK$1,854,362,000) are pledged as securities for other
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 35).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of properties
under development of approximately HK$397,037,000 (2019:
HK$433,384,000) are pledged for provision of financial
guarantees to an associated party of a former equity holder of
a subsidiary (Note 49).

EIERSERANINERE

BEHZR+T_EAATIR

BHR+—EARTIR

9,477,577 7,855,386
5,189,096 4,042,187
3,235,717 3,159,302
1,052,764 653,897
9,477,577 7,855,386
7,979,435 5,551,193
1,498,142 2,304,193
9,477,577 7,855,386

BRTYEZHBURTE -

R-ZE-_ZTF+=—A=+—H BERFTY
¥ W ERMEE43,123,958,0008 (=&
— N4 ¢ 3,262,134,0008 70 ) & I ER
FTAEBMBITIEEREIRRFIE3S)

N—_BE-_EF+-_A=1+—H  FEFY
¥ 1R M {E 43,367,303,0008 T ( =&
— L%+ 1,854,362,0005%8 7T ) B K IER
FAREBEMEEAER (FIFE35) ©

RZE-_TF+=-_A=+—8" %é)?eﬂtﬂ%
¥ 8 8RB 4£9397,037,0008 T( =&
— JL4F : 433,384,000 7T ) © & # & )
—MEWBARMAIRERE ANEEQ
AR A TS AR (PHRE49) ©
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23.

212

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(Continued)

According to the state-owned land use rights grant contract
("Land Use Rights Contract 2014") dated in March 2014 ,
the parcels of land in the PRC for the property development
project of which certain properties under development of
approximately HK$130,841,000 and completed properties held
for sale of approximately HK$281,750,000 (note 24) held by a
subsidiary namely Yunfu Baoneng Property Limited (“Yunfu
Baoneng”) were required to be completed by March 2017. As
at 31 December 2020, the development was still under
construction. A failure to meet any development milestones
contained in the Land Use Rights Contract 2014 may lead to a
daily penalty of 0.01% of the consideration of the Land Use
Rights Contract 2014 in according with the terms of the Land
Use Rights Contract 2014. The Group had made submission to
relevant land authority on application of extension of
completion of development on the ground that such delay has
been due to various reasons beyond its control. As advised by
the Group, there was no formal written notice has been served
to Yunfu Baoneng by the relevant land authority in respect of
the possible breach of the Land Use Rights Contract 2014; and
the Group considers the ground for application of extension of
completion of development is valid under the terms of Land
Use Rights Contract 2014. Up to the date of this report, the
Group has been still waiting for the written notice of extension
from the relevant land authority. After consultation with the
PRC legal advisor and taking into account the current status of
the construction, the directors of the Company consider that
no provision in respect of the possible breach of the Land Use
Rights Contract 2014 is required to be recognised as of the end
of reporting period.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

23. BRHPYE®)

BEARA-_ST—NF=ANEAE L1
FREETEHN(ZE—NELHBER
EEN))  ZENRTEEYEEEEE
Aemit(ERETERPUWEY
130,841,000 8 T R E R LIFIEH EWE
#7281,750,000% 7T (B 5£24) i T B &
AIEZEREXEERAT(EZERE])
BE)ER-_Z—tF=ZAfzK - HE
—E-FTFE+-A=+—H ZBEEEH
DERRF o WARREED T —MF it
FEAESHRTEHNTRERENTMERE
B2 AR iRREA L ARER
FEHMER BT — T i F
BHHREBEFARKEN0.01% K EIF o &
EENERNBHEENSENSERE
MABEIHE BIRITEHTHEEN
B o A EBERT SN B LHER
BYRAIpeER — T —MNE L HE R
EANAEFEEEHENZE®EAMN A
EAREBRABERE T —MNE+iE M
ARG - RREHEXNEREEN
BEHEEX HEARESAH  KEE]
EERETHEERNEMTEBA -
KEPEA AR BRI EEE TREN
ZRIRNE ARBEERE  HEHE
HR BEFTERTANEAETEER_Z
— P T {E RS KRR o
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24. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 24. E R IFEHEME

2020 2019
—ECERHE —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Completed properties held for sale ERIFELEME 2,442,662 1,146,584
The completed properties held for sale are all located in the ERIFELEMESBAURPE -
PRC.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, write-down of BHE-Z-THE+-_A=1T—HILFE -
completed properties held for sale to net realisable value of B EHEMERRE I ZRFE
approximately HK$189,921,000 (2019: nil) was recognised as #7189,921,000 B L (—E—IF : E)E
expense in cost of inventories of properties. R EGFERRNERBRX
As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of completed RZZZEE+A=+—H ExTLHE
properties held for sale of approximately HK$1,333,384,000 EHEWE M ERMEE41,333,384,000 7
are pledged as securities for bank borrowings granted to the TL(ZZE—N%F : 57,751,000 8 L E AR
Group (2019: HK$57,751,000 pledged for bank borrowings TEERIKIE KX 28,172,000 LEAHE
and HK$28,172,000 pledged for other borrowings) (Note 35). B EHER) EERR TAKERITE

B (PHE35)
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25. LOANS AND ADVANCES

214

25. ERRER

Loan

Margin loans receivables

Less:

Loan
Less:

ER M BR
& W 75 B & 3K

s and advances

W ORER

Provision for impairment

ERNBR— T

B IR B R

s and advances — net
Non-current portion

Current portion TENER S

Notes:

(a)

The loans and advances of approximately HK$481,773,000 (2019:
HK$701,460,000) are secured by charges over the properties and listed
securities of the borrowers, and/or backed by guarantee. Credit limits are
set for borrowers based on the quality of collateral held and the financial
background of the borrower.

The carrying amounts of loans and advances are interest bearing and
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 December 2020, no loans and advances (2019: HK$78,000,000)
have been pledged as security for the Group’s obligation under
repurchase agreements (Note 35).

The credit facility limits granted to margin clients are determined by the
discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by the
Group.

The loans to margin clients are secured by the underlying pledged
securities and are interest bearing. The Group maintains a list of approved
stocks for margin lending at a specified loan to collateral ratio. Any excess
in the lending ratio will trigger a margin call and the clients have to make
good the shortfall.

As at 31 December 2020, margin loan receivables were secured by
securities pledged by the clients to the Group as collateral with
undiscounted market value of approximately HK$2,190,009,000 (2019:
HK$1,045,037,000).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2020 2019
S —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz THT
481,773 814,379
469,241 457,924
951,014 1,272,303
(5.074) (3,588)
945,940 1,268,715

- (78,000)

945,940 1,190,715

B R 41481,773,000 8T (ZE— N4 ¢
#7701,460,00078 7T ) FRE R AR K £
BHEEMR - R SKBERAER - BIEEE
MERREEMEBERANTBER - HEX
ABREEEREE -

ERRBRERESLAETHE -

R-ZZT-TF+-_A=+—H0 #HE(=T
— L4 : 78,000,000 7T) ERRBREIER
REEIRIEFE B i AR G (M 3E35) ©

BFHFREPHNEERE LREBBAEEME
RWERFLFOMRTEET

RTHREPHNEFTABBEREFERYL
R ARERE—DERATRMDBE - MU
BEEEREMRLEE THRER - E7
BENERLREEBFREM TP LA
FAFARER

RZZE-_TE+_A=+—H EKRTEE
HNBRBEFERTFAEEEAERRZE
FIER - RBRIETI{EA2,190,009,0008 (=
T —h4F : 1,045,037,000787T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. LOANS AND ADVANCES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©) Movements on the provision for impairment of loans and advances are as

follows:

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

25. ERRERK

BieE - (&)

K ()

(@ ERRRBFRERELIOT

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2019 —NE—AF—H 32,362
Written-off of loans and advances W%E ZYNELEN (25,000)
Reversal of impairment WEREM (3,774)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 —E-NFt+ZA=+—BKk=T=TF—HA—H 3,588
Provision for impairment TRERE 1,486

At 31 December 2020 RZE-_ZF+-_A=+—H 5,074

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. EWE 5 R

2020 2019

—_ —" — $ —j‘Lf‘E

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBT FHET

Trade receivables FEWE 5 Bk K 388,608 324,550
Less: Provision for impairment B ORE R (3,752) (3,235)

Trade receivables — net EUE 5 BRR— B8 384,856 321,315
For customers of Automation products, a credit period ranging HREERNER  BEEEXEN
from 30 days to 60 days (2019: 30 days to 60 days) after ERBAR30KRENOR(ZE—NF 30
acceptance is generally granted with exception of some trade RE6OKX)  BEETESEFPHNEREA
customers where the credit period of 12 to 18 months (2019: NREMI8EA(ZE—NLF: 1221818

12 to 18 months) are granted. For customers of Property
Investment and Development, the balances are due upon
issuance of invoices or within 2 days (2019: upon issuance of
invoices or within 2 days). For operation of yacht club, the
Group granted a credit period of 30 days (2019: 30 days). For
provision of training services, the Group grant a credit period
of 30 days (2019: 30 days). For customers of trading of
commodities, the Group granted a credit period of 10 days
(2019: 10 days). For trading of seafood, a credit period ranging
from 2 days to 15 days (2019: 2 days to 15 days) was granted.
For trading of home appliances, the Group granted a credit

period of 30 days (2019: N/A).

A) - R MERERBEROEF - #RE

ENBIEERI2RA(ZE-NF:
MAZER2AA)FH - BRESE

EEMHNERP  ARERTI0RNEE

H(ZZT—NF :30K) - HRIFIRS
MEP  AEERTIORNEEH(-F
—NE:30K) - HRERESHEF &

SERTI0RNEER(ZE—NF 10
RK)e BEHESME  BERERENF2X
EI5R(ZE—NF 2KREISK)NE
EH -BREESME ' A5BEE T30
KOEER(ZZE—NF  T#EA) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of gross trade receivables based on invoice
date are as follows:

26. EWEZERF (&)

RIBZEZAHEREE S RNEENRER

0 to 30 days 0zx30H
31 to 60 days 31260 H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 120 days 912 120H
Over 120 days 120 B A E

Trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

US dollar ET

Hong Kong dollar HBIT

RMB AR

Euro (“EUR") BT ([&ocl)
Japanese Yen (“JPY") AE(TBEE])

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

DT :

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHEIT
234,238 147,645
27,499 23,027
17,878 26,702
7,663 13,796
101,330 113,380
388,608 324,550

JEUE SRR TIIRA T B HE ¢
2020 2019
—E_ZHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
51,080 51,521
170,739 73,927
138,634 194,940
= 780
28,155 3,382
388,608 324,550

FEWE Z BRSO ER BRI Z T -

At 1 January m—HA—H
Provision for impairment DEREREL ]

Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRBAR
Exchange realignment b 5 SR B

At 31 December w+=ZA=+—H
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2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
3,235 12,002

475 63,745

= (72,512)

42 =

3,752 3,235




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

(a) Contract assets

27.

f 3 SO 065 e A B i

BHREEREGNAR

(@) EHEE

Contract assets arising from: EHEERH :

Sale of goods HEEm

Performance under construction J& %0 T AR 7
services

Less: Provision for impairment R RE R

Notes:

(i)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets are as follows:

Contract assets arising from sales of goods are initially recognised
for revenue earned from the sale of automated production related
equipment as the receipt of consideration is conditional on
successful completion of product certification by the technicians.
Upon completion of the product certification and when the rights
to consideration become unconditional, the amounts recognised
as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables. The
significant decrease in contract assets as at 31 December 2020
was the result of the billing were issued to customers in respect of
work already performed and are reclassified